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CORPORATE PROFILE
EEBR

Vision
[fE=

s 2

Cyberport aspires to be the hub for digital technology,
creating a key economic driver for Hong Kong

HIEBBRNHBHEREER - S EFREEREESN

C yberport is an innovative digital community with over 1,800 start-ups and technology
companies. It is managed by Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited,
which is wholly owned by the Hong Kong SAR Government. With a vision to be the hub
for digital technology thereby creating a new economic driver for Hong Kong, Cyberport
is committed to nurturing a vibrant tech ecosystem by cultivating talent; promoting
entrepreneurship among the youth; supporting start-ups on their growth journeys;
fostering industry development by promoting collaborations with local and international
partners; and integrating new and traditional economies by accelerating digital adoption
in the public and private sectors.

Cyberport is focused on facilitating the growth of major technology trends such
as FinTech, Smart Living, Digital Entertainment and Esports, as well as emerging
technologies of Artificial Intelligence/Big Data, Blockchain and Cybersecurity, to foster

the transformation of Hong Kong into a smart city.
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ANNUAL SUMMARY
FEEE

From seed funding to mentorship and incubation, from support for business expansion to connection with global networks of investors
and partners, Cyberport provides holistic backing to help entrepreneurs innovate and succeed. In the past year, Cyberport has made
further progress in advancing the digital technology ecosystem, setting the stage for Cyberport start-ups to shine all over the world.
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Entrepreneurial Community
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Total Companies FinTech Smart Living : _
A R BEEE
1,800+ 398 744
°n5i_te/%IE-: 500+ Digital Entertainment and Esports
offsite / JEELEE: 900+ g mus 1 5 1
Non-local founders of '"s.,,m . ug o EX%e
onsite companies came from 2 7 regions/countries PN st e ; GOGOCHART 20 olfred
EHEE £ A0SR MBI A S 5 EHE/ER OCK R ...%..,“ YBPfD w"“'““&- = L

1 8 0 I Female entrepreneurs supported by CCMF & CIP
MBI ER L ECCMFRCIPEES

Talent Cultivation

ATIER

CUPP participants (since launch) ~ CCMF grantees & CIP incubatees
CUPPZ2E A8 (B 5t 8I5H%0) CCMFEHEENER KCIPEE AT

419 227

Jobs provided at Cyberport Career Fair & Youth Internships
YIS B EBRERE RHBUASEFEE

1700+

Legends &~

CUPP - Cyberport University Partnership Programme
SR - RESIERHSE

CCMF - Cyberport Creative Micro Fund
BIERIEMAES

CIP - Cyberport Incubation Programme
HISEEAE

CASP - Cyberport Accelerator Support Programme
OSBRI 2R E

MDSS - Overseas/ Mainland Market Development Support Scheme
BN T S E R 8

CMF - Cyberport Macro Fund
PIEREEES
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e ZA Insure
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TNG Fintech Group
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OneDegree

Start-ups Achievements

IEIMEES 40

(Accumulated Figures R5H#(F)

Funds raised
RO ES4R%E

CMF investment projects/total amount
CMFIZEIEE /4858

Industry awards

(RE 2

Intellectual property rights
R A

Local and overseas accelerator admissions

A Kog oM ER a3 A BEE

Industry Development

EEURE

Jobs created by CIP incubatees & alumni

CIPIEEREIREEAT
RSB

1,800+
166

40+

Local and overseas industry events
supported by MDSS (since launch)

MDSS 7 HE 7 K7
TEINEFRIEE) (BT EIRIE)

Non-local accelerator admissions
supported by CASP & engagement events
with non-local partners

CASPZIRIFAt R 83 A\ B e L5k A
RSP EE)

Physical & virtual events/
Participation

ERREREE/2EAR

201,
25,595

As at March 2022
B ZE 2022438
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
T ERVEE

Looking ahead to the prospects of economic
revitalisation and increased demands for smarter
ways of living, Cyberport will continue to support
and champion our |I&T community by leveraging our
unique position as Hong Kong’s digital technology hub,
resource and network.

REXRR > BELEEER - ML EHESEFHNTRIEM
HISEREEER LT BUBRKEANB AL - BIRMN
MRS > TR RS RPINRI R BEE -
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We see unprecedented opportunities for Cyberport to take an integrated
approach to enhance Hong Kong’'s Innovation and Technology (1&T)
competitiveness.

This is especially timely with recent national developments, including the
T4th Five-Year Plan’s support for Hong Kong to establish the “four emerging
centres” (including an international I&T centre] and strategies relating to the
Greater Bay Area (GBA] development. In addition, the Plan for Comprehensive
Deepening Reform and Opening Up of the Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Modern Service Industry Cooperation Zone underscored the promotion of
institutional innovation. Further, the Northern Metropolis Development Strategy
and the concept of “Twin Cities and Three Circles” for Hong Kong's integration
into the GBA also inject new impetus into the collaboration related to the
development of I&T. As Hong Kong's digital technology flagship, Cyberport will
continue to leverage Hong Kong's status as an international centre in various
arenas to contribute to the development of the GBA into an international I&T
hub.

Extending New Frontiers through Partnerships

Cyberport recognises the importance of international opportunities and
collaboration. In the context of the GBA development, we fostered strong
bonds within the GBA through close collaborations with the Qianhai Authority
and the GBA Business School to promote the development of a more diverse
and sustainable shared technology ecosystem. We also collaborated with
the Chinese University of Hong Kong to nurture young talents for future
contribution in the GBA. Furthermore, Cyberport signed a Memorandum
of Understanding (MoU) with Hang Seng Bank to help community start-
ups and companies secure and enhance their presence in the GBA through
various forms of initiatives to unlock opportunities in banking and financial
services, FinTech, venture capital access and more. We further concluded a
collaboration framework with the MTR Corporation Limited (MTRCL), where
both the Corporation and Cyberport will co-invest in high potential start-ups in
areas, including railway technology and smart city which cater for the MTRCL's
development needs.
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dum of Understanding Signing Ceremony Between MTR and Cyber &

M-

Cyberport and MTRCL signed a MoU for joint investment in digital technology start-ups.
HISBEBHAREERMARREN BB MR XN S FRRRETH -
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In addition to new partnerships, considering the larger picture of our
international outreach, at the 6th Belt and Road Summit, Cyberport co-
hosted a fireside chat with industry leaders and community start-ups in the
“Embracing Digital Technology in the GBA for the Post-pandemic Era” session.
The "Empowering Smart City Transformation across GBA in the Post-pandemic
Era” and "How Digital Technologies are Enabling Innovation for the New
Normal” panels organised by Cyberport also received positive feedback from
the audience. We also co-organised the Scaling Hong Kong to the Nordics
programme to drive mutual exchange of gaming industry know-hows between
community enterprises and Scandinavian business partners.

coherence GoogieforGames [ AppGallery |
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.
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BT MM SEREN > ERAE —HF—RSEH
|iE o BEEEN TREERARKEEOHERE S
BiA#E > BT —SEENERE > UBHENRER
BRI B EARDEEBE o MAITFDHI T
BEBERABERZEE M K& MBI WA
TR R T RVRIM R ET SR 0 BERRNERE
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EiiniRREtE ) o EE R B R T
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Delegates of “Scaling Hong Kong to the Nordics” participated in Sweden’s Nordic Game, a major annual event for the global game industry.
ARSI S R i B (D 22 AU BR T B R 5 B VA P M 2 R — S — BB R B8 ® Nordic Game ©

Unleashing Capital for Entrepreneurship and Innovation

Cyberport saw the proud addition of two unicorns in the past year, namely
Animoca Brands and ZA International. From Blockchain to FinTech, the
success of these two community start-ups gives a glimpse to the diversity of
Cyberport’s portfolio and the underlying driver of technology. Furthermore,
we were encouraged by the successful listing of GOGOX, the first Cyberport-
incubated unicorn, on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (HKEX] in June 2022.

An important part of Cyberport’s practical work is supporting start-ups and
connecting them to funding. Our community start-ups raised HK$18.2 billion
worth of funding during the year, and accumulated funds exceeding HK$33.9
billion. Further to connecting our start-ups to investors, Cyberport also co-
invests in promising start-ups. Our self-owned fund, the Cyberport Macro Fund
(CMF) achieved record performance this year, where the co-investment ratio
increased to 1:8, despite challenges posed by the pandemic. To support the
development of the I&T sector, Cyberport has further injected HK$200 million
into the CMF.

8 Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report
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@atulations on your
ate fundraising!

Riding on New Prospects for Emerging Technology Sectors

Under the 14th Five-Year Plan, we continue to play a leading role in enhancing
Hong Kong's status as an international financial, trade and cultural centre in
the region.

The FinTech Proof-of-Concept Subsidy Scheme fuels the growth of novel
FinTech solutions by encouraging collaborations between financial institutions
and FinTech start-ups. In addition, Cyberport FinTech InnoCon 2021 combined
brilliant minds from the I&T sector to steer FinTech forward.

We have also observed significant strides in Smart Living, which is the largest
application cluster at Cyberport. With the pandemic’s ripple effects, we
have seen growing demands for ways to effectively adapt to the pandemic’s
challenges and to assume a more human-centred lifestyle. Smart Living start-
ups and companies have mounted to over 700 at Cyberport.

As public awareness and concern for health grow, the demand for health care
services also increases. Over 100 Cyberport companies are now providing wide-
ranging HealthTech solutions, from health monitoring to telemedicine and
rehabilitation. Cyberport is also committed to nurturing more community start-
ups to engage in Environmental Technology with a view to combating climate
change, where ventures range from recycling to Electric Vehicle (EV) charging.

Under Educational Technology (EdTech), Cyberport now has over 170
community companies. We organised STEAM Week, which showcased
cutting-edge solutions from EdTech start-ups in the Cyberport community
to meet different needs within the education sector. We also collaborated
with Esperanza to co-organise the Edventures Global Business Acceleration
Summit, which saw international EdTech experts share their wisdom on solving
educational issues and present possibilities of morphing Hong Kong into an
educational innovation hub in the GBA.

In the area of Digital Entertainment and Esports, Cyberport hosted the Digital
Entertainment Leadership Forum 2021 (DELF 2021), with over 600,000 online
views. Echoing Hong Kong's positioning of an East-meets-West Cultural
Exchange Centre, we hosted an Arts x Tech Meetup, where over 300 members
from the arts and culture sector and 11 start-ups from the Cyberport community
came together to exchange ideas and explore opportunities for collaboration.

Opening up New Pathways for Young Innovators

We continue to actively cultivate talents, nurture start-ups and foster
innovation and entrepreneurship through our comprehensive entrepreneurship

programmes.

Cyberport recognised the outstanding
achievements of successful fundraising
by its community start-ups at the HKEX's
Market Closing Ceremony.
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As an innovation hub, Cyberport actively leverages our resources and strategic
networks, such as the Cyberport Enterprise Network (CEN), Cyberport
Investors Network (CIN), Cyberport Technology Network (CTN) and Cyberport
Professional Services Network (CPN) to develop partnerships and collaborations
across the innovation ecosystem to support our start-ups in building sustainable
business models for expansion into the GBA, Asia and beyond.

Cyberport Academy, which includes various mentorship programmes
and technology trainings, has expanded Cyberport's capacity for youth
entrepreneurship and co-creation, enhanced digital upskilling for industry
practitioners and equipped entrepreneurs for success. We also continue to host
the annual Cyberport Career Fair to inspire aspiring youth to engage in I&T
careers and provide job opportunities.

o EBmEBAR
Career Fair
1 2022

Unleash Your Potential

Career Fair of I&T Sector in Hong Kong

Heralding a More Sustainable Future

We recognise the importance of taking action on sustainability for a better
future. Cyberport's target for carbon neutrality by 2050 is in line with that of the
Government, through our commitment to the 4T Partnership initiated by the
then Environment Bureau (currently known as the Environment and Ecology
Bureaul.

Cyberport continues to align our communal strengths with Environmental,
Social and Governance (ESG). In terms of the environmental aspects, we
leveraged technology in our climate change response through our start-ups’
products and services. As for the social aspects, we served and brought positive
impact to the community through technological enhancement, for example
through the “Braving the Epidemic” campaign.

Looking forward to Cyberport’s expansion, we have considered how to
incorporate sustainability in our growth. Our Cyberport Expansion Project has
included sustainable features, such as green building designs, application
of construction technologies and smart property management that minimise
waste.

Looking Forward to the Next Milestone

We believe that seizing opportunities in the new era calls for a proactive
approach to ride on developments at multiple levels. Cyberport will continue
its efforts to strengthen existing support programmes and networks, as well
as spur the growth of cluster development through the advancement and
application of technology. Further, the Cyberport 5 expansion will help drive
digital technology development and entrepreneurship by accommodating more
start-ups and creating a space for the application and demonstration of more
solutions.
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Mr Simon Chan, Cyberport Chairman, looks forward
to the fruitful results of the Cyberport Career Fair to
bring in new blood for the I&T industry, and provide
opportunities for young people interested in the
sector to seize the golden age of I&T development in
Hong Kong.
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In Hong Kong, we will continue to leverage smart urbanisation and the
development of the Northern Metropolis. We look forward to continued
synergies through integration into the GBA following the Twin Cities and
Three Circles blueprint and integration into national development plans with
positioning of the “eight centres” underpinned by T4th Five-Year Plan. In the
GBA, we will bolster inter-city collaboration in strategic application clusters,
including FinTech and Smart Living, and especially smart logistics, smart
mobility and e-commerce. These collaborations will contribute to developing
the Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern Service Industry Cooperation Zone
[Qianhai Co-operation Zone) and building the GBA into an international hub for
technological innovation.

Looking beyond Hong Kong and the GBA, digital transformation will play an even
more significant role in sustainable development and regional growth as the
Belt and Road Initiative, as well as Green Finance and IP trading, gain traction
in the Asia-Pacific region. Considering the global arena, Cyberport will continue
to serve as a springboard for local start-ups to fast-track their overseas
expansion, while attracting international investors and entrepreneurs to scale
up their businesses in Hong Kong and the GBA. We look forward to leveraging
our strengths to capitalise on the national development of “dual circulation”,
enhancing Hong Kong's role as an engine in the post-pandemic economic
revival.
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Professor Sun Dong, the Secretary for Innovation, Technology and Industry, accompanied by Mr Simon Chan,
Cyberport Chairman, met with Cyberport entrepreneurs to learn about their digital technology solutions.
RIFRHR R T BB RIARBURIE SIS A L EPRMASLLERET - EEBBEAERIIR » 7HRMFPINEBRIZAIFAR

Message of Gratitude

I would like to thank our Board of Directors, especially former Chairman, Dr
George Lam, and retired Board Members, Hon Duncan Chiu and Ms Annie
Choi Suk-han, for their leadership and guidance. Thank you to our Cyberport
colleagues, partners and stakeholders for their excellent contributions and
unfaltering collaborations that have culminated in a burgeoning I&T industry.
Let us all celebrate our achievements and transform them to a bright future
ahead.

Simon Chan, BBS, JP
Chairman
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F%4MBH, BBS, JP
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

TR SR &
w

Innovation and Technology (I&T) has enabled forward thinking
and opened up new frontiers, preparing society to reemerge
with stronger tenacity into the post-pandemic era. Cyberport
actively propels I&T entrepreneurship and continuously drives
digital transformation to advance the new economy, leading
society to embrace new opportunities ahead.

BT R R AL R ENRHRNRE » SBEMERRERI N F
AREREA - MBEREHREEIHAE - HERERBEI RSN
REHER > SIS EBRTMILIBRIRE
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The pandemic has undoubtedly continued to disrupt the socio-economic
environment and global connectivity. With the pandemic on the wane, it is time
to prepare ourselves to forge ahead with renewed resilience. The continued
emergence of revolutionary technologies in the post-pandemic era has pushed
the integration of new and traditional economies, injecting new impetus into our
economy.

With national, regional and local development blueprints, including the Belt and
Road Initiative, Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership (RCEP), Outline
Development Plan for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
(GBAJ, Twin Cities and Three Circles, and Northern Metropolis Development
with San Tin Technopole, we are optimistic about how this environment serves
to advance I&T through knowledge and economy sharing, as well as closer
connectivity across the region, to enhance Hong Kong's competitiveness as the
“eight centres” charted in the 14th Five-Year Plan.

Dedication to Innovation and Entrepreneurship

Through our holistic entrepreneurship incubation programmes, Cyberport
cultivated start-ups in varied stages of development. Under Cyberport
University Partnership Programme (CUPP], over 45 students nominated
from eight Hong Kong universities attended the Online Entrepreneurship Boot
Camp hosted by the University of Cambridge Judge Business School (CJBS).
Cyberport also encouraged cross-border exchanges among innovative youth.
For example, the Greater Bay Area Young Entrepreneurship Programme (GBA
YEP) brought young talent from Hong Kong, Macau and Guangdong together
to co-create digital technology innovations and entrepreneurship. Since the
programme’s inception, 167 teams were admitted and granted HK$16.7 million
under the Cyberport Creative Micro Fund (CCMF) and 25 teams were chosen to
participate in Cyberport Incubation Programme (CIP).

During the year, CIP admitted 130 teams, bringing the aggregate admissions
to over 1,000. CCMF awarded HK$9.7 million to 97 teams to support innovative
ideas and early-stage start-up development. The Overseas/Mainland
Development Support Scheme (MDSS) has granted around HK$1 million in
subsidies to assist start-ups on Mainland and overseas expansion. The “Scaling
Hong Kong to the Nordics” delegation visit was enabled by MDSS to allow
outstanding companies to visit gaming companies in Nordic countries despite
travel restrictions, and explore the latest business opportunities in the Nordic
market. Meantime, the Cyberport Accelerator Support Programme (CASP)
supported start-ups in joining 26 accelerator programmes with over HK$2.8
million in financial assistance.

Cyberport continue to encourage youth to join the I&T industry and expand the
tech-savvy talent pool for different sectors. The Cyberport Career Fair 2022,
our annual I&T job-matching event, made available over 1,500 job opportunities
from more than 150 enterprises. During the year, Cyberport matched around
200 internship opportunities in |&T start-ups for university and secondary
students to explore career prospects in the |&T industry. In particular,
Cyberport and the Home and Youth Affairs Bureau jointly organised the Youth
Start-up Internship Programme, which was well-received with over 4,900 job
applications for 100 openings.
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Cyberport continued to strengthen various supportive networks to accelerate
corporate growth and business expansion for start-ups in spite of the pandemic.
Through well-developed platforms and business matching sessions, the
Cyberport Enterprise Network (CEN) connected start-ups with established
corporates for extensive adoptions of digital technology solutions in public and
private sectors. Cyberport collaborated with Google, a Cyberport Technology
Network (CTN) member, to launch the Igniting Start-ups & FinTechs
Programme, with approximately US$1.4 million worth of Google Cloud credits
allocated to seven selected start-ups. We also collaborated with Huawei,
another CTN member, and the French Trade Commission, to organise Huawei
Digital InPulse X Cyberport 2022, facilitating potential collaborations between
Cyberport start-ups and French corporates. The Cyberport Professional Services
Network (CPN) supported GBA landing and local network ramification, including
the Road to GBA Start-up Challenge in collaboration with PwC Hong Kong,
where 12 winners participated in a nine-month GBA Go-to-Market Programme.
Meanwhile, Cyberport Investors Network (CIN) culminated in start-up
fundraising of more than US$66.5 million (HK$518.7 million) during the year.

Start-ups’ Continued Excellence

With Cyberport’s support to elevate start-ups’ competitiveness in attracting
venture capital, Cyberport start-ups achieved recording-breaking investments
during the year. The accumulative funds raised by Cyberport start-ups in
2021/22 alone were HK$18.2 billion, a six-fold increase compared to 2020/21.
The total cumulative funds raised exceeded HK$33.9 billion. Animoca Brands
and ZA International emerged as two of our newest unicorn additions.

As at 31 March 2022, Cyberport Macro Fund (CMF) injected over US$21
million (HK$168 million) into 23 Cyberport start-up projects, driving US$189.2
million (HK$1,466 million) in co-investments with a co-investment ratio of 1:8,
manifesting investors’ confidence in Cyberport start-ups” high potential for
growth.

Our start-ups’ innovative powers and social value have also been recognised
by the Government and industry. During the year, Cyberport start-ups received
over 220 industry accolades and registered over 100 intellectual property rights.
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The Cyberport community scooped a record-high of 32 awards at the Hong Kong ICT Awards 2021.
HESBI B ACIRRIE 2021 BB EMRBAREIE 32(E51E -

Leading Tech Industry Development

Cyberport has made significant contributions in application areas, including
FinTech, Smart City and Smart Living, Digital Entertainment and Esports,
bringing in numerous promising start-ups to unlock their potential and realise
their vision.
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In the FinTech aspect, Cyberport was entrusted by the Government to
administer various programmes. The FinTech Proof-of-Concept Subsidy
Scheme (PoC Scheme), which encourages traditional financial institutions to
partner with FinTech companies to co-create digital innovations to advance
the finance industry, provided a total grant of HK$10 million to 93 approved
projects, 14 of which involved cross-sectoral and cross-border applications
(across the GBA and ASEAN countries). Under the FinTech Anti-epidemic
Scheme for Talent Development (FAST), which provided monetary support
for companies to establish new positions for FinTech talents, over 1,000
applications were received and more than 700 newly created positions were
filled. Riding on success of the first round, the Financial Practitioners FinTech
Training Programme was rolled out again in 2022. The Webinars Series
attracted over 7,100 registrations from in-service financial practitioners of 80
financial institutions.

For Smart City and Smart Living, we sparked industry development and
innovation through various new endeavours. Following the widespread coverage
of 5G networks, Cyberport has been playing an active role in supporting
community start-ups to develop innovation solutions using 5G technologies.
Cyberport is also coordinating with a number of telecom operators and
enterprises to provide opportunities for the commercialisation of 5G solutions,
so as to enhance the lifestyle experience and business applications in the city.
Under the Subsidy Scheme for Encouraging Early Deployment of 5G launched
by the Government, 30 projects of Cyberport start-ups obtained subsidies
totalling HK$15 million. Cyberport also collaborated with Rotary International
to host the 2021 Co-Create Smart Park Challenge, which encouraged young
individuals to think innovatively and apply sustainable technologies in building
smart parks. More than 100 proposals were received, ranging from gaming
experience to disaster prevention and control. Furthermore, HealthTech has a
significant bearing on the development of social wellbeing in the post-pandemic
era. Cyberport received the "Outstanding Health Technology Ecosystem”
award at the ETNet Health Partnership Awards 2021 in recognition of its efforts
towards promoting HealthTech.
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Rotary International District 3450 announced its admission into the Cyberport Enterprise Network (CEN) and its

strengthened cooperation with Cyberport to boost environmental conservation and sustainable development.

BIFRHkE 3450 M@ SMINA BESBEIRAE - WINRRBISBERBRARAIEERSTANSE

For Digital Entertainment and Esports, our annual Digital Entertainment
Leadership Forum 2021 (DELF 2021) presented an all-new digital
entertainment carnival, attracting more than 600,000 views from close to
30 countries. Showcasing the ever-expanding reach for esports, DELF 2021
also presented the Elderly Esports Experience Day, which invited senior
citizens for an exciting taste of esports. Cyberport also collaborated again
with the Association of Pacific Rim Universities (APRU] to co-host the
APRU MetaGames Conference, to foster esports talents’ growth and career
development, as well as the first Students Esports Essay Competition to
support academic specialisation in the esports field.
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Digital Entertainment Leadership Forum 2021 presented the Elderly Esports Experience Day, which invited
senior citizens for an exciting taste of esports.
2021 FHBSIRLLERIB I TRECE R A H ) - JRE— R E ERBIRAIRR

Inspiring Next-Generation Innovators

Cyberport strives to unleash the potential of youth for I&T entrepreneurship by
empowering them with digital know-how and igniting their enterprising spirit
in their early stages of growth. The RoboMaster Robotics Competition, co-
organised by Cyberport and technology start-ups and companies, combined
STEM and robotics and attracted participation from over 80 schools, including
primary schools for the very first time, to strengthen STEM education for
younger students.

Cyberport also joined hands with DreamStarter in the 6th DreamStarter
Programme, in which more than 3,000 primary and secondary school students
were inspired on entrepreneurial journeys by Cyberport start-up founders.
The inaugural CAFEA Young Talent Smart City Forum, co-presented by
Cyberport and community start-up, CAFEA Smart City Limited, enabled more
than 80 selected secondary students to present creative proposals on smart
city development. Meanwhile, the Cyberport x Jumpstart: Entrepreneurial
STEM Programme, supported by the Education Bureau (EDB] Gifted
Education Fund, allowed more than 20 students to apply STEM applications
for entrepreneurship, and gain first-hand entrepreneurial knowledge from
internships.
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The inaugural CAFEA Young Talent Smart City Forum encouraged students to devise innovative proposals for
smart cities, nurturing them to be |&T talents with solid knowledge and practical experience.

F—/E [CAFEAF VB B mmE BB S EBRBIRMNE BHH AR - BROMEAIEHERBRENARAL -

Care for Society and the Green Future

Through the "Braving the Epidemic” campaign, innovative solutions sprung up
from the Cyberport start-up community to lessen the burden of the 5" wave of
the epidemic on society. The campaign has been recognised again by the Health
Partnership Awards, organised by ETNet, with the Outstanding Leadership for
Social Innovation Award in 2022. We will continue to stand by our start-ups to
maximise their innovative powers for social good.
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Many Cyberport projects have placed sustainability at their core, such as
the ongoing Cyberport 5 expansion, in which green building designs, energy
efficient systems and low carbon construction methods were used. The current
campus also adopted various Environmental Technology solutions from
Cyberport community companies to demonstrate their green powers to society,
such as farm-to-table experiences at the newly renovated Le Méridien Hotel
restaurants, smart energy metres and outdoor air quality sensors at Arcade,
and smart recycling bins in our office buildings.

Seizing Opportunities Beyond Boundaries

During the year, Cyberport made strategic alliances with the GBA and overseas
influential institutions, such as Hang Seng Bank, GBA Business School and
CUHK, extending frontiers for collaborations to uncover new opportunities in
the thriving regions.

18 % 4R 43

HANG SENG BANK

Strategic Alliance on Hong Kong Innovation
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The strategic alliance between Cyberport and Hang Seng Bank helps Hong Kong innovation companies to secure firm
footing and capitalise on the increasing cross-boundary business opportunities in the GBA.
HISBRIBERITHRRUEMBAANEBRIMEEILRME © BEXEE M EEE o

Note of Appreciation

I would like to extend my gratitude to the Board of Directors for their
unwavering support and guidance for us to better serve our start-ups, industry
and the wider community. Thank you also to all our colleagues for their hard
work and perseverance in furthering our public missions despite the challenges

this year.

Pushing Boundaries to Capture New Opportunities

It is undeniable that the I&T sector has shown great tenacity amid the
pandemic, emerging as a beacon that leads different industries into the new
era. Cyberport will further its efforts to steer digital technology innovation
by empowering young innovators, supporting entrepreneurship, advancing
industry development and promoting integration of the new and traditional
economies in harness with the Government and different social sectors. With
flourishing opportunities in the GBA and Asia-Pacific regions, Cyberport aspires
to help community entrepreneurs establish a foothold in vibrant spheres and

unlock opportunities beyond boundaries.

Peter Yan, JP
Chief Executive Officer
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Mr Simon CHAN Sai-ming, BBS, JP

FRAHER 4 BBS JP

Chairman of Hong Kong Cyberport Management

Company Limited

EBYBAEEERANEEFHERE

Appointed on 1 April 2022
1202254 B B ERME

Mr Simon Chan is the Vice Chairman and Executive Director of Nanyang
Commercial Bank Limited, where he is a member of the Strategy and
Development Committee, the Risk Management Committee and the Connected
Transaction Committee. Mr Chan has been in the banking industry for more
than 30 years, with solid experience in the financial industry, information
technology industry and bank-wide operations. Before assuming his current
role, Mr Chan was a senior executive of Group Audit of Bank of China (Hong
Kong) and Nanyang Commercial Bank in different functions, responsible for
information technology audit and the management of various areas of the bank.

Mr Chan is currently also a director of Cinda Financial Holdings Company
Limited, Nanyang Commercial Bank (China) Limited, Nova Credit Limited, Hong
Kong Interbank Clearing Limited ["HKICL"], HKICL Services Limited and Hong
Kong Trade Finance Platform Company Limited.

Mr Chan actively participates in community service, including serving as
the Chairman of Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited, the
Chairman of the Banking & Finance Training Board of the Vocational Training
Council of Hong Kong and a Member of the Banking Industry Training Advisory
Committee of the Education Bureau. He is the past President of Information
Systems Audit and Control Association China Hong Kong Chapter and is at
present the Vice-chairman of Hong Kong Information Technology Joint Council
Limited. He also serves as a director in the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises
Association, a committee member of the Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce, Hong Kong, a member of the Financial & Treasury Services
Committee of Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce and an advisor of Our
Hong Kong Foundation.

Mr Chan graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor's
degree in Social Science and obtained a Master's degree in Science from the
University of Ulster and a Master’s degree in Commerce in Accounting from
the University of New South Wales. He is also a Certified Information Systems
Auditor and a Certified Internal Auditor.
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Professor
Karen CHAN Ka-yin, JP
REEHEIP

Executive Director of German Pool
Group Company Limited
EHEEEERADRNITES

Professor Karen Chan is Executive Director of German Pool
and founder of the fashion brand, Sparkle Collection. She has
taken up various public service roles in the manufacturing
and vocational education sectors. She is Deputy Chairman
of Federation of Hong Kong Industries, Vice Chairman of Q
Mark Council Committee, Chairman of Hong Kong Furniture
Industry Council, Appointed Council Member of The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, Adjunct Professor of Hong Kong
Baptist University and School Advisor of the Li Ka Shing
School of Professional and Continuing Education of Hong Kong
Metropolitan University.

In 2017, Professor Chan founded the Hong Kong 020
E-Commerce Federation and was nominated as Founding
Chairperson. In 2019, she received an Honorary Fellowship
from the Vocational Training Council. She is also a recipient of
the FHKI's Young Industrialist Award in 2009, the Young Women
Innovator Award by APEC in 2013, the Ten Outstanding Young
Persons Award in 2014, the JCI Tsuen Wan’s Outstanding
Family Business Award and Most Successful Women Award
from Jessica Magazine in 2020 and Hong Kong Cultural
& Creative Industries Award from Asia Pacific Creativity
Industries Association (APCIA] in 2021.

Professor Chan holds a double degree in Business
Administration and Economics from University of Washington,
a Master in Education from New York University and a Master
of Science in Marketing from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong.
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Professor
Christopher CHAO Yu-hang
HRIEEIR

Vice President (Research and Innovation) and

Chair Professor of Thermal and
Environmental Engineering of

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
EBETARER R (HFEAN
HAERIRIR TAZB 4T

Professor Christopher Chao is Vice President (Research and
Innovation] and Chair Professor of Thermal and Environmental
Engineering of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He oversees the planning and development of research,
innovation and strategic research areas. As an accomplished
scholar in thermal and environmental engineering, Professor
Chao has published extensively in leading journals. He
actively contributes to the professional community and the
Government, and is keen to promote entrepreneurship and
technology transfer.

Professor Chao received his BSclEng) degree in Mechanical
Engineering (First Class] from The University of Hong
Kong, and obtained his MS and PhD degrees in Mechanical
Engineering from the University of California, Berkeley. He
was Dean of the Faculty of Engineering and Chair Professor of
Mechanical Engineering at The University of Hong Kong prior
to joining The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in September
2021.
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Ms Ivy CHEUNG Wing-han
ARt

Managing Partner and Head of Audit with

KPMG, Hong Kong

EEREEREESBAREBETRY

FEEHBA

Ms lvy Cheung is the Managing Partner and Head of Audit
with KPMG, Hong Kong. She has been serving a portfolio
of clients in the government, property, infrastructure and
telecommunication sectors and has extensive experience in
advising companies listed on Hong Kong and overseas stock
exchanges.

Ms Cheung was the Past President of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She currently serves as
member of various public service committees, including the
Independent Commission on Remuneration for Members of
the District Councils of the HKSAR, the Standing Committee on
Disciplined Services Salaries and Conditions of Service and the
Transport Advisory Committee. She is also an Honorary Advisor
and a member of the Inspection Committee of the Financial
Reporting Council. Ms Cheung is a board member of the Hong
Kong Genome Institute and the Insurance Authority.
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Hon LAU Kwok-fan, MH JP
ZIEBH ST EMH JP

Legislative Council Member of the HKSAR
IEEHE

Hon Lau Kwok-fan is a Legislative Council Member of
the HKSAR with extensive practical experience in serving
the community and public. He has participated in various
government consulting platforms, including the Hong
Kong Youth Development Commission and the Council for
Sustainable Development and Betting and Lotteries. Hon Lau
also serves as consultant in several companies, including
Principal Consultant of China Road and Bridge (H.K.] Ltd and
Hong Kong Affairs Strategy Consultant of China Resources
Land Limited.

Hon Lau graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
with a MA in Sociology. He is also one of the Council Members
of The Chinese University of Hong Kong. As a member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in both
Beijing and Jiangmen, he is keen on facilitating communication
and co-development between Hong Kong and Mainland China.
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Mr Michael LEUNG Kin-man, MH
REXSFEMH

CEO of BOA International Financial Group
DIREIM SR EMTEARE

Mr Michael Leung is the CEO of BOA International Financial
Group with extensive banking experience in IT, operations
and corporate services. He was previously the CIO and COO
of China CITIC Bank International, and Deputy CEO of China
Construction Bank (Asia) cum Bank of America (Asia).

Mr Leung’s current and prior public services include President
of the Hong Kong Computer Society, member of the Executive
Committee of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers ("HKIB"),
member of the Professional Standard & Examination Board
and Chair of the FinTech Committee of HKIB; Chairman of
Hong Kong Down Syndrome Association and member of
several Social Welfare Department and Home Affairs Bureau
committees. Mr Leung is also an Adjunct Professor and Chair
of the Information Systems Departmental Advisory Committee
of The City University of Hong Kong, member of the FinTech
Advisory Board of The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology School of Business, member of the Innovation
& Information Management Programme Advisory Board of
The University of Hong Kong School of Business, Industry
Advisor of Hong Kong Baptist University Faculty of Science,
member of the Research Assessment Exercise 2020 Business
& Economics Panel of the University Grants Committee and
member of the Banking & Finance Training Board of the
Vocational Training Council.

Mr Leung received the Engineering Faculty’'s Distinguished
Alumni Award from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and
obtained the Philips Scholarship to study in the Netherlands.
He holds a Graduate Diploma in Bank Management, with
distinction, from the University of Virginia.
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Professor LING Kar-kan, SBS
ERENBUIESBS

Professor Ling Kar-kan is a professional town planner and
was the Director of Planning of the Government from 2012
to 2016. He is a Fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Planners,
a Registered Professional Planner and possesses the PRC
Registered Urban Planner Qualification. He was the President
of Hong Kong Institute of Planners from 2007 to 2009. He is
currently the Director of the Jockey Club Design Institute for
Social Innovation of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Vice
Chairman of the Hong Kong Housing Society and Chairman of
the Country and Marine Parks Board.

Professor Ling is also an Adjunct Professor of The University
of Hong Kong and The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
Professor of Practice [Planning) of The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, and Associate Fellow of the University College of
Estate Management, United Kingdom.
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Ms Erica MA Yun
BEZt

Managing Partner of CoCoon Ignite
Ventures and Co-founder of CoCoon and
The CoCoon Foundation
FHEEARNITARA » ERMSAIBARK
TEBRETMORIBA

Appointed on 1 April 2022

120226F4 B 1 BERE

Ms Erica Ma is the Managing Partner of CoCoon Ignite Ventures
and Co-founder of CoCoon and The Cocoon Foundation. She
is focused on investing in the pioneers of our future and
building a global home for entrepreneurs. She spent her early
career in Silicon Valley at Macy's and eBay before returning to
Hong Kong to build and operate CoCoon. Her work at CoCoon
evolved to cover community, education and investments within
an ecosystem for founders, students, investors, engineers,
designers and corporate innovators. She is always looking
for ideas and people who can turn them into reality. CoCoon
is a partner of the Google for Startups network and runs the
92 Express Program to empower women founders globally to
build hardware companies in the GBA. The CoCoon Foundation
partners with the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
and brings entrepreneurship education to over 10,000 local
secondary school students.

Ms Ma also serves on the Advisory Council of the Stanford
Bing Overseas Program, Youth Development Commission and
Women's Executives Club at the Hong Kong General Chamber
of Commerce.

Ms Ma received a Bachelor's degree in Communication and a
Master’s degree in Psychology from Stanford University.
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Mr Eddie MAK Tak-wai, JP
EREREEIP

Permanent Secretary for Innovation,
Technology and Industry
AR R TEBRBENER

Appointed on 20 July 2022
R202267H20HEEE

Mr Eddie Mak is the Permanent Secretary for Innovation,
Technology and Industry of the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region.

Mr Mak joined the Administrative Service in 1991 and has
served in various policy bureaux and departments, including
the former Information Technology and Broadcasting Bureau,
the Civil Service Bureau, the Hong Kong Economic and
Trade Office, Washington and the Post Office. He was Deputy
Secretary for the Civil Service from August 2012 to July 2018,
Hong Kong Commissioner for Economic and Trade Affairs, USA
from July 2018 to September 2021, and served as Director,
Celebrations Coordination Office from January to June 2022.

Mr Mak holds a bachelor’s degree in Electrical and Electronics
Engineering from The University of Hong Kong. He was a
Freeman Fellowship recipient at the George Washington
University in 2001-2002 and was awarded a master’s degree in
international policy and practice by the university.
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Mr Victor NG Chi-keung,
BBS, MH
EEEFTLEBBS MH

Mr Victor Ng worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for 26 years.
He was admitted to the partnership in 1996 and retired early in
May 2010 holding the position of deputy managing partner for
its national audit function in China.

Mr Ng is currently a Director of Logistics and Supply Chain
MultiTech R&D Centre Limited and Chairman of its Finance
and Administration Committee. He served as council member
of the Hong Kong Productivity Council ("HKPC”) from 2006 to
2016, Chairman of the Audit Committee of HKPC from late
2005 to 2010, Deputy Chairman of HKPC and Chairman of the
Finance and Administration Committee of HKPC from 2011
to 2016. He also served as a Director of Nano and Advanced
Materials Institute Limited from July 2012 to the end of 2018.

Mr Ng holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Social Sciences from
The University of Hong Kong, an Executive Master Degree in
Business Administration and a Master of Arts in Comparative
and Public History from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is a past president of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants ("ACCA”) in Hong Kong and currently a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants as well as a lifetime member of ACCA.
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Mr Hendrick SIN, MH
FEMBEMH

Co-founder and the Vice Chairman of
CMGE Technology Group Limited
PFERRREERRABNEFRBA
REIERR

Mr Hendrick Sin is a co-founder and the Vice Chairman of
CMGE Technology Group Limited, the largest IP-oriented
mobile game publisher in China. He is also the founding and
managing partner of China Prosperity Capital Fund, a leading
private equity investment company with a primary focus on
technology investment.

Mr Sin is President of the Internet Professional Association
and the Executive Vice-chairman of the Hong Kong Software
Industry Association. He was awarded the Young Industrialist
Award of Hong Kong of 2018 by the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries and the Medal of Honour by the Government in 2021.

Mr Sin received a Master’s degree in Engineering Economics
and Operations Research from Stanford University. He also
holds three Bachelor of Science degrees in Computer Science/
Mathematics, Economics and Industrial Management (with
college honors] from Carnegie Mellon University.
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Dr Charleston SIN Chiu-shun ) -
Ptz R YD

Executive Director of the Massachusetts

Institute of Technology Hong Kong
Innovation Node
MEIET 25 TEBBIRTES

Dr Charleston Sin is Executive Director of the Massachusetts
Institute of Technology Hong Kong Innovation Node. Dr Sin
has 25 years of experience in the technology industry and has
held executive positions in research & development, product
management, and sales & marketing at VMware, Cisco
Systems and Nortel Networks in North America, Asia Pacific,
Japan and Greater China.

Dr Sin received his PhD in Management Sciences at The
University of Waterloo. He is also a Professor of Practice at the
Faculty of Business of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
and a Fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
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Ms Maggie TSOI Tsz-shan
itz t

General Manager of Kenta Group
AL mBLE

Appointed on 1 April 2022
R2022F4 A1 HEZRE

Ms Maggie Tsoi, the General Manager of Kenta Group, is
an active participant in the tool industry in Hong Kong.
Ms Tsoi is committed to promoting local industrial and
smart manufacturing development. She is currently the
Vice Chairman of Hong Kong Mould & Die Council, the Vice
Chairman of Hong Kong Auto Parts Industry Association and
the General Committee Member of Federation of Hong Kong
Industries. She undertakes different roles across various
sectors, and is a member of Industry Training Advisory
Committees of Qualifications Framework and a member of
the Hong Kong Trade Development Council Industry Advisory
Committees.

Ms Tsoi received the Golden Bauhinia Women Entrepreneur
Award and an Honorary Fellowship from The Professional
Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries in 2020, and the
Young Industrialist Award from Federation of Hong Kong
Industries in 2021.

Ms Tsoi holds a Master’'s degree in International Business
from University of Melbourne, and is currently an engineering
doctorate candidate at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Ms Rosana WONG Wai-man
BEHzL

Executive Director of Yau Lee Holdings
Limited
ANEEBRABDNITES

Ms Rosana Wong is an Executive Director of Yau Lee Holdings
Limited and leads the Yau Lee Group to be an integrated green
corporation providing multidisciplinary construction services.
She is passionate about technology, innovation, science and
urban spatial planning, and has solidified her vision by founding
Ophylla Ventures and a group of start-ups in the context
of sustainable smart city to create better choices for the
community worldwide.

Ms Wong is the Vice President of Smart City Consortium,
Deputy Director of China Green Building (HK) Council,
and member of various Government bodies, including
the Environment and Conservation Fund Committee,
Transport Advisory Committee, Transport Complaints Unit,
Green Minibus Operators Selection Board and Longterm
Decarbonisation Strategies Support Group of Council
for Sustainable Development. She is also member of the
Construction Industry Council’'s Committee on Building
Information Modelling and Council Member of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council Mainland Business Advisory
Committee.
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Mr Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing, JP
mERILEIP

Co-founder and CEO of Skyzer VC Group
KER R EE@ME SR A B TR

Mr Eric Yeung is co-founder and CEO of Skyzer VC Group and
an active participant in the IT industry. He is the Founding
President of the Esports Association Hong Kong and Founder
and Honorary President of the Smart City Consortium.

Concerned for youth development, Mr Yeung advocates
the contribution by youth to society. He also advocates the
dissemination of positive information to the public, so as to
shape a harmonious society with innovative technology. Mr
Yeung is the Council Member of The Education University of
Hong Kong and the Vice President of the Hong Kong General
Chamber of Small and Medium Business. He has also taken
up roles as Council Member of "Customs YES" Executive
Committee, and as Member of the Road Safety Council and
Junior Police Call - Central Advisory Board. In 2010, Mr Yeung
was selected as the 4th Young Leader of the Junior Chamber
International Harbour. He is also Honorary Associate Professor
of the Lee Shau Kee School of Business and Administration of
the Hong Kong Metropolitan University.

BEREEAREREKREEEBSAIMAZTEIES - FRITFA
HMEREERER - BEERABTEEHMIATERUNEES
SHHHBAMARRESGER

BREMIEANEREVFE2ARR  BBRBHEATIEZE
TMIBEEA R AEBEFAROERTE - BREREBH
BREEEEHEREETNECEXEFREETR > BETEE
MCustoms YESIHITZEENEREENE » UBERZ2HEM /D
FER—FRAALZEGHME - N20105F > BEREEEEREHSE

FHGELNENESFEM - BAETATBEEREFIKER
FXEEBRRERHE -

B 2021/22 &R 25



RETIRED BOARD MEMBERS
BERESEF/NE

Dr Lee George LAM, BBS
M=REBIELBBS

Former Chairman of Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited

ERUBEEEERADEEFAERE

Retired on 31 March 2022
R2022% 3831 HRME

Dr Lee George Lam, is Senior Advisor, Macquarie Group Asia. He has served
in senior roles (including Chairman, Vice Chairman, CEQ, COO, Managing
Director and General Manager] with several leading multinational corporations
including Hong Kong Telecom, A.T. Kearney, Singapore Technologies Telemedia
(Temasek Holdings), BOC International Holdings (the Bank of China Group),
Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited (CP Group), Macquarie Capital,
and Macquarie Infrastructure and Real Assets. He has extensive international
experience and connections in the I&T sphere and in general management,
strategy consulting, corporate governance, direct investment, investment
banking and asset management fields.

Dr Lam actively participates in community service and international affairs.
He is currently a member of the Governance Committee of the Hong Kong
Growth Portfolio, and the Development Bureau Common Spatial Data Advisory
Committee of the Government, Convenor of the Panel of Advisors on Building
Management Disputes of the Government Home Affairs Department. He is also
a member of the Belt and Road and Greater Bay Area Committee of the Hong
Kong Trade and Development Council, the Court of The City University of Hong
Kong, the International Advisory Board of the Lee Shau Kee School of Business
and Administration of the Hong Kong Metropolitan University, the Lingnan
University Advisory Board on Business Studies, the Advisory Board of the
Tencent Finance Academy Hong Kong, and the Advisory Board of the Hong Kong
Investor Relations Association, Honorary Advisor to the Hong Kong Business
Angel Network, a Hong Kong accounting advisory expert of the PRC Ministry of
Finance, a member of the Consultative Committee on Guangdong-Hong Kong
Co-operation (Guangzhou Nansha), Chairman of the United Nations Economic
and Social Commission for Asia and the Pacific Sustainable Business Network
and Vice Chairman of Pacific Basin Economic Council.

Dr Lam is committed to nurturing talent and youth and next generation small
and medium enterprises, and fostering the development of Hong Kong's 1&T
sector and digital economy. He has previously taught at Tsinghua University,
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, The Chinese University of
Hong Kong, Hong Kong Baptist University and The City University of Hong Kong.

Dr Lam is a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong and formerly a member of
the Hong Kong Bar, as well as an Accredited Mediator of the Centre for Effective
Dispute Resolution, a Fellow of Certified Management Accountants Australia,
the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators, the Hong Kong Institute of Directors
and the Institute of Corporate Directors Malaysia, and an Honorary Fellow
of Certified Public Accountants Australia, the Hong Kong Institute of Facility
Management and the HKU School of Professional and Continuing Education
(HKU SPACE).

Dr Lam holds a BSc in Sciences and Mathematics, an MSc in Systems
Science and an MBA from the University of Ottawa, an LLB (Hons] in law
from Manchester Metropolitan University, a LLM in law from the University of
Wolverhampton, a MPA and a PhD from The University of Hong Kong.

26 Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report

MRBETRAXRBEEDNESRER - gL
BESEBN  REEEBARBRBE KR

BiREE (XEHIZRIETAR) « TIREMR (PIRE
EE T 2RAERT) « REEAEER - EREEE K
REERERRATNEESEEZR (BEXFE 8l
B DB  BREER EFMEERAKE) -
ABHEEENERERMANR - PR S EAIR ki
B hEREE - RIS ARELR BEERE R
BRTTREEERE -

MEBLRBE2 B ERE TERERSER > QFBEHE
BEFITHRERR IE8EREGIEAEEENE
RERBTEBHERZEAZEGFEIHE - EE
FHTHERNREIEBEERNEEEUOER/NE
BEA - EBEZERR —F—HIRKERZEZR
g EERTASREBNZES EBHMTREFRE
FAHEEERRERENEZEE  BRAEHRRERY
ZE® BB CMERERZEEAEBKRESE
MFRESTEMEZEEETEE EBREREERERE
B PEARANEV RSB HEAER B
WEDVEBREGLAZEGEE  BMEEzMN K
RPFEEHERETFBEREEBREFERKT
FHEBEEEEGRIERS -

MIB LR IEERERM—A R NRE  EBEFEBRIN
BB EISEESERAEAESR > TEESE
RE - BEBREAE  EEPXARE - EBREARE
R E BT AR BRI

MEBLAEBSE AR (FIAEED) « CEDRBH A
mE - NEEEHAY  BEFRAS2E &8
EERERERARCEEEETERES BME
SEIAEREBRNMEESGRELERGEURESR
AREFXEESEREERL -

MEBLHAEEREASHERNEEL RN SR
TRTHERRTEM; SRRRHEHTARERRE
SEE; HMERKREZFRBALSN ; EBRER
HOBBRERASBTESR -



Hon Duncan CHIU
ERIERSE

Legislative Council Member of the HKSAR -
Technology & Innovation Constituency
IEGHE BRI A AR

Retired on 31 March 2022
R20226 3831 HIRME

Hon Duncan Chiu, the Legislative Council Technology &
Innovation ["T&I"]) constituency elected representative, has
committed to T&!l development in Hong Kong for nearly 20
years. He is not only a tech entrepreneur, but also a veteran
investor and an influential advocator of T&I policies. He
often speaks at forums and conferences to promote start-up
culture and guides young entrepreneurs with workshops and
mentorship. He is also active in advocating government policies
and promoting collaborations with the Mainland.

Hon Chiu is the President of the Hong Kong Information
Technology Joint Council, the Convenor of Innovate for Future,
the Chairman of Information Technology Services Committee
of the Hospital Authority, the Chairman of the Advisory
Committee of the Department of Systems Engineering &
Engineering Management of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong, the member of the Advisory Committee of The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and the Chairman of Lai Yuen
Company Limited.
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Ms Annie CHOI Suk-han, GBS, JP
MM Z1G6BS JP

Former Permanent Secretary for Innovation,
Technology and Industry
RIB R R TR BENER

Resigned on 20 July 2022
2022678208 FHE

Ms Annie Choi is the former Permanent Secretary for
Innovation, Technology and Industry. She joined the
Government's Administrative Service in 1986 and has served
in a number of policy bureaux and departments, including
the Civil Service Bureau, the Commerce and Economic
Development Bureau, the Financial Services and the Treasury
Bureau, and the Home Affairs Department. She was the
Commissioner for Innovation and Technology from August 2015
to July 2019.

Ms Choi obtained her Bachelor's and Master’s degrees in Laws
as well as Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from The University
of Hong Kong. She also did postgraduate studies in Public
Administration at Oxford University and Tsinghua University.

BENWMLEAFBFMBEERTERBETINER c BLTH1986F
MARBEZ > SEZEREERBPIRE > BEAHTEEER
BEREEERRE UREEMEBERNRBERRE - BLTR
2015F 8B E2019F 7B HERIFAIEER ©

HUTPREBABRGEB LR EZBRITEM > UREREE
BE TERTRERABRBEARSBEBAHITHEMERRIEZ -

B 2021/22 &R 27



Management Team
EEEX =

o Project Director

EFIEE 8
Will Yu
REF

Q Head of Campus Management
i e B IR AR
YT Chun
=XF

9 Head of Engineering Services
K T2 Ep4R %R
Eddie Lock

0 Head of Marketing
e R psiicln
Rebecca So
B®E

e Chief Operating Officer
HEEER
Howard Cheng
WHA
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0 Chief Executive Officer
TTEARE
Peter Yan
==

0 Chief Investment Officer
BHEREE
Johnny Chan
mRER

0 Head of Finance & Governance
BT I B R ERARER
Rays Fong
BER

0 Head of Information and
Communication Technology
iR R S
Allen Lee
F R

@ General Manager of

Le Meridien Hong Kong, Cyberport
RSB RAIEELIE
Pierre-Antoine Penicaud

i o

Head of Human Resources
ANEREER

Mary Lam

G

Head of Ecosystem Development
EREEERRE

Anita Chau

Rk

Chief Public Mission Officer
BEARGRE

Eric Chan

RER



@ chief Financial Officer

HEMEE
Adonis Lee

FEH

@ Head of Entrepreneurship
BIZERARE
Alice So
ERIERE

@ Head of FinTech
TRIRIAREE
Victor Yim
BiEF

@ Head of Leasing
THF5ARES
Teresa Wong

B0

@ Chief Corporate
Development Officer

HETEEREE
lan Chan

EREE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ARIEH

Registered Office

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
Level 6, Cyberport 2

100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3166 3800

Fax: (852) 3166 3118

Email: enquiry@cyberport.hk

Website: www.cyberport.hk

Auditor
Ernst & Young

Solicitors

Mayer Brown
lu Lai Li
King & Wood Mallesons

Principal Bankers

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Mizuho Bank Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The list of directors was set out in page 95 of the Annual Report under the

Directors’ Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Ms lvy CHEUNG Wing-han (Chairperson)
Professor Karen CHAN Ka-yin JP

Mr Michael LEUNG Kin-man MH

Mr MAK Tak-wai JP

Ms Rosana WONG Wai-man

Construction and Facilities Committee

Ms Rosana WONG Wai-man (Chairperson)
Professor Christopher CHAO Yu-hang
Hon LAU Kwok-fan MH JP

Professor LING Kar-kan SBS

Mr MAK Tak-wai JP

Entrepreneurship Committee

Professor LING Kar-kan SBS (Chairman)
Professor Christopher CHAO Yu-hang
Hon LAU Kwok-fan MH JP

Ms Erica MA Yun

Mr MAK Tak-wai JP

Mr Hendrick SIN MH

Dr Charleston SIN Chiu-shun

Mr Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing JP
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Finance and Administration Committee

Mr Victor NG Chi-keung BBS MH (Chairman)
Ms Ivy CHEUNG Wing-han

Mr Michael LEUNG Kin-man MH

Professor LING Kar-kan SBS

Mr MAK Tak-wai JP

Ms Rosana WONG Wai-man

Macro Fund Investment Committee

Mr Hendrick SIN MH (Chairman)
Professor Karen CHAN Ka-yin JP
Ms Erica MA Yun

Mr Victor NG Chi-keung BBS MH

Miss Charmaine Amy WONG Hoi-wan JP (Government representative)

Remuneration and People Committee

Mr Simon CHAN Sai-ming BBS JP (Chairman)
Mr MAK Tak-wai JP

Mr Victor NG Chi-keung BBS MH

Mr Hendrick SIN MH

Dr Charleston SIN Chiu-shun

Mr Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing JP
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
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TALENT CULTIVATION AND
DEVELOPMENT

ATIEREER




The impact of the fifth wave of the COVID-19 pandemic has affected
Hong Kong significantly, but it did not stop the momentum of Cyberport’s
development programmes. Technology has changed the lifestyle of many
and the developments of various industries in the midst of the pandemic.
It is an opportunity to fasten the pace of technology deployment, digital
transformation and Cyberport has strengthened core programmes for the
cultivation of innovative talent and entrepreneurship this year. Cyberport has
also strengthened the development of start-ups and helped them to penetrate
the GBA markets.

Entrepreneurial Journey with Cyberport

CUPP

CASP
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This FinTech focused entrepreneurship programme
offers students nominated by co-organising university
partners a unique opportunity to participate in an overseas
entrepreneurship boot camp. Winning teams will receive a
HK$100,000 grant from CCMF
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An investment fund which
targets to co-invest with other
private investors into high-
potential Cyberport start-ups

Atotal size of HK$400 million
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prototypes or early-stage start-ups mentorship through the programme
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to teams for a 6-month period
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Cyberport’s flagship entrepreneurship programmes are still the core support
for the start-up community in terms of critical funding. In 2021/2022, Cyberport
Creative Micro Fund (CCMF] provided funding to 97 successful applicants
alongside support on training, mentorship and business advice, and an
alumni network. Successful completion of CCMF also increases the chance of
admission to our Cyberport Incubation Programme (CIP).

AC%
‘ Support

Supports start-ups with resources and

Provides HK$500,000 in financial support
Rent-free working space for onsite
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Prepares incubatees and alumni for the GBA
and international market expansion and
getting up to HK$200,000 funding support to
join trade shows and exhibitions
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During the year, CIP admitted a total of 130 start-ups with support of up to
HK$500,000 funding, training, investor matching, mentoring and complimentary
working space on Cyberport campus during the incubation period of two years.

After the start-ups become mature, professional support for scale-up is
needed. To drive their growth, Cyberport Accelerator Support Programme
(CASP) has further bridged start-ups with local and global accelerators to
provide support on fundraising, market access and relevant training. During the
year, CASP supported start-ups to participate in 26 accelerator programmes
with a total of HK$2.85 million in funding support. We also sought to land new
accelerators to maximise the available scale-up support and introduced a total
of 77 qualified accelerator programmes.

CCMF

Cyberport Entrepreneurship
Programmes
Annual Highlights
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Cyberport Networking

Apart from funding, Cyberport establishes strategic partnership networks in
support of start-ups’ growth journey:

Cyberport Professional Services Network (CPN) provides comprehensive
advice, including on corporate finance, corporate services and compliance,
finance and taxation, human capital, legal advice, market development
consulting, marketing and branding services, organisational design and
technical consulting. Around 35 professional services firms/consultants have
participated in CPN. Service clinics and workshops are made available to
Cyberport community companies and start-ups via CPN.

Cyberport Enterprise Network (CEN) proactively teams up potential mature
start-ups with large enterprises in Hong Kong and the Mainland to promote
technology adoption and achieve beneficial collaboration. Currently, there are
around 110 CEN members. Through CEN, Cyberport promotes integration
of new economy companies with traditional industries and drives digital
transformation for different verticals. Strategic CEN partners also offer
additional funding support to start-ups for conducting Proof-of-Concept testing
and pilot implementation to promote adoption.
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Cyberport Investors Network (CIN) is a structured platform that engages
around 100 investors consisting of leading venture capitalists, angel investors
and private equity funds to enhance the fundraising and deal-making
capabilities of Cyberport start-ups. CIN-related projects have raised more
than US$66.5 million (equivalent to HK$518.7 million) in 2021/22. In addition to
accelerating start-up investments, CIN members also share their investment
expertise to help attract strategic investors and facilitate more collaboration
opportunities.

Cyberport Technology Network (CTN) is designed to connect global technology
leaders with start-ups to support product development and shorten time-
to-market. CTN engaged well-known partners, including Alibaba Cloud,
Huawei, AWS, Google, IBM, Microsoft, and Tencent Cloud in which Cyberport
collaborated with Google on “Igniting Startups & FinTechs Program” that
benefited over 90 start-ups. CTN partners offer comprehensive technical
training, preferential offers, such as free cloud service credits and technical
support, to ensure the start-up community can leverage the latest and
advanced technologies available in the market.

Leveraging our network of mentors, we augmented the Cyberport Mentorship
Services (CMS) by consolidating resources and expanding the mentor pool to
offer additional support to aspiring entrepreneurs. Cyberport appointed close to
80 mentors who brought in a wealth of industry domain knowledge with need-
based guidance for mentees while advising on mentees’ business plans in over
190 mentoring sessions with regards to business analytics and development,
marketing and growth strategy, product development, fundraising and
corporate governance. Our enhanced mentorship scheme enabled us to better
support start-ups in different phases of development and engendered positive
outcomes.

Cyberport Support Networks

Annual Highlights
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Youth and Start-ups Development

Promoting entrepreneurship and innovation among youth has long been one
of Cyberport's main public missions under Cyberport Academy. The Cyberport
University Partnership Programme (CUPP) has entered its seventh year in
2021/22. For the first time, the University of Cambridge Judge Business School
(CJBS) was appointed as the programme partner. Over 45 students nominated
from eight local universities formed 16 teams and participated in a two-week
online entrepreneurship boot camp by CJBS for a series of training sessions
related to FinTech and entrepreneurship, and designed innovative business
solutions to vie for CCMF, where 10 teams were granted HK$100,000 of funding
each.
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CUPP aims to nurture more I&T talents in Hong Kong. Since its inception in
2015, the programme has provided professional FinTech and entrepreneurship
training to over 400 local university students. Participating teams who
submitted their initial FinTech business proposals received over 120 hours of
pre-camp nurturing that covered FinTech, RegTech, InsurTech, WealthTech,
Blockchain, Artificial Intelligence (Al] and Machine Learning and Cybersecurity,
as well as entrepreneurial knowledge to further enhance their proposals.
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Cyberport University Partnership Programme 2021-22

Opening Ceremony

".J u 8Sall ®nw

CUPP participants attended a two-week online entrepreneurship boot camp organised by CJBS.
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To explore the innovative capacity of young minds in primary and secondary
schools, Cyberport co-organised the inaugural CAFEA Young Talent Smart City
Forum with CAFEA Smart City Limited and Cyberport Academy at Cyberport
campus. More than 80 secondary school students devised and presented their
academic articles and demonstrated their innovative proposals for smart cities.
This encourages more youngsters to contribute to the smart city development of
Hong Kong.

Cyberport has also arranged different summer training programmes for
students, such as Al Bootcamp 2021 and FinTech Summer Programme 2021
in collaboration with the Chinese University of Hong Kong (CUHK] and the
University of Hong Kong respectively, and in partnership with two community
start-ups. The two Cyberport Academy programmes aim at empowering
secondary school students who are interested in careers in the I&T industry and
inculcating basic skills and knowledge of FinTech and Al in them.

Apart from the expos and exchange programmes, Cyberport has joined hands
with DreamStarter in organising the 6th DreamStarter Programme for students
to design innovative solutions to tackle social issues. Cyberport matched a
suitable start-up for students based on their submissions to facilitate hands-on
experiential learning and engage students to make an impact on society for the
better.

Cyberport has also co-organised a robotics competition with ASK Idea
(Hong Kong) Limited, Hong Kong Computer Education Society and Da-Jiang
Innovations (DJI). The RoboMaster Youth Tournament (Hong Kong) was open to
students and teenagers to test their coding skills and problem-solving abilities
of participants, boost their team spirit and develop their sense of responsibility.
A total of 16 primary schools and 80 secondary schools who participated in this
year’'s competition. Primary and secondary school students were also eligible
for the RoboMaster Youth Tournament. The participants were able to establish
a scientific mindset for tackling their future challenges with confidence.
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In addition, there are two new Esports-related courses funded by Cyberport’s
scholarships this year. The courses are namely Esports Ecosystem and
Introduction to eSports, organised by the Hong Kong Metropolitan University
and the Caritas Institute of Community Education, respectively. It will be the
28th funded course since the inception of the Esports Industry Facilitation
Scheme (EIFS].

Cyberport Incubated Company - Gense Technologie

Primary students joined
the RoboMaster Youth
Tournament for the
first time.
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9 An alumnus of CCMF and CIP

HERCENEISMAMEE

- Winner of JUMPSTARTER 2022
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©) High achievement under incubation period:

~’ AHealthTech start-up founded in 2017, developing portable preventive screening imaging devices
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- ICT Startup Grand Award and ICT Startup (Hardware and Devices) Gold Award 2021
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From the Co-Founder: Bt SBIART ©

“We are grateful to Cyberport for supporting our entrepreneurship work, so that we can offer more
accessible and affordable medical technologies, namely portable medical imaging devices that target
preventive screening and chronic disease monitoring in various settings, including at home and clinics.
Cyberport's incubation programme and funding support has been a significant source of support in our
work to develop health tracking and diagnostic solutions to assist the local community.”
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- Co-founder and Chief Executive Officer of
Gense Technologies Limited
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Career Opportunities

To continue the success of the career fair last year, we have proudly launched
Cyberport Career Fair 2022. In view of social distancing measures, we have
organised the Career Fair on a virtual conference platform. The online Career
Fair gathered more than 150 enterprises, offering over 1,500 job opportunities
in different areas, including FinTech, Smart Living, Digital Entertainment, Al,
Big Data, Blockchain and Cybersecurity for I1&T talents via a virtual interactive
platform with elements of the Metaverse, the virtual 3D fair venue.

Participating organisations included large corporations and Cyberport start-
ups. To enrich job seekers” understanding in recruitment trends of the industry,
Cyberport organised more than 50 career forums and recruitment seminars to
discuss popular trends in innovation. We also provided online services, such as
free CV consultation, Al interview analysis and career development resources.
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In 2021, Cyberport launched its new integrated I&T talent acquisition platform,
iTalent, which helps Cyberport community members to find the right talent
while providing career opportunities for young people who aspire to join the [&T
industry. The iTalent platform enables community companies to match suitable
talents with job vacancies in FinTech, Smart Living, Digital Entertainment
and Esports clusters in a cost-effective way. It features job search, job
recommendations/reminders, CV generator, profile strength meter, practical
job interview tips, experience sharing from past internship participants, as well
as free learning resources from tech giants.

Cyberport Academy was established in 2020 to combine and improve our
education and enrichment programmes, increase capability and professional
possibilities and enhance our technology talent pool. The Youth Start-up
Internship Programme in collaboration with the then Home Affairs Bureau
(now Home and Youth Affairs Bureau) attracted 168 start-ups to provide
440 job vacancies, among which 30 were selected for students to step in the
real working world and receive practical experience. Start-ups specialising
in Smart Living provided the most vacancies, which encompassed EdTech,
RetailTech, HealthTech, Internet of Things (loT), as well as FinTech and Digital
Entertainment and Esports.

The Cyberport Scale-up Placement Programme matched 18 start-ups with 23
university students to take up credit-bearing placements, helping start-ups with
legal, communications, marketing and financial issues.

Digital Technology Upskilling

Cyberport was commissioned by the Financial Services and the Treasury
Bureau to launch a new round of the Financial Practitioners FinTech Training
Programme in 2022, following the success of the first round that attracted
over 1,200 participants. The programme aims to deepen in-service financial
practitioners’ understanding of FinTech in order to enrich the local FinTech
talent pool. The training comprises two parts, namely the Webinar Series and
Incentive Scheme. The Webinar Series received enthusiastic support from the
financial services sector, with over 7,100 in-service financial practitioners from
80 financial institutions registered to participate.

Under the Cyberport Academy, we have also coordinated different speaking
events for our community to enhance important skillsets, including the
Cyberport Academy Distinguished Fellow Speakers Series and the Green
Finance Speaker Series.
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Green Finance
Speakers Series i :

Welcome! The talk will start at 15:00 *

Sustainability-related financial risks n Hong Kang
° [ n 2) LI

GBA Development and Beyond

Cyberport has been actively supporting the development of start-ups in the
GBA. In 2021, Luo Huining, Director of the Liaison Office of the Central People's
Government, visited Cyberport and emphasised that the National 14th Five-Year
Plan clearly supports Hong Kong in building an international I&T hub, creating
huge development opportunities for young people in Hong Kong.
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Sustainability-related financial risks in Hong Kong and
Asia amid Pandemic Era was one of the Green Finance
Speaker Series Webinar hosted by Cyberport Academy to
H i ’ - promote green finance in Hong Kong.
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The Cyberport Greater Bay Area Young Entrepreneurship Programme
(GBA YEP) 2021 supported by CCMF brought young talent from Hong Kong,
Macau and cities in Guangdong, including the GBA together to develop
digital technology innovations. The programme aims to deepen participants’
experiences in launching projects and facilitating early-stage development
in a multicultural environment and to facilitate business soft-landing and
development in the GBA and the Mainland.

Our community companies have participated in different competitions, such
as the Road to GBA Start-up Challenge, jointly organised by Cyberport
and PricewaterhouseCoopers [PwC]. The 12 winning Cyberport community
companies participated in a nine-month GBA Go-to-Market Programme. The
programme provided comprehensive support and training for the winners to
expand their businesses in the GBA, including themed workshops, corporate
management consultation, product commercialisation, investment roadshows,
business matching and assistance from I&T parks in partnership with Cyberport
located in cities across the GBA and beyond.

In the Hong Kong Chapter of “Maker in China 2021" SME Innovation and
Entrepreneurship Global Contest, co-organised by Cyberport, the top three
winners were 12CO0L, MAD Gaze and Greater Bay Biotechnology, respectively.
The contest was met with great enthusiasm, drawing a record number of more
than 100 teams. As a result of the event, more than 100 patents were created
and 50 deal flows were facilitated, helping to bring promising start-ups to the
GBA. As one of Hong Kong's winners, MAD Gaze incubated by Cyperport later
on competed against other counterparts from Japan, South Korea, other ASEAN
countries and Europe. MAD Gaze became the overall champion at the "Maker in
China” SME Innovation and Entrepreneurship Global Contest.

Luo Huining, Director of the Liaison Office of the Central People's
Government, visted Cyberport.
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Cyberport has also signed the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the
Greater Bay Area Business School and CUHK to provide more training and
support and to share facilities located in Shenzhen for young entrepreneurship
and business development in the GBA. It also provides a channel for the
Cyberport community to enter the GBA market.

Looking Forward

At the forefront of promoting I&T in Hong Kong, Cyberport strives to support the
community and youth in various stages of entrepreneurship, as well as to nurture
innovative young minds. Cyberport will also continue to connect the Cyberport
community with different stakeholders to prepare for the GBA market and
beyond.
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More than 100 teams participated in the Hong Kong Chapter of "Maker
in China 2021" SME Innovation and Entrepreneurship Global Contest.
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INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT
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D espite the 5th wave of COVID-19 dealing a significant blow to the economy,
Cyberport maintained its unwavering support to the I&T industry, striving
to guide and assist the community and fellow tech companies towards new
opportunities. Cyberport continues its endeavour towards cultivating the
industry and leading the way for the technology disruptions of tomorrow.

Professional and Technology Support for Entrepreneurship
Information and Communications Technology (ICT) Development

It is imperative for the tech entrepreneur to tap into the latest and brightest
technologies with a view to creating technical advantages for their innovative
products and solutions. As the digital technology hub of Hong Kong, Cyberport
partners with global tech leaders to support the start-up ecosystem and
facilitate the development of the ICT industry.

Operating at full throttle since its inception in 2018, Cyberport Technology
Network (CTN) unshackles our start-ups from technological limitations by
equipping them with the latest technologies, tools and services through our
CTN partners. In 2021/22, we fostered 27 business matching sessions, assisting

over 40 different start-ups with their unique challenges.

This extensive network not only helps our start-ups address their imminent
needs, but also actively equips them with the ability to take on future
challenges. To facilitate a swift adoption of 5G technology, we provided
substantive support to 11 projects that used 5G technology developed by
companies in fields across Augmented Reality [AR), Virtual Reality (VR), Al and
Robotics which received support from Office of the Communications Authority
(OFCAJ's subsidy scheme for 5G deployment.

Finance Industry

To support Hong Kong as the leading international financial centre, Cyberport
has been pivotal in promoting the development of FinTech and its adoption to
support the growth of the finance industry.

Cyberport also collaborated with Google in the Igniting Startups & FinTechs
Program. With a united pursuit of morphing Hong Kong into a smarter digital
city, we made available Google Cloud credits and training/technical support
for high-performance computing (HPC) to all start-ups in Cyberport. A suite
of Google platforms is also available to our start-ups at a special discount to
cultivate innovation with the help of geospatial data, cutting-edge data analytics
and Al solutions. Start-ups can thus focus on developing their innovations
without worrying about cloud computing infrastructure and capacity.
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“Igniting Start-ups and FinTechs Program” in collaboration with Google
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7 Cyberport start-ups
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of Google Cloud credits
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Further, to fully support the ever-changing needs of community companies in
different industry contexts and operational stages, the Cyberport Professional
Services Network (CPN) connected 148 participating community companies
with professional services to foster healthy growth with the help of professional
consultants. To continue expanding this network, the CPN Circle, an online
knowledge-sharing platform developed by one of our community companies,
Lynk, was launched in March 2022. It allows participants to connect with
professional experts in real-time.

During the year, we added 12 new CPN partners, culminating in a network of
around 35 member firms, including 6 full-service consultancy firms Baker &
McKenzie, Deloitte, Ernst & Young, Grant Thornton, KPMG and PwC, as well as
other specialised consultancy firms. The weaving of this accomplished network,
coupled with active member engagement in 19 service clinics and three key
engagement programmes, has enabled community companies to benefit from
further professional support and training at reasonable costs.

FinTech in Full Force

With more than a decade of continuous efforts, we have established a leading
position in the FinTech sector and helped push the sector to ever-increasing
heights. Our FinTech community encompasses nearly 400 FinTech companies
out of around 600 FinTech companies and start-ups in all over Hong Kong, and
our contribution to them has yielded celebrated results. In the IFTA FinTech
Achievement Awards, 14 Cyberport FinTech companies were given 15 awards
across multiple categories, including four community start-ups winning awards
for 'Regulatory Tech” and two Cyberport entrepreneurs receiving recognition as
the ‘Leader of the Year'.

TRBEERSRE

Fintech Proof-of-Concept Su

Industry acclaim has not slowed our pace in further driving disruption.
Commissioned by the Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau (FTSB), the
FinTech Proof-of-Concept Subsidy Scheme (PoC Scheme) was launched in
2021 with the goal to encourage creative ideas with the potential to become
innovative financial services products to be tested out with government funding.
It has been operating at full throttle, approving 93 applications and providing
start-ups with a total grant of HK$10 million for them to test run FinTech
innovations with financial institutions. By promoting new means of cooperation
between financial institutions and FinTech start-ups, the Scheme has led to
numerous firm relationships of long-time collaboration within the industry, as
well as cross-boundary applications among Hong Kong, the GBA and ASEAN
countries.

44 Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report

Z—HE G ARAREAFTETESRKEERE
AR M ET R E TR  THIEBERERBEAE
BN 148 2 MBIt R A DR EER > BIBMIIR
BERBBRBI AR - KEERREE > 1020224
3R > MPIMHBIABLynkIiE R ENH D ZTFECPN
Circle > B2 RELFREFUYE o

Fro HAMIG12E THBEBEERBEZ I SFR
o REREMT —EABEMEABRNMBLE > 815
ANE—WEARBHEBAR - B « XBERMEH
PR~ 1880 ~ 20k ~ A (BB) BSHEFH - 28H
R@EERKE » Wk EMEEBERBATR - BiBTER
BERDEE > I LR EBIBSE19E MR &
—EEREEEY AR USEEKIRSES
FEZRMEI -

EHER TRRE

BE+ZENTBEN > RN ERMBRREILR
B > WEBEFRTEHANE - 2BAEN00BE
BB AR KRAIEE » HANEHEEREETL400
B ARBMORACTEISESLE - I TIFTAZ R
BRI ALE  F > 14EEE BT RER AT ERE5
BT R4ERIB8EIR - Hrh PRI BRI R sREE [8S
ERBEE > MBS BB R R SR T EEM)
)

The FinTech Proof-of-Concept Subsidy Scheme was
launched in 2021 to encourage creative Fintech ideas
to be tested with government funding.
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FinTech Proof-of-Concept Subsidy Scheme
MAaE bRl S RE RS B2

approved projects

fEE#HIEE

In addition, we gathered more than 30 representatives of regulatory and
professional bodies, and participants of the PoC Scheme at the Cyberport
Fintech InnoCon 2021, a spotlight event of the Cyberport Venture Capital
Forum, to showcase successful FinTech Proofs-of-Concepts (PoCs]. This
enabled networking and the convergence of ideas for the I&T sector through
practical lenses and input from regulatory experts, achieving a balanced
FinTech vision that truly caters to industry needs.

To support Asia Pacific start-ups, we continued to co-organising the
FinTech Innovation Lab Asia Pacific (FILAP) with Accenture for the eighth
consecutive year. Through a 12-week programme, start-ups with the most
innovative propositions were selected to receiving world-class mentoring from
financial institution executives and leading fintech entrepreneurs. This year’'s
programme, with 11 selected companies, including five Cyberport FinTech
start-ups, has successfully launched two PoCs, and with 21 more projects in the
pipeline. We look forward to continuing our support in strengthening start-ups’
ability to scale-up and their connections with potential investors.

With regard to rising discussions in Regulatory Technology [RegTech],
Cyberport invited start-ups and renowned industry figures to the Hong Kong
FinTech Week, in which the importance of technology used for regulation
among other latest trends in FinTech, like ESG investment and open data,
was thoroughly explored. To expedite RegTech adoption, especially for anti-
money laundering, Cyberport collaborated with the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority to organise the AML Regtech Lab, with the purpose of facilitating
more comprehensive regulations over financial institutions and ensure a safe
environment for businesses to flourish.

Continuing the conversation with our stakeholders, Cyberport received a
delegation of around 35 Hong Kong Accounting Advisors appointed by the
Ministry of Finance (MOF). The advisors learned about the latest developments
in Hong Kong's I&T sector, as well as Cyberport community start-ups’ tech
solutions for accounting and finance.
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Cyberport collaborated with InvestHK to invite
start-ups and renowned industry leaders to the
Hong Kong FinTech Week.
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To navigate the present and future of sustainable development, we also
assembled ESG trailblazers from the financial, industrial and commercial
sectors, along with Cyberport community companies, in the Cyberport FinTech
for ESG Conference 2021. We hosted a thematic breakout session on “Shaping a
Sustainable Financial Ecosystem: How to Integrate ESG Factors with FinTech”,
in which participants jointly investigated the prospects of utilising FinTech to
enhance efficiency for companies implementing ESG-related measures, as well
as methods for companies to enjoy economic benefits presented by the global
ESG trend.

Another area in the industry receiving rapid growth is WealthTech. By
housing nearly 60 WealthTech start-ups in Cyberport, we provide ample
resources for promising projects to germinate. These start-ups will become
the quintessential tools in reducing cost of wealth management services and
generating alternative investment opportunities for professional investors.

Furthermore, through the collaboration with R3, a global Blockchain leader,
Innovation Lab was established at Cyberport to help Hong Kong FinTech start-
ups seize Central Bank Digital Currencies (CBDC) opportunities. The Innovation
Lab serves as an agile transformative space where Cyberport, R3 and all the
Innovation Partners can come together to offer resources, training curriculum,
technology comprehension, industry expertise and work closely with ecosystem
stakeholders to co-create FinTech innovations in Hong Kong and the GBA.

Through the FinTech Anti-epidemic Scheme for Talent Development (FAST)
commissioned by FTSB, we provided salary subsidies for a maximum of 12
months to FinTech companies that have created a new full-time position,
fostering over 1,000 applications and more than 700 new positions being filled.
The overwhelming response from the FinTech sector helped create FinTech-
related employment opportunities for finance and technology professionals, as
well as university graduates, widening the talent pool for the FinTech sector.

Our “Cyberport Community Connect” series supported various industries
through knowledge and experience sharing sessions by industry leaders.
Seminar topics included “Building Automation & Smart Property Management -
Insider Perspectives” and “"FinTech Development During the Pandemic”, which
were co-organised with the Hong Kong Software Industry Association and the
Internet Professional Association, respectively.

Smart Living for Communal Support

Cyberport is the home to over 700 companies that focus on various aspects of
Smart Living, including HealthTech, EdTech, ArtTech, GeronTech and more. Our
goal is to continue building up this Smart Living powerhouse and give back to
our community.

Cyberport's “Braving the Epidemic” campaign was first launched in early
2020 to connect our Smart Living cluster to the rest of the world amidst the
COVID-19 pandemic. It has accumulated digital solutions focusing on Distance
Learning and Work from Home, Medical and Healthcare, Insurance and Relief
Funds, Household and Workplace Improvement, as well as community support
and volunteering activities. In a swift response to the outbreak of the 5th wave
of COVID-19 in 2022, Cyberport start-ups reinforced cooperation with the
Government, hospitals and social welfare institutions by providing telemedicine
services, COVID-19 testing, remote support service mobile apps and more.

We also expanded the campaign to Community Support and Volunteering - a

new category - to deliver more extensive aid to the community. Our start-up,
Farméé, cooperated with charities to dispense timely anti-epidemic supplies to
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over 100 elderly homes. By leveraging agricultural technology, boxes of fresh
vegetables and fruits were sent out to people under quarantine. The “Braving
the Epidemic” campaign has been recognised again by the Health Partnership
Awards organised by ETNet with the "Outstanding Leadership for Social
Innovation” Award in 2022.

T Organiver
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etnet

Our community contributions do not stop there. Over 100 start-ups are
rigorously designing HealthTech products to boost convenience of access
to medical services through digital means, including health monitoring,
telemedicine, rehabilitation and more. Four of our HealthTech start-ups were
exhibited in the Gerontech and Innovation Expo cum Summit 2021.

Despite the pandemic causing a heavy blow to the industry, retailers see a
way out through adopting creative digital solutions. Cyberport houses over
220 community companies that are focused on delivering RetailTech and
e-commerce solutions, which form the largest sub-cluster under Smart Living.
With the incorporation of Al, Big Data analytics and more into the retailing
process, these companies hold limitless potential for the revitalisation of the
retail industry.

We are also joining hands with Rotary International to create smart parks in
the '2021 Co-Create Smart Park Challenge’. By calling both youngsters and
I&T industry professionals to submit creative and feasible proposals to build
a smart park, we collected ideas filled with both imagination and insight from
experience, facilitating sustainable development with creative designs. Many
suitable ideas and proposals will be considered for implementation at the
Cyberport waterfront park as part of Cyberport's mega Expansion Project.

Cyberport understands that youngsters are the future pillars of society, and
new technology is needed to tackle current educational problems. Thus, over
170 community companies in Cyberport strive to provide EdTech solutions. We
conducted the Cyberport Venture Capital Forum 2021, in which the Edventures
Global Business Acceleration Summit was a spotlight event. Themed ‘Think Big
with EdTech, From Quick Fix to Driver of Change,” the summit saw international
EdTech experts share insights on global EdTech application, bridging the
digital divide chasm, and the prospects of Hong Kong becoming an education
innovation hub in the GBA. Presentations of unique solutions for early childhood
education and special education were also given by 12 EdTech start-ups around
the globe.

Regarding the rising demands to enhance learning and teaching through
STEAM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Art and Mathematics), we hosted
Cyberport STEAM Week to introduce the latest innovative EdTech solutions to
around 100 principals and teachers from primary and secondary schools. For
example, using loT, Cyberport start-up, FarmacyHK, installed smart hydroponic
planting machines in schools to remotely cultivate a suitable environment for
plant growth, with a view to establishing green practices in schools and fulfilling
educational purposes at the same time. Moreover, 22 of our EdTech start-ups
participated in the Learning and Teaching Expo 2021, displaying disruptive
solutions to enhance self-directed learning through Al, AR and VR, among other
technologies.
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Cyberport received the "Outstanding
Leadership for Social Innovation” Award in
the Health Partnership Awards organised by
ETNet.
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Cyberport will continue to promote innovative technology in the education
sector with our innovative community covering all major areas, such as
e-learning solutions, game experience and immersive learning, interactive
technology and school management system. EdTech has become one of the
largest subclusters under Cyberport’s Smart Living cluster.

Thriving Digital Entertainment and Esports
More than 150 Digital Entertainment and Esports start-ups have landed in
Cyberport, forming an extensive cluster of talented digital entertainment
minds. Game studios, publishers on different platforms, management and
licensing experts and diverse gaming and tournament platforms intertwine and
collaborate in harmony within this broad cluster.

Digital Entertainment Leadership Forum 2021
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The blend of many-hued creative ideas continued in our Digital Entertainment
Leadership Forum 2021 (DELF 2021), which was a three-day international
convention in a hybrid format of online and in-person participation. With the
theme of “Infinity Games - Breaking the Limits of Digital Entertainment,”
DELF 2021 devised a series of “Infinity Games” tournaments, workshops and
innovator showcases, bringing the audience through a journey of “Sea”, “Land”
and “Air". The Forum accumulated over 600,000 views online. By hosting this
Forum, we aim to position ourselves as a Digital Entertainment hub, leading
the industry to thrive and advance beyond existing standards by leveraging
disruptive technologies, business models and value chains.
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Cyberport hosted STEAM Week for educators for five
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Throughout the year, a collection of thrilling gaming tournaments was also held
in Hong Kong's esports industry. The 2022 FIA World Motorsport Championship
Esports Cup Hong Kong Representative Selection, co-organised by Cyberport,
is Hong Kong's first esports car representative selection officially organised by
the Hong Kong Automobile Association. The FiFAe Nations Cup 2022 Qualifiers
supported by Cyberport’s Esports Industry Facilitation Scheme (EIFS) will send
five selected players to represent Hong Kong to compete with international
players.

The Esports Association Hong Kong and Cyberport also jointly held the Esports
Premier League (EPL) Season 2 in anticipation of rising demands for esports
entertainment. Featured games include “League of Legends,” “Arena of Valor,”
and "Hearthstone.” Attracting over 200 teams from different experience levels,
the tournament provided winning teams a chance to compete at the Hangzhou

Asian Games in pursuit of greater glories.

Aiming to shatter the stereotypical thinking that esports tournaments, or
even gaming in general, are only for youngsters, the Hong Kong Innovative
Technology Development Association (HKITDA) and Rotary Club of Smart Hong
Kong (RCSHK] held the Elderly Esports Experience Day at DELF 2021, in which
grey-haired gamers displayed their patience and strategic thinking in a FIFA
tournament and enjoyed esports with their family members. Cyberport has been
co-organising this event since 2018 to encourage the elderly to keep up with
new technology and narrow the digital divide across generations.

Acknowledging that nurturing talents in the esports industry is paramount to its
development, we facilitated the Association of Pacific Rim Universities (APRUJ,
a network of 60 leading universities, to set up its Asia base at Cyberport. In
DELF 2021, we also collaborated with APRU to organise the APRU MetaGame
Conference to discuss future digital skills and ways to nurture university
students into young innovators and changemakers. Further, we co-organised
the first APRU Student Esports Paper Competition to give recognition to
outstanding papers submitted by students through granting certificates and
scholarships, promoting long-term investment in the esports research field.

2021 APRU
MetaGame!

DELF 2021 encompassed a myriad
of engaging activities with elements
“Land” and "Air", the
theme of the Digital Entertainment
Experience Zone, culminating in
an innovative digital entertainment
carnival.
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Industry leaders were gathered at the APRU MetaGame
Conference to discuss future digital skills and ways to
nurture university students into young innovators and
changemakers.
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Moreover, Cyberport is also supplying the flourishing esports industry with
ample financial support and personnel training. The EIFS funds a myriad of
industry activities related to competition and events, talent cultivation and
overseas exchange and development. It has culminated in benefited events
with a total prize value of HK$3 million and about 47,000 participating players.
Esports Internship Scheme (EIS) has subsidised 58 internship opportunities
and 28 training courses in tertiary institutes, and conferred 37 scholarships
during this year.

To utilise novel technologies, like Al, AR/VR, to the fullest, we co-hosted
the Arts x Tech Meetup@Cyberport with the Leisure and Cultural Services
Department (LCSD). Over 300 members from the arts and culture sector linked
up with 11 start-ups in Cyberport to discuss and demonstrate digital solutions
to performances, installations, exhibitions and media art. This allowed
the nurturing of artistic sensibilities in brand new channels, where digital
technologies are wielded to introduce artistic expressions in modern brush
strokes.

Perhaps the most popular form of art blended with technology of the recent year
is Non-Fungible Tokens (NFTs). Cyberport organised “Tech x Arts - Beyond
Imagination” - a digital art show for visual and auditory artwork tokenised into
NFTs. With inspiring pieces from post-90s illustrators and local photographers,
the exhibition showcased the potential of utilising blockchain technology
to present new channels for art publishing, as well as increased economic
benefits and ownership for artists.

Gallery of Awards

Cyberport and its community start-ups have received wide acclaim and
numerous accolades for their contribution to the wider I&T industry’s
continuous development. A total of 224 awards were given to our community
companies. To highlight a few, a record-high 28 Cyberport start-ups scored
30+ awards at the Hong Kong ICT Awards 2021. Gense Technologies stood
out by winning both the Grand Award and the Gold Award. The rapid growth
and innovative thinking of our start-ups were also recognised in the biennial
Deloitte Hong Kong Technology Fast & Rising Star Programme, with seven of
them ranked among the Technology Fast 10. In addition, three of our start-ups
had entered the top ten at the JUMPSTARTER 2022 Global Pitch Competition,
organised by Alibaba Entrepreneurs Fund, as Top 10 selections. Gense
Technologies also reaped the top winner award at the competition.

Awards Won by Cyberport Community Companies during the year

FRHSBH AR FRERE

Cyberport community
companies received a total of

HIEEHBARESH

224

awards

[EE 3]

To increase the awareness of stakeholders on current technological
circumstances and boost innovation, the ETNet FinTech Awards is organised
annually and 17 Cyberport community companies received awards this year.

50 Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report

PRICLASH » IS BIRARBAGFHEHRITE 7R
ROEBRAEE - TBRITEZRFNE I BHES
KR8~ AA BB BN E RABRNER o &
EEENRE LR MIRESE0E BT 2BEFA
#4947,000A « 1 - BIREBZIEEIDEE) 7 58(E
EHER SR 28EAE LB EIIRE - LURMESE T37E
BB o

ARDFBATIEEE  BEER ERERSHE
RPERXEBAH 7 TEMXEH HEQEIEE - Bid
3002 2R B &M ERAIALE - EEEEM11RIAI B
EHTF > R RETERE KB REKKEEZMH
SRS - ABEBREMENEEEMEES
T AEBNEERIE: » LURRTARIBEEA; o

HEERATHEMERN > EBRANKEEIERE
BRI (NFTs) o BUE B0 TRHRXEN—B T8
By —HREREREREMN REANFTHEEEEM
& BTN T RBOBREER RAHMBEMITHALLN
R BBIRF B ERBEIZIVES » IR HHARENH
HERE > DU INEM R REERAER

RIE—8

HISEREMAMERES > HANERSEZEMELY
BE —EESHESNEERE -HEBEATNESEME
WEH224ERIE - BE—IRNE > £ N2021FFEBE
BB o 28R ERE BRI b EW AL ERE
BI0HERIE; B RABRARRZR  BEAL
REHmERE RmE—EN EHEEeREs
BRREARZE 5FEF  SIFEBHBECENSERE
MF@BRMEZSE > 1T alEamREI08I xS
RIEERE - B—AE £=-HHEETACERAR
%138 > AE TJUMPSTARTERIZEKAI ¥ L& 2022 ;
BB ECEAEEESRN c RBHNMATEET
FJUMPSTARTERIZEKAIZELE B 2022785 ©

KERSEEN SRR > EERSFNEY
ERRHRIRIBRSRR L SR 0 SEHLF 7B S
BUBBREER - 5 BEBUAIMBRSERES



HEEEAR  EFESGHIHR 20218 2EFEBHKX
8% B2 HESBYAIR M 27(E1EIE - MEBHE
BEEFRABRIMEE RSN 12021 2BRRTHMH
REE rp > B0 T R A AR 408 -

Another 22 Cyberport start-ups received 27 awards at the ETNet Smart Living
Partnership Awards 2021, which is a new award with the goal of catalysing
innovative solutions to better our daily lifestyles. In addition, Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited also won the Outstanding Health
Technology Ecosystem award in the ETNet Health Partnership Awards 2021.

Cyberport Incubated Company - Rice Robotics
BIRBIEFEX - (REEBARRAF

Founded in 2019, providing widespread autonomous delivery and sanitising robot solutions
PRIZIR 20194 > {R sz B2 BBECE MM A RS S ABR S 52

An alumnus of CIP and investee under CMF

TS BIE B8 ERENTIERRE » BS HEBREEES KE

Garnered seed round investments of US$9 million

BR008ETTEFRIKE

Winner of JUMPSTARTER Awards 2021

JUMPSTARTERIRIRBIZE AR #2021 BREE

JUMPSTARTER Social Impact Award 2021

JUMPSTARTERIRIRBIZEA#22021 - REMERXEIHAIBER

Outstanding Productivity Award of The Pandemic Innovative Digital Solution Awards 2020
TUB BRI SRS /5 221822020 — R E E D48 AR

ICT Startup (Hardware and Devices) Silver Award 2020
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From the Founder:

BIMART :

“Cyberport's connection of start-ups and established corporations has been crucial to the
adoption of our products at well-known organisations in Hong Kong, including the Hong
Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre and K11 MUSEA, as well as success in scaling our
business to Asian markets like Japan and Thailand. We look forward to enhancing our
robotic products to help communities adapt to the epidemic with more effective responses.”

TS BRHEM BRI RARAZ R » HRMANERSLCSMBRAEZEZERA - HFIEMA
EmEREEMNSREETREPOMKI MUSEA £/ » WEBHA « ZEZMNHIS « FHfE
BRGREAMMAER BBt SRS TSRS - )

Victor Lee ZEEE
- Founder and CEO of Rice Robotics
Rice Robotics B A KA TEIAEEL

Looking Forward

Cyberport aims to keep at its unreserved efforts to cooperate with the
Government’'s initiatives, especially on its vision to promote enhanced
development of the I&T industry in Hong Kong, as expressed in the 2021 Policy
Address and 2022 Budget Speech. One of the examples is the collaboration with
the Hong Kong Housing Society in setting up a co-working space in the Northern
Metropolis to encourage start-ups specialising in technologies such as smart
building, property management, smart home, construction technology, green
technology, smart retail, etc. to contribute to building a smart city. Also, by
engaging in close-knit cooperative missions, Hong Kong and the rest of the GBA
can weave a strong base for the technology ecosystem, in anticipation of more
future joint endeavours, to deepen cooperation with the Qianhai Co-operation
Zone. With the shining future in sight, we plan on propelling our community
companies, as well as the rest of Hong Kong's I&T industry, to the next level.
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D igital transformation continues to generate value in traditional industries
with the integration of innovative technologies and digital solutions. The
collision of old practices and new ideas can bring value-creating opportunities
and positive impacts to the business world, as well as our society. In the
Cyberport community, we embrace the latest technologies from FinTech,
Smart Living, Digital Entertainment and Esports, to Al, Blockchain and
Cybersecurity - our community members are working to revolutionise
business practices through innovative solutions.

Cyberport has been proactively bridging business corporations, government
departments and NGOs with our community start-ups to drive business
transformation. Through leveraging win-win collaborations, all parties co-
create innovative solutions that facilitate the integration of traditional and new

economies.

Value-Added Collaborative Business Partnership

Cyberport Enterprise Network (CEN) plays a key role in relationship building,
especially in enterprise outreach and business solutions matching for high-
growth start-ups and large enterprises, to facilitate the adoption of innovative
business solutions. In 2021/22, the CEN continued to attract new enterprise
members from a wide range of industries, including banking, logistics,
insurance, office technology, medical, media and asset management and
engaged over 80 members in around 100 business matching sessions,
garnering an aggregate turnout of over 300 start-ups. A wide range of industries
have been covered in these matching sessions, including Food and Beverage
(F&B]J, transportation & logistics, property management, retail, e-commerce
and NGOs. This reflects that CEN has taken steps forward in connecting both
business and social enterprises with our digital tech community companies to
drive digital transformation in the public and private sector.

Cyberport Enterprise Network (CEN)
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Business matching sessions

00 306.
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Counts of start-ups joining CEN ! dGU
arranged by CEN business matching sessions N
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With extensive support from CEN, Cyberport has become top of mind for many
enterprises looking for innovative solutions and is regarded as their extended
innovative arm. We curated business matching sessions for community start-
ups to match with CEN members, such as DBS, Hang Seng Bank, Jetco,
Housing Society, CLP, Fujifilm Business Innovation and Prior Global Asset
Management Group Limited. Also, Hang Seng Bank has signed a cooperation
agreement with Bull B to cross-promote Bull B's education app, reflecting the
collective efforts on promoting EdTech. Furthermore, Jetco partnered with
FundingReach, LeapXpert and Quantifeed to co-sell to Jetco’'s member banks.
Such cross-sector cooperation leverages the adoption of innovative solutions
and ultimately unlocks opportunities in the market.

We have also taken the initiative to support local start-ups by establishing
formal business relationships with them through adopting their products
and services. For example, the Cyberport campus has widely adopted various
anti-pandemic technologies developed by our start-ups. Not only are we the
customer of the innovative solutions generated by our start-ups, but we also
set a great example to encourage large corporations to adopt these digital tech
applications.
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Cyberport incubatee Molekiu successfully landed adoption of its innovative mobile advertising robot RoBoMedia by Sino Group,

Cyberport CEN corporate.

HIEBIEE ARMolekiuAIFTR BN E S M A RoBoMedia I MBS B XME I B EXETERRA -

W Cyberport
CEN Enterprise
Network

IRF% x Ark Space
HFERRS

Through CEN, Cyberport incubatee Ark Space was connected to World-Link Logistics which adopted the start-up’s delivery fleet

management system to enhance operational efficiency.

Bie TYEEBREMBE) » BISBIEB QBArk Space HIRFYIRAE - BERATVAILBANZEEFEERR - BAEERE -
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Enhancing Innovations through Public-Private Partnership

At Cyberport, we always remain committed to fostering connectivity in the
public sector with technological empowerment. Supporting the Government's
Smart City Blueprint for Hong Kong 2.0 and the "iAM Smart” one-stop
personalised digital services platform, Cyberport organised an array of events
for our start-ups, tech companies and government departments in 2021/22.
The ideas exchange sessions facilitated mutual understanding among the
parties, and government departments were more empowered to understand the
benefits and possibilities of adopting digital technologies in public services.
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identity authentication for account login.

During the year, more than 30 projects from over 20 Cyberport start-ups were
awarded subsidies totalling around HK$15 million under the “Subsidy Scheme
for Encouraging Early Development of 5G” launched by the Government. With
the support from Cyberport, successful projects were launched in the market.
For example, our community member, Carbon World Limited, teamed up with
a 5G operator, China Mobile, to establish a 5G Smart Recycling Machine, which
reduced processing time for recyclables. The public-private partnership aims
to bring digital choices to support strategic city development plans, which is
conducive for Hong Kong to build a smart green city.

Furthermore, our start-ups participated in the virtual E&M I&T Day 2021,
organised by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department (EMSD).
Throughout the event, there were significant ideas exchanged regarding
innovative solutions in smart city and smart building via exhibition booths
and seminars to facilitate cooperation between government departments and
increase opportunities for translating research and development outcomes.

Through the “iAM Smart” Sandbox Programme implemented by Cyberport and the Government, Cyberport start-up MediConCen
developed API technologies; and later through the FinTech Proof-of-Concept Subsidy Scheme administered by Cyberport, the start-
up further reached collaborations with Hong Kong Life, who became the first insurance company in Hong Kong to adopt "iAM Smart”
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Strengthening I&T Industry Connections

By enhancing industry linkages, Cyberport continued to strengthen its
community start-ups’ engagement with organisations from different industries.
In 2021/22, Cyberport collaborated with the Hong Kong Software Industry
Association (HKSIA], Chinachem Group and Cyberport community companies,
including Autodesk, Sinoini and Negawatt Utility to host “Cyberport Community
Connect” thematic webinars for industry exchanges on the topic of smart
building and smart property management.

HRME

s e s
TERR

BIBEEERRN > FISBRENARETRITEAES
BB o 122021 22 E > SIS BRBBRIFTER
T EREERBBETECE > BiFAutodesk
EZRAINEERARRERBRABSIE » £
lCyberport Community Connect] =BT E > 7
BEREEARESEMESESREETIN

Co-presented by Cyberport and the HKSIiA, Cyberport Community Connect invited representatives from Chinachem Group, and Cyberport

community companies, including Autodesk, Sinoini and Negawatt Utility to share how to use smart building technology to improve

production and competitiveness, and meet new market opportunities.

RSB RS BT TERBE S EMAITCyberport Community Connect ) #58 7 EMEE R YIS BB ¥ » GiFAutodesk ~ BIZRRIREARAT K
ERABRABZUNRD ZWEH A EERERM » REEEMNRF S > MBI TISRE o

Leveraging Business Opportunities Under the New Normal

The rapid development of FinTech under the new normal has brought
tremendous business opportunities to the I&T industry. Cyberport community
members have grasped opportunities to develop various innovative FinTech
solutions applicable to wide-ranging financial services, such as personal
finance, insurance, trade finance, regulation and compliance, and ESG
investment. In 2021/22, Cyberport collaborated with the Internet Professional
Association to organise a seminar on the potential of WealthTech and InsurTech
to capitalise on new market potential amid the epidemic. Our community
member, WeSure is an insurance agency platform under Tencent who shared
their experience of expanding into the GBA insurance market through strategic
partnerships. Another community company, 10Life, developed an online
insurance product comparison platform, which cooperated with that cooperates
with Hong Kong insurance companies to help consumers make better-informed
insurance choices, attaining total premiums exceeding HK$50 million last year.
Although the epidemic has brought many challenges to the financial services
industry, it also created digital transformation opportunities, which enhanced
the competitiveness of the industry and encouraged continued advancement of
FinTech.
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Speakers of the Cyberport Community Connect webinar shared insights on how corporates utilised technology during the
pandemic to adapt to the changing market and create new business opportunities for the GBA.
ICyberport Community Connect  #B4& s B BOE M E N Z T EEWMFERE FERARBER TS » WkAKERAIGEHAIERE

' Established in 2016, one of Asia’s leading on-demand tech delivery platforms that covers
both local and international deliveries, offering timely delivery services to over 10,000
clients on a daily basis
PR2016F AL - BEMERIYPRERNRET 82— » EFHRERM R EFREER
%> |RAE10,0008 5 A IR HE KRR ERIER
Exemplary CMF investee embodying innovation and disruption of the conventional logistics
industry through its asset-light business model and customisable delivery services
; MBS BRERERES PISSMEEEE | BIBHEEEXEBEINIEH AR
pickupy % > IR ETA S S T BB /)

' Raised about US$15 million in Series A and Series A+ funding and US$37 million in

1w

Tw)
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1 Series B funding to grow its e-commerce platform
) IRATR R A+ERERE R SHEX1,5008 57t » U BIRENHEE3, 700857 » UEREE
FHEETA
,; Participated in the gong-strike ceremony at HKEX to celebrate outstanding fundraising

achievements
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From the Co-Founder:

BEEMART !

“Pickupp empowers businesses by disrupting traditional logistics with technology, building
an open, connected and holistic supply chain network where over 270,000 customers can
simplify complex logistics solutions that cater to their evolving delivery needs with over 33%
cost savings.

Cyberport's continued support enables Pickupp to build and scale the network across Asia-
Pacific (APAC) cities.”

Crystal Pang TR Pickupp U TBE @A > RIPI « BRI RSTENMARIE - WiBiB270,0005 % S 13008
" Cofounder and Chief Executie SRICEREIRIRE - MBS 2 CHERER » LR M%MNRA > HTADEMAE o
Pickopp B B AR S EEER: BB EPickupp AT A SRR S RAERRABAS © |
Looking Forward BERK

Entering the post-pandemic era, Cyberport will continue building and BABRKZIERHR > IS BRFEBE IR MNARE RGN
enhancing cross-sectoral relationships for integrating old and new economies.  &1F > UB & BT LT - SIS BRI BEIES
Cyberport will also continuously act as a digital technology innovation hub, EMSRILZAIMIEBA > BFFIEHEMERFNERES
working closely with all community members and stakeholders to steer digital — fF » HEESITS ENEREFREE o

transformation across industries.
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I t was an opportunistic period to boost up deal flows in promising start-ups set
out to deliver innovations for the future.

To continue serving our community start-ups, Cyberport amplified efforts in the
Cyberport Macro Fund (CMF) and Cyberport Investors Network (CIN) to connect
venture capital to innovative solutions that speak for the digital future. This year,
our community start-ups raised HK$18.2 billion worth of funding and accumulated
funds exceeding HK$33.9 billion. We anticipate continued growth in global
investments in new and emerging technologies and innovation.

Funding Digital Transformation Beyond Boundaries

To further unlock opportunities for growth, our community companies need
dedicated funding at each stage of their development. The CMF, our co-
investment fund that specialises in Series A stage funding and beyond for
promising solutions and enterprises, has invested a cumulative total of
US$21.64 million (equivalent to HK$168 million) in 23 projects, with co-
investment reaching US$189 million (equivalent to HK$1.47 billion] since its
inception, reaching a co-investment ratio of 1:8. To support the development
of the I&T sector, we have further injected HK$200 million into CMF. Investees
during the year include GRWTH, GOGOX, Rice Robotics, Hex Trust and Dash
Living, who have all served to catalyse the digital disruption in Hong Kong.

This year, the CMF invested in five iconic start-ups, including two key strategic
focuses - FinTech and Smart Living. The investments have attracted co-
investments of approximately US$80 million (equivalent to HK$624 million).
Following the expansion of investment scope in April 2021, the CMF made later
stage investments of over HK$100 million together with BOCOM International
in GOGOX. This was designed to accelerate community company GOGOX's
business expansion as a digital-driven intra-city logistics solutions provider.
On 24 June 2022, GOGOX became the first Cyberport-incubated unicorn to be
successfully listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Further, Animoca Brands
and ZA International are two additional unicorns that have been nurtured from
Cyberport last year.

The CMF will continue to play a strategic role to bring in capital for start-ups in
the future by leveraging and broadening its network with different stakeholders.
The CMF will take the initiative to engage with promising companies to enable
greater positive impact and value creation.

Cyberport Macro Fund (CMF)
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Further supporting our community companies’ exploration beyond the local
market, the CIN has been a dedicated platform to line up institutional investors
with prospective investee companies demonstrating high growth potential in an
effective and efficient way. The CIN facilitated investor-startup communications
through matching sessions and has cumulatively initiated investment-matching
activities with over 100 investors. The projects span across a wide range of
technologies and applications, including FinTech, Al and Big Data, HealthTech,
EnvironmentTech, EdTech and Metaverse, closely aligning with our three focus
clusters.

In support of the CIN, the Cyberport Venture Capital Forum (CVCF) has
been an annual flagship event to facilitate investor matching. 2021's CVCF
was presented in a brand-new hybrid format, utilising both online and in-
person participation. The event featured an Innovator Showcase for promising
start-ups and an exclusive Investor Matching platform for deal-sourcing and
fundraising. This year, under the theme of "Venturing for Success: Resilience,
Growth & Opportunities,” participants reflected on recent challenges and
explored how technological innovations can bring about change in the
venture ecosystem and wider community. Global venture capital experts and
entrepreneurs shared their passion and expertise on the latest fundraising
strategies, market dynamics and value creation to effectively attract investors’

interest and stay ahead of the evolving era.

Having attracted a record 120,000 views on the CVCF online interactive platform
and more than 2,500 attendees, CVCF 2021 was honoured to have 100 renowned
speakers share their insights, and to have organised over 110 innovator
showcases, connected over 250 investors, received more than 60 project
presentations and facilitated around 350 deal flows.

Cyberport Venture Capital Forum 2021
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The Cyberport Venture Capital Forum 2021 facilitated around 350 deal flows.
12021 BAB5 A1 A E Il | (R RAISS 0EIE B A Y ©

Supporting Ambition Towards the GBA and Belt & Road

As an international finance hub and an emerging centre for the I&T
industry, Hong Kong has the capability and responsibility to contribute to the
development of the GBA. Cyberport will continue to ignite collaborations across
the GBA through increased engagement and outreach with enterprises in the
Mainland to support start-ups expanding their businesses to the GBA.

This year we have committed to expanding our partnership network through
signing strategic MoUs to further equip and support our start-ups.

MoU with the Authority of Qianhai: Deepening collaboration between Hong
Kong and Qianhai on the technology and innovation front by providing unique
opportunities in market expansion, technology support and investments
to start-ups on both sides and fostering closely-linked interactions and
development among young people in the GBA.

MoU with Hang Seng Bank: Helping community start-ups and companies
secure and enhance their businesses in the GBA by providing end-to-end
support on banking and financial services, FinTech and venture capital access.

MoU with the Greater Bay Area Business School: Equipping young
entrepreneurs with the knowledge of operating in the GBA and critical success
factors, including business analytics and digital transformation, through jointly
organised workshops and seminars.

MoU with the Chinese University of Hong Kong (CUHK]:
entrepreneurs in Hong Kong and the GBA through a collaboration framework

Nurturing

where start-ups are offered matching opportunities in market expansion,
technology support and investments with the goal of creating a more diverse
and sustainable Shenzhen-Hong Kong technology ecosystem.

Furthermore, Cyberport will continue its collaboration with 12 technology parks
in the GBA to speed up start-ups’” access to the Mainland markets and provide
support in various aspects, including legal matters, business operation and
talent recruitment.
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In addition to providing services for our community companies, Cyberport
is dedicated to connecting thought leaders and industry experts across the
region to share their insights with our entrepreneurs. At the 6th Belt and
Road Summit, Cyberport hosted one of the sessions in the breakout forum
themed "Embracing Digital Technology in the GBA for the Post-pandemic
Era” and invited industry leaders, as well as two community start-ups, to co-
organise a fireside chat and a panel discussion themed “Empowering Smart
City Transformation Across GBA in the Post-pandemic Era” and "How Digital
Technologies are Enabling Innovation for the New Normal,” respectively.

Thamatic Breakout Session WIS

oS bmic Era
¥ HERERE

BELT&ROAD _, 0. e OO
SUMMIT | muwmis | 1-2/9/2021 nmmmme DO

Embracing Digital T

BRT AHBLBDRERE  HEBTROINEEERN
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BRE M —RelgRiE) - Su5EN TERERA
RAEENSEBRRER I ATE > |7 —5EED
HimlE ; B8 TEREBRABEAERE2WT Y
KB TERE R 40 ) Bl LA 55 A5 T BV AU 3 R AR AE ) 5
WIRET > DHBEEREH > UAmBEHEa b
HERS o

The 6th Belt and Road Summit connected thought leaders and industry experts across the region to share

their insights.

FRET—H—EakRE ER T HENSEEGNTESER » 22PN ER -

Leaping Into Global Opportunities

Beyond the GBA, Cyberport also supported |&T startups and entrepreneurs
to step onto the global stage. The Overseas/Mainland Market Development
Support Scheme (MDSS) offers up to HK$200,000 of financial subsidy for CIP
and CCMF grantees, incubatees or graduates to further develop into Overseas/
Mainland markets through participating in Overseas/Mainland delegation
missions, marketing exhibitions, local marketing exhibitions, landing services
and online or offline marketing services targeting Overseas/Mainland markets.
Launched in 2018, the MDSS has supported over 90 start-ups to attend 166
events, exhibitions, delegation missions or tap landing services. With strong
momentum, Cyberport incubatees and alumni have expanded to various
Overseas/Mainland markets, including Mainland China, Asia Pacific, United
States, Europe, the Middle East and Africa.

Sponsored by Create Hong Kong (CreateHK] of the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region, we also co-organised “Scaling Hong
Kong to the Nordics” with the Finnish Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong.
The programme included a series of seminars, exhibition, business matching
activities and company visits for Hong Kong-based digital entertainment and
game development companies to connect with counterparts, investors and
players in the Nordic Region. A delegation of 12 Cyberport companies visited
Sweden and Finland, as well as participated in the "Nordic Game Conference”
in Malmo, Sweden on 17-20 May, sponsored by CreateHK. In addition, we
collaborated with Huawei and the French Trade Commission to facilitate
exchanges between Cyberport start-ups in FinTech and Smart Living with
French corporates. Two French start-ups from our community, CHEKK and
BistroChat, shared their experiences on working as foreign start-ups in Hong
Kong.
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List of Selected Companies Announced!

AETVE S CNTERTENT s

W 12 SELECTED COMPAMES 2022

B S

L

The “Scaling Hong Kong to the Nordics” programme included a series of seminars, exhibition, business matching
activities and company visits for Hong Kong-based digital entertainment and game development companies to connect
with counterparts, investors and players in the Nordic Region.
TR YRR R B HIBIRES B stEAREASBRBREREHARATNRM—RAVNHNE - BHE - 55
RHRATSEED > HBIEBRHENFEE « REERAMBEE o

Cyberport Incubated Company - ConsenSys Hong Kong Limited

EEBIEZH % - ConsenSys Hong Kong Limited

N

~’ Aglobal Ethereum software company founded in 2014

BRI 2014 FRVIRIKAK IS (Ethereum) BRI E]

Focuses on business blockchain solutions, including strategic blockchain consultancy,
design and development of blockchain solutions and token solutions development
EAMERSNREERRERABERS 2 » WAMPHe AR - BIERIFTHRE
Awarded the CBDC project by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority on the application of
the CBDC for cross-border payments
EEBSRMEERSITETRIN P RIFITHAIEH(CBDC) MBI IMEER

Current incubatee of CIP that took part in the gong-striking ceremony at HKEX to
celebrate outstanding fundraising achievements
EB2EEBRZINHEREINIRE TSESBEA8 BB AR » URBMMED
ERMERFHALR

1=

1=

1=

From the Corporate Representative:

EEARTTR

“Cyberport’'s support has enabled us to build a deeper local network and collaborate
with partners from the Hong Kong community to advance the application of innovative
technologies. We have been awarded blockchain projects by different central banks, as well
as private institutions in the APAC region. Through Cyberport’s networking platforms, we

Charles d’ Haussy have also identified synergies with Cyberport’s community start-ups.”

- Managing Director TES BB DX FFERMENZLESAABNERLR - BEBRACE » HEHAIRTEHRER -
APAC at ConsenSys FIER T M@ R E A ISR TR A ISR TR IEIEE o @RS ER N TA » HfIEES
ConsenSys T KB EHEES BB BRI R ERBEEIE

Looking Forward BEXRK

Cyberport will continue to leverage its strengths as a connector to support #ISEREBEREH RIRMERT > IFREIARTE
start-ups in scaling up their businesses in the GBA, Asia and beyond. The CMF  K&& ~ SR EMMERBEETR o [#I5ERERI1%
and CIN will continue to act as our two major levers in funding and connecting ~ E&1H M#ES B B EME I BEBIEABISEAYTA
international investors. We look forward to continuing to bridge capital and ®¥MERHBZEEABRLEENMAZT o BIEEHF
expertise from the Mainland and overseas markets to support the growth of our 44 A B EEL N EIEIIHBNE R RFEN
start-ups. o REVRIBENERE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
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With climate change at the forefront of international concern, it is vital
for businesses and organisations to rethink how they operate sustainably.
Cyberport considers climate change to be a crucial topic that guides everyday
decision making from management of the premises to funding start-ups that
focus on this issue. We strongly encourage forward thinking and innovation
to foster a society that thinks outside the box when tackling climate change.
Achieving carbon neutrality, in particular, has been one of our key corporate
goals. We have thus carried out several decarbonisation initiatives, including
setting up a solar panel system in generating electricity, replacing a new air
conditioning system to increase energy efficiency, recycling greywater to
support campus operations, among others.

Cyberport will continue to work towards a more sustainable future by
taking appropriate actions in becoming a more environmental and socially
conscious enterprise. We build on our existing strengths and are constantly
exploring new initiatives to attain net-zero carbon emissions and alignment
on established international standards like the 17 United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs).

This chapter includes Cyberport’s ESG actions and targets during the financial
year ended 31 March 2022. We share how we align Cyberport’s communal
strengths in technology with ESG and further elaborate on environmental
aspects, including energy consumption and emissions reduction. During the
year, Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited [HKCMCL) was one
of the finalists nominated for Facilities Management Team of the Year at the
annual Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Awards. Together with
Jones Lang LaSalle Hong Kong (JLL Hong Kong), we were highly commended
for our collective efforts in creating a vibrant community to facilitate growth of
1&T in Hong Kong. Furthermore, we have identified key climate risks relevant
to our operations that are detailed in the environmental section of this chapter.

Environmental Statistics
IRIBEUE
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ENMRE > MANUAIFHEN S NEE - HIBBR ARG
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Energy Savings Hfift

Reduced
b

Planted

19,620

== carbon dioxide emissions trees?
TRES F R EhHRE 1RAA?
Solar PV System KIZAERE RS w
Generates around Offsetting ()@
BEEEND BEIEHEY

55,000xwn

electricity annually

FREA

39,050k

:Fﬁ carbon dioxide emissions per year

ZHChRBIKE

! Figures were calculated based on the amount of carbon emissions per unit published on Hong Kong Electric Investments’ corporate website

[https://www.hkelectric.com/en/customer-services/carbon-calculator).

HIRTHIREE BB B IR E A B (https://www.hkelectric.com/en/customer-services/carbon-calculator) ARG B BB E s & ©

? Based on the calculation of a 5-metre tall tree absorbing carbon dioxide at a rate of 23kg per year.

HU—RARSHBA—FREA23 TR = AIChEE
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BPISTEEIS B3 E R AARE TR E L KIGHEEBRAR
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We will expand our use of renewable energy as we plan to install more solar
power systems at Cyberport 3 and Cyberport 4A. The target for these systems is
an annual electricity generation of 80,000kWh, which will reduce over 57,000kg

of carbon dioxide emissions. BERE o
Consideration of Climate Risks RiERBEE

ER—BSRFEET URFRFINOEE > 058
BT HRE > RO THRTERR > BETHTEHRN
AR - MAIB RIRERETE - B5)H &S
BERNEHNTE - B BRABUERIF R
TR o I RPIEERL R LUEHZERE
R o

As an enterprise that seeks continuous progress to remain competitive,
Cyberport stays up to date with market standards to better understand how
the industry is evolving and expectations are changing. We have performed
an assessment on climate risks to identify the risks and associated impacts
for our organisation. Both physical and transitional risks are identified, which
are further explained in the table below. In addition, we have implemented the

necessary measures to address these climate risks.

Type of Climate Risk Specific Risk

HERE

RIRE AR

Potential Impacts
BEE

Resilience Measures

FEHETE

Physical e  Extreme weather e  Cyberport may be affected e Launched the "Braving the
=8 events (flooding, by frequent extreme weather Epidemic” platform providing

extreme heat and
tropical typhoon)

o MK REMH CF
K~ 1R U 1= R e B
TR )

e Overpopulation
leading to spread
of disease [e.g.
COVID-19)

o AOBFEIHIER
B (Bl B &

%)

events due to climate change,
so it is subject to more damage
and higher risk of human
endangerment. Appropriate
safety measures need to be
implemented to address this
risk and minimise harm to
tenants at Cyberport
EHREEE > EREBRIAE
NBIRRARENEE » AHRER
FEARBIBIR - 2 NEBEEEE
SRR - IS EREZRIEE
WL 25800 > EEEERR R
BROHERHNEE

As the human population
continues to grow, more
densely populated areas will
be prone to illnesses and
infections (e.g. COVID-19)
BEAOTEER > AOBEE
it EiFE R 7 HIRERM R
(BUanErEms)

Contingency plans and
precautionary actions are to
be taken to protect members
of the community where
Cyberport operates
FESRENE 2 MRS 5+ 8RN TRk 1S
I > DUREESS BB A B Y2
BEhzz

information on applications to fight
COVID-19

HEH TBAE T E - RHUEREY
MERENNEER

Implementing safety measures
on campus during the COVID-19
pandemic to reduce transmission
(see ‘Care for Tenants’ section of
this chapter for more details)
RIERIEIE » FEENERSER
Z2H > LU RS EE 1BRET
% H2RAER TRIRER 1 —H)

Collaborating with well-trusted
contractors and procuring safe and
high quality construction materials
for building projects, such as the
Cyberport Expansion Project to
withstand extreme weather events
SESERNAERGE  HHEE
BEIEE (NS BRE ) RER
2MEENREMH DURRBIERR
=

Supporting and investing in start-
ups focusing on sustainability to
reduce the impacts of climate
change and extreme weather events
SEFNRE LRI EE R A BT
Al > DUBERIGEEARmRR
EMHRE

Hosting workshops that cover ESG
topics to increase awareness on
climate change and sustainability,
thus, better preparing for responses to
extreme weather events

EPPREESC TEN IR > LIRS
HRIESEMTFEERNER - 1
M EERRERRE M EEFBIER

66 Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report



Type of Climate Risk

R E R

Specific Risk
B E KR

Potential Impacts
BELE

Resilience Measures

FEHETE

Transitional e Policy risk e Regulatory and policy changes
Ea o BIERER in achieving a low-carbon

Reputation risk
BRER

economy affects the overall
operations of the business.
Any non-compliance will
adversely affect the reputation
and reliability of Cyberport.
Cyberport needs to continually
transition to renewable energy
sources (i.e. solar, wind
and hydro], reduce carbon
emissions and incorporate
innovative and sustainable
designs to remain competitive
in the industry

o EREEREENEBEMEIN
R GREBELENERE
g NEERTA > MEHE
BREEMAEMERTHE
&2 TERIBEHNR > 2U5ER
AP BEER (BIKSEE « ASE
FKEB) ~ B BRI - WERAA]
AR RERRET  ETEPR

Consolidation and coordination with
tenants to provide one-stop shuttle
buses to minimise traffic congestion
and reduce carbon emissions
HEIRREASHR - BRI ERE
B DURER SIS mZE MR DB

Installation of Electric Vehicle (EV)
charging stations at carparks

EREBREBH S

Redevelopment of the Le Méridien
to include sustainability features
(see ‘A Greener and More Efficient
Cyberport’ section of this chapter
for more details)

HEVEALE  URATRERERS
& GHERE2HAR TERRB AL
W58 —80)

Cyberport Expansion Project
to implement carbon neutrality
initiatives (see ‘A Greener and More

R5EN

Efficient Cyberport’ section of this
chapter for more details)

o FIRBUSEBIERSE > DUETERFMN
1 GEIEAE 2 AR TERREMH
RSB —&D)

e New Lotus Pond at Cyberport for
greenery enhancement at the
premises

o BUEEITRECM o BINARIEER

e  Reskinning recycling facilities
to enhance efficiency of sorting
materials

o ME[MUWERE > LURSDERIRE

Leveraging Technology in Our Climate Change Response

Technological advancements have enabled the world to pursue countless
opportunities and make ideas into a reality. With Cyberport’s focus and strength in
technology, we have leveraged upon this specialty to respond to ESG opportunities
and will continue to integrate technology in addressing climate change.

We have enhanced our waste management this year by refining our recycling
facilities throughout our campus. The ‘Big Belly’ smart recycling bins are solar
powered and installed with an intelligent sensor and compressor that compacts
recycled content when they are full and sends notifications to cleaning staff for
collection. Through this upgrade, clean energy is utilised and working efficiency
is increased. The ‘Big Belly bins have also been reskinned with vibrant colours
for users to easily identify the types of materials to be placed in the associated
bins. Proper categorisation and handling of recycled goods are crucial in
reducing overall waste generated.

ERRHER RIREE
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ourful recycling bins are solar powered with intelligent sensor
talled that allow them to send notifications to cleaning staff for
lection when they are full.
CIEMEIEI AR ARG HE
AN EBBERNBEASETIE o

22 HE T B AEMERES - BRI RK WS

Cyberport has implemented a 'smart system’ for its washrooms around the
campus, such as installation of sensors that provide updates to the Facility
Management team on performing emergency repairs. We have worked with
Softhard.I0, a Cyberport incubatee, since 2019 to utilise Indoor Air Quality (IAQ)
sensor technology in restrooms to freshen up the environment.

We continue to use disinfection robots created by our incubatees, Rice Robotics
and Avalon Steritech, on our premises in the wake of the COVID-19 pandemic to

reduce the spread of the virus and maintain a clean space for everyone.

With EVs currently dominating the market in response to lowering carbon
emissions, Cyberport has engaged its incubatees, oneCHARGE Solutions and
LHC New Energy Company, to apply an EV charger system at carpark areas to
boost convenience for EV owners and encourage a cleaner alternative to travel.
We will continue to engage in raising our campus capacity for EV charging.

A Greener and More Efficient Cyberport

During the year, Cyberport has furthered its efforts in applying sustainable
features in its daily operational activities.

Improving the Tenant Bus System

We noticed that the independent operation of bus routes by Cyberport and
individual tenants results in duplicated efforts, spare seating capacity
and unnecessary traffic flow. As such, we have undergone an initiative to
consolidate our tenant bus fleets with the purpose of increasing efficiency, as
well as lowering the carbon footprint of our campus. Through centralising bus
routes, we have increased the utilisation of bus capacities and reduced the
campus’ carbon emissions by around 55 tonnes per year. We complemented
this consolidation effort with a new tenant bus app rolled out in January 2022,
with features including real-time update of bus locations and instant alerts in
the case of special situations.

ATy

isinfection robot busily cleans the premises to ensure a germ-free
ironment.
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Centralisation of bus route reduced
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Al Chiller Plant Optimisation System

We are currently working on the enhancement of the Chiller Plant System,
which is a two-year project to be completed in early 2023. The scope of this
project entails replacing chiller units and heat exchangers that have already
deteriorated and implementing an Al chiller plant optimisation system. The
new system minimises manpower used on operational control and energy use
due to the automatic tuning based on the actual cooling demand. Through
saving energy and electricity, Cyberport is able to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions and contribute to a greener and low-carbon society.

2

As part of the Al chiller plant optimisation system, we have installed
new chiller plant systems with energy saving features.
ERATBRESKEAECREN 2D > RAIRET ABAHENERRSK
AR ©

Smart Car Park System Improvements

Cyberport’'s Smart Car Park System improvement project helps enhance
management efficiency and reduce the reliance on manpower, by enabling
contactless parking and use of e-payment, as well as providing real-time
information on the availability of parking spaces via an application. Expected
completion of this project will be in early 2023.

Le Méridien’s Sustainability Components

Le Méridien Hong Kong went through a major facelift this year. The renovation is
meant to provide state-of-the-art accommodations, refined dining and excellent
multi-function spaces. Sustainable elements are incorporated into the design
of the hotel, including Waterlogic slim water taps in place of plastic bottles
to deliver purified water in guestrooms, smart room control technology for
guest comfort and energy savings (includes passive infrared (PIR) and motion
sensors), residential bathrooms amenities, the use of glass and other recyclable
elements in guestroom items to reduce single use plastics. Sustainable food
sourcing by the restaurants includes seafood suppliers with World Wildlife Fund
(WWF) certification, as well as the smart hydroponics farm run by Cyberport
company, FarmacyHK. Cyberport also partnered with O-Park to manage and
minimise food waste. We have also deployed robots developed by Cyberport
company Rice Robotics to provide smart concierge services for hotel guests.
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We have replaced the heat exchangers that have already deteriorated to
enhance efficiency of the system.
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The Smart Farm of Le Méridien uses
smart hydroponics farm technology
introduced by Cyberport start-up
Farmacy HK.

UERBEENE SRS - ERRBEEE
Farmacy HK3|#B9% BE KBS RIS Rl ©

B 2021/22 &R 69



ments are incorporated in the guest rooms of Le Méridien.
TR RTTR ©

Cyberport Expansion

For our continued growth, Cyberport is currently undergoing expansion [i.e.
Cyberport 5] to provide new facilities, including office and co-working spaces
equipped with advanced smart office facilities, data service platforms providing
convenient and flexible cloud data services, a flexible multi-function hall with
a capacity up to 800 persons and additional ancillary facilities, such as food
and beverage services, convenience stores, retail shops, etc. Cyberport 5 will
also designate part of the low zone floor spaces as greenery open spaces,
sunset observation decks and naturally ventilated wind corridors for the
public’s enjoyment. The surrounding environment will be enhanced with the
revitalisation of the existing waterfront park landscape features and smart
facilities. Sustainability has been a key consideration at multiple stages of
this project, from the design of the building to the construction processes and
selection of construction materials used. Various sustainability design features
will be incorporated in the Expansion Project, such as building-integrated
photovoltaics panels, rainwater harvesting system, smart building management
and monitoring system, EV charging system, Al-optimised high efficiency chiller
and solar-powered lighting and landscape furniture, etc. Modular Integrated
Construction (MiC) Technology has been implemented, whereby free-standing
integrated modules completed with finishes, fixtures and fittings are transported
from a prefabrication factory to the site for installation. To complement this, we
have engaged in transportation of construction materials by sea to reduce road
traffic and the associated GHG emissions. We have also sought ways to minimise

noise pollution and shorten the overall construction time.

Minimising Construction Waste

Cyberport has implemented initiatives to minimise construction waste
through performing need-based restorations only upon the departure of
tenants. Furthermore, the Cyberport Expansion Project observes BEAM Plus
certification criteria and aims for at least 30% of construction waste to be
recycled during the construction processes.
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Sustainability has been a key consideration at
multiple stages of the Cyberport Expansion
Project. Cyberport Expansion Project includes
many sustainability features.
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Co-building for a Sustainable Community

Cyberport has joined the 4T Partnership established by the Government to align
its targets and actions to achieve carbon neutrality by 2050.

Putting a spotlight on ESG topics will help enhance public awareness and
understanding, which is what Cyberport has been doing in the past year. We
shared our spaces with JLL Hong Kong to host Journey to Zero Carbon with
Technologies in December 2021 to provide attendees insights on how to apply
technologies effectively to reduce carbon emissions. Furthermore, we hosted
the Cyberport FinTech for ESG Conference 2021 to allow businesses to explore
how to enhance efficiency when implementing ESG measures, as well as
“Shaping a Sustainable Financial Ecosystem: How to Integrate ESG Factors with
FinTech” with start-up representatives sharing how the industry is promoting
global ESG and sustainable development.
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Cyberport co-hosted “Journey to Zero Carbon with Technologies” to inspire attendees with insights on how to apply

technologies effectively to reduce carbon emissions.
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Industry leaders shared insights on how newly developed data

management system ESG Dashboard can enhance the efficiency of ESG
report preparation at Cyberport FinTech for ESG Conference 2021.
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Representatives from the Cyberport FinTech Community, PortageBay and
ProMEX, discussed how start-ups could help companies seize opportunities
brought by global ESG trends.
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RICS Awards 2021 - HKCMCL received a highly commended recognition as the
“Facilities Management Team of the Year” alongside JLL Hong Kong

Together with JLL Hong Kong, Cyberport was highly commended as Facilities
Management Team of the Year at the RICS Awards Hong Kong 2021 due to our
outstanding achievements. In addition, we were the finalists for the Agency Team of the
Year and Property Management Team of the Year.

Social
Care for Tenants

Cyberport continues to strive for the wellbeing of its tenants. The COVID-19
pandemic has posed many challenges to businesses and continues to risk the
health of those who operate within this community. Cyberport has contributed
its efforts to alleviate the burden of its tenants throughout these difficult times,

standing by the principle of fostering a healthy community.

Cyberport welcomed the Government's measure to provide a six-month rental
concession for Cyberport’s commercial tenants through the éth round of Anti-
epidemic Fund, to help Cyberport's commercial tenants weather operation
pressures and challenges arising from the current pandemic. From 1 April
to 30 September 2022, the Government will grant a 75% rental concessions
for all Cyberport office tenants, Smart-Space users in Cyberport's main
campus and Tsuen Wan, as well as retailers and restaurant operators. The
rental concession is capped at 5,000 sq. ft. of rental space per tenant. A total
of some 930 companies and start-ups are expected to benefit from the rental

concession.

Staying true to our goal in preventing the spread of COVID-19, we have
implemented appropriate measures to ensure the health and safety of our
community. We utilise disinfection robots that carry out daily campus-wide
disinfections, anti-epidemic coatings applied to communal areas, temperature
checks at entrances to screen out individuals with symptoms and other
standard safety measures. In doing so, we ensure the physical wellbeing of

everyone and do our part in combatting the pandemic.
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We applied anti-epidemic coatings to
communal areas on the Cyberport campus.
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We installed equipment to conduct
temperature checks at all Cyberport
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Disinfection robots make their rounds on
campus to perform adequate cleaning and
sterilisation to avoid the spread of illnesses.
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We care for our tenants” mental wellbeing and understand the importance of
beautification and accessibility to promoting good mental health. Cyberport
constructed a new Lotus Flower Pond within its campus, which provides a
recreation area for both Cyberport occupants and visitors to relax and rest. At
the Arcade, we adopted pet friendly measures to increase accessibility and
convenience for pet owners.
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lora and fauna surrounding the newly constructed Lotus Flower Pond.
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Care for Our Staff

COVID-19 has impacted multiple facets of our lives, which has compelled
many organisations to reassess their working practices. There is no doubt
that Cyberport has demonstrated progress to improve employee work-Llife
balance and health by implementing work from home arrangements. We also
offer reimbursement for employees who conduct the COVID-19 test at private
laboratories and/or purchase Rapid Antigen Tests to alleviate their financial
burden. To align with the Government’s efforts in vaccinating everyone in the
community, we encourage our staff to make their vaccination appointments and
provide them with one day paid leave to recover. We will closely monitor the
COVID-19 situation and have appropriate measures to allow our employees to
work in a safe and positive environment.

Training workshops and programmes are attended by Cyberport employees
to ensure proper procedures are followed and that they are equipped with
the necessary skills to meet day-to-day demands of their positions. Topics on
training events include data privacy, safety and emergency and IT security.
Cyberport actively assesses the adequacy and effectiveness of the training
programmes to further refine the content and to continue developing our talent
pool.
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Serving the Community through Technology

As Hong Kong's premier tech epicentre, Cyberport strives to serve the
community through its use of innovative technology. Whether it is to support
businesses, green initiatives or charities, technology is utilised to support our
community.

The iAM Smart Sandbox Programme, implemented by Cyberport and the Office
of the Government Chief Information Officer (OGCIO), has continued to support
its benefactor companies and businesses this year. Member companies grew
and exceeded 300 entities, including 230 companies from the financial and
FinTech sector. The programme has successfully helped seven organisations
roll out iIAM Smart enabled services, including five financial service
organisations. Service to member companies has also extended to cover free
technical training, where 10 training sessions were held as of 31 March 2022.

We are also committed to supporting community start-ups with their
innovative solutions, for example through 5G technology. We are providing free
development kits to help shorten start-ups’ development time of 5G solutions,
as well as free exhibit areas to allow them to showcase their 5G solutions in our
CyberlLab. In addition, we are coordinating with telecommunication operators
to provide opportunities for the commercialisation of 5G solutions to enhance
overall lifestyle and business applications. Other than entertainment and F&B
projects, start-ups have also utilised 5G in green technology projects. For
example, the high speed and low latency of 5G has enabled Carbon World, a
green technology company, to upgrade its self-developed PET bottle recycling
machines. With the help of 5G, the bottle identification process is shortened
from twenty to five seconds. The new technology has also made real-time
machine inspections possible. Advancements enabled by technology such as
this one, has helped make recycling more efficient and encouraged individuals
to “go green” in their everyday lives. Further to this green technology example,
different 5G rental cases have been facilitated for the use of our community
members during the year.

In the spirit of giving back to the community, we held several Corporate Social
Responsibility related events to support various initiatives. These events
included ones with the theme of innovation and charity events such as Yan Oi
Tong's Charity Walk Day, where more than 1,000 individuals attended.

Undeterred Connections

Despite the pandemic limiting gatherings and events, we were able to follow
proper social distancing regulations while maintaining strong community
bonds and connections. CyberLab is a platform for technology companies and
start-ups in the Cyberport community to showcase their I&T products and
solutions. Cyberlab successfully organised 98 visits to connect start-ups and
industry members with proper social distancing in place. Showcases were
divided into four major areas, namely esports, green, health and robotics, with
the goal of providing a spotlight and additional support to these ventures. A
new “Live Stream Experience Zone” - a venue for livestreaming performances
and seminars was established in December 2021. “CyberArena” has also
been upgraded with enhanced safety and entertainment technologies. The fire
protection system was enhanced after renovation, with the addition of new
sprinkler pipes, which improved safety measures of the venue.
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ive Stream Experience Zone extends outreach to audiences on
L platforms.
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Other details on the social impact created by Cyberport in realising its public
missions are covered in different sections of this report. For more details, please
refer to the respective “Public Missions” sections.

Corporate Governance

Cyberport places corporate governance at the core of its operations and instills
accountability, transparency, fairness, ethics and integrity as the cornerstones
of its corporate governance framework. A comprehensive governance structure
has been established consisting of the Board of Directors and six Board
Committees to monitor and oversee relevant matters of Cyberport on behalf
of the Board, while an internal audit team was set up to review the controls
sufficiency, effectiveness and efficiency of operations and compliance with in-
house policies, as well as relevant laws and regulations. There is a wide range
of expertise and backgrounds within the Board of Directors, enabling Cyberport
to have specialised insights and knowledge to handle various aspects of its
operations. Newly appointed Board Members are given a tailored induction
programme to familiarise themselves with Cyberport’'s objectives, business,
major developments and other specific directorial duties. Furthermore, policies
on corporate governance are in place, including a Code of Conduct, Conflict of
Interests and Whistleblowing Policy to lay out responsible and conscionable
behaviours to be enacted at the workplace. For more details on Cyberport’'s
corporate governance practices, please refer to the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 76 to 93.

Looking Forward

Cyberport looks forward to continuing the ESG journey in creating a sustainable
and green future. Our upcoming eco-friendly initiatives, including the solar
power system project at Cyberport 3 and 4A and the Cyberport 5 Expansion
Project will further our commitment to elevate the standards and operational
strategies to becoming an environmentally and socially conscious enterprise.
Stay tuned for more exciting news to come, as we venture into another chapter
of innovation and entrepreneurship.

rLab showcases innovative solutions from the Cyberport
unity.
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The board of directors (the “Board” or “Board Members”) and the
management (“Management”) of Hong Kong Cyberport Management
Company Limited (the “Company”) are committed to maintaining and
upholding high standards of corporate governance. The Company believes
that good corporate governance provides the foundation for good corporate
performance and is essential to accomplishing our public missions, meeting
the expectations of our stakeholders, and attaining long-term and sustainable
growth. The Company has therefore adopted accountability, transparency,
fairness, ethics and integrity as the cornerstones of our corporate governance
framework.
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(As at 31 March 2022)
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Board of Directors

The Board has the collective responsibilities for the leadership and control of
the Company within a framework of prudent and effective controls. It governs
and leads the Company in a responsible and effective manner.

The Board sets the corporate strategies and approves the operating plans
proposed by Management. Each Board Member has a duty to act in good faith
and in the best interests of the Company.

To ensure effective discharge of duties by Board Members, the Board assumes
the responsibility of ensuring that each Board Member has spent sufficient time
to attend to the affairs of the Company. All Board Members are kept abreast of
the development of the Company through regular Board meetings, and receipt
of regular financial and business updates.

Board Members may seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense to discharge their duties.

The Company has also arranged appropriate Directors” and Officers’ liability
insurance to indemnify the Board Members against liabilities arising out of
the discharge of their duties and responsibilities as the Board Members of the
Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman of the Board, and the Chief Executive Officer ("CEO")
of the Company are complementary, but more importantly, they are distinct
and separate with a clear and well established division of responsibilities,
enhancing independence and accountability.

The Chairman of the Board, who is a Non-executive Director, is responsible for
managing and leading the Board in setting the Company’s overall directions,
strategies and policies, as well as monitoring the performance of the CEO.
Apart from making sure that adequate information about the Company’s
business is provided to the Board in a timely basis, the Chairman provides
leadership for the Board, and ensures views on all principal and appropriate
issues are exchanged in a timely manner, by encouraging all Board Members to
make a full and effective contribution to the discussion. Under the Chairman’s
guidance, all decisions have reflected the consensus of the Board.

The CEO, who is appointed by the Board as a remunerated full-time employee
of the Company, is responsible to the Board for implementing the strategy and
policy as established by the Board, and managing the day-to-day business of the
Company.

Board Composition

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprised of 15 Directors, of
whom all are Non-executive Directors, Mr Simon CHAN Sai-ming (Chairman)
lappointed on 1 April 2022), Professor Karen CHAN Ka-yin, Professor
Christopher CHAO Yu-hang, Ms Ivy CHEUNG Wing-han, Hon LAU Kwok-
fan, Mr Michael LEUNG Kin-man, Professor LING Kar-kan, Ms Erica MA Yun
lappointed on 1 April 2022], Mr MAK Tak-wai (appointed on 20 July 2022], Mr
Victor NG Chi-keung, Mr Hendrick SIN, Dr Charleston SIN Chiu-shun, Ms
Maggie TSOI Tsz-shan (appointed on 1 April 2022], Ms Rosana WONG Wai-
man and Mr Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing. This structure effectively ensures the
independence, objectivity and impartiality of the Board's decision-making
process and oversight of Management. Non-executive Directors bring an
external perspective, constructively challenge and advise on proposals or
strategy.

78 Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report

BER
EERBABEMANNEEES I8 5 HEA
BEAAT URERLAERMENEEEARSE
AR o

EERERNECERRAERHAEREMEZNE
B5tEl - ERR/BMBIIERTELZHMERE T
KRB RENDAATE FEITHE °

HEREFEMNEBAMEITHS > E=ZRAEEMERF
BREEFMENAERDBHSEARBANES - TR
EEPMEITEZEEREZR IR REHWNER
MUBREBER » TRAREZER -

ZREEFMEANEEBR TSRBIEERR » YU
BITHRE - ARERRARERIE -

FRABREREEFRNEREREZEERSHREE
BEERRE - UREMARSEBTARATDESTHB R
BEMSHERNEREE

FERATHAER

KABESRREFNITEAAE (TTTHAEE) BBHE
EiER > BEMEMENACORE  BEDTITAR
BRE o USRS o

EERIFEAFITES  aHEERFEEER
BERBFITER A - REREEK > URERTH
MENER - TEBRTHRFREESERESERELR
BIEBHNEMERI TEEREEER » MR
BELERMENEEREZ LNTRFHE2EMAN
NER > BRUFARAEERRGENEEBER ISR
BER-EXRENEET  EERMAREIREES
BRI ML ©

THESHEERZT > AERARHEHMASE > 8
BNTESRMAAITNRBRER » UREEERQF
HEES -

EERNAER

RAFERHI > EERFHBISBRESF > HAIFNIT
BE STEMRMBRLE (XF) (52022451 HEZS
F) ~ REBHIT - EHER ~ RERZ LT ~ 2IE
o~ RN EREBUR  BRU L (5020224
4B 1HEZF) ~ BEERIE (FR2022F 7520 H B Z
F) ~ AERSTE ~ SURAY ~ EBRELT  RIEH
Rk (3202245 1 HEZ) ~ EBHL T RIBEE
Sk o ERABENMBERESHARBREAHTER
BEENEIIY FERERAEN - FFRITESRLEN
REEHINFERE > B FEMERNEERE SR



All Board Members are appointed by the shareholders without receiving any FIEEERAEIHRREE > BB WEE A
honorarium, generally for a two-year term and subject to re-appointment upon %> —REBAMERTHREREEBERE -

expiry of their terms.

Board Composition
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Board Diversity

We recognise the importance of ensuring an appropriate balance of skills,
knowledge, experience and gender on the Board to our corporate governance.
Our Board Members, while one of them is from the Government, with others
come from various business fields, including technology and innovation,
accounting and finance, commercial, building construction, town planning,
public affairs and academic, have both the breadth and depth of relevant
experience to steer and oversee the business of the Company.

The current mix of our Board Members is balanced and well represented by
IT professionals, business executives, government representatives and other
industry professionals and leaders. Biographical details of the Board Members
are set out in the section “Board of Directors” in this Annual Report. The
Company also maintains on its website (www.cyberport.hk) an updated list of its
Board Members identifying their roles and functions.

Board Functions

The Board directs the management of the business and affairs of the Company.
The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board.
The Board focuses its attention on providing overall strategic guidance to the
Company on its business development, finance and oversight over corporate
governance. These include strategic planning, financial and business
performance, governance and risk management, as well as human resources
and remuneration issues.

At the regular Board meetings, Management reports the Company’s business to
the Board, including the Company’s operations, progress of projects, financial
performance, legal issues, corporate governance, risk management, human
resources, sustainability, corporate responsibility and outlook. Together with
the discussions at Board meetings, this ensures that Board Members have a
general understanding of the Company’s business and sufficient information to
make informed decisions for the benefit of the Company.

In addition to the reqular financial and business performance reports submitted
to the Board at its regular meetings, the Board also receives monthly financial
and business updates with information on the Company’s latest financial
performance. Directors can therefore have a balanced and comprehensive
assessment of the Company’s performance, business operations, financial
position and prospects throughout the year. All Board Members have access to
Management for obtaining necessary information.
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Directors Continuous Training and Development Programme

Each newly appointed Board Member is given a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction programme so that they can discharge their responsibilities
to the Company properly and effectively. The programme consists of meeting
with the CEO and Management, briefings on the Company's operations
and major developments, and visits to the Company’s facilities. New Board
Members are able to familiarise themselves with the Company’s objectives,
strategies, business, operations and internal controls, as well as the general
and specific duties of directors.

Further, all Board Members are provided with a Directors” Handbook on their
appointment, which sets out, amongst other things, directors” duties, code
of conduct, declaration of interests and the terms of reference of the Board
Committees. The Directors’” Handbook is updated from time to time to reflect
developments in those areas.

Recognising that development is an ongoing process, Board Members were
invited to attend forums and conferences on information technology in the year
under review ("Year”). A briefing session on “Northern Metropolis Strategy”
hosted by the Hong Kong/Shenzhen Co-operation of Policy Innovation and Co-
ordination Office was arranged for the Board on 6 December 2021 to share the
transformation and development of northern Hong Kong into an international
I&T hub.

Board Proceedings

Board meetings are held regularly and no less than once every quarter.
Additional Board or Committee meetings to consider specific matters can be
convened when necessary. All Board Members have full and timely access
to all relevant information about the Company and may take independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense, if necessary, in accordance
with the approved procedures, so that they can discharge their duties and
responsibilities as Board Members.

Schedule for the regular Board and Committee meetings in each year is made
available to all Board Members before the end of the preceding fiscal year.
Furthermore, notice of meetings will be given to the Board Members before
each regular meeting.

Meeting agenda for regular meetings are set after consultation with the
Chairman and CEO. In general, the agenda and papers are sent to the Board
Members five working days before the intended date of the meeting.

Board Members may attend the Board meetings in person or through electronic
means of communication.

Matters to be resolved at Board meetings are decided by a majority of votes
from the Board Members allowed to vote, although the usual practice is that
decisions reflect the consensus of the Board. The process of the Board is
reviewed from time to time to keep abreast of regulatory changes and best
corporate governance practices.
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Board Meetings

During the Year, the Board held four meetings in hybrid format with overall
attendance of 89.3%.

Key matters considered/resolved:

Strategic plan and objectives

Annual plan and performance targets

Mid-Year key performance indicators review

Annual report and audited financial statements
Management accounts and reports

Amendment of code of conduct for Directors

Amendment of code of conduct and business ethics for staff ["Staff Code”)
Oversight of senior management

Corporate goals and performance assessment

Annual performance assessment of Management
Transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance

Apart from Board meetings, the Chairman had sessions with Board Members
without the presence of Management to discuss human resources matters.

Strategic Planning

The Board has continued to review the strategies of the Company to identify and
assess the opportunities and challenges the Company may face, and to develop
a planned course of action for the Company to generate and preserve long-term
value.

The direction of Cyberport Three-Year Strategic Plan 2020/21 - 2022/23 was set
in the 2019/20 so as to continue its public mission to drive Hong Kong's digital
technology development. Progress of implementation of the key initiatives in the
strategic plan was reported to and reviewed by the Board Members.

Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”), and of the Group’s result and cash
flows for the Year. The Board has prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis, and has adopted appropriate accounting policies and applied
them consistently. Judgments and estimates have been made that are prudent
and reasonable.

In support of the above, the financial statements presented to the Board have
been reviewed by Management. Management is responsible for finalising them
with the external auditor and then the Audit Committee.

In addition, all new and amended accounting standards and requirements,
as well as changes in accounting policies adopted by the Group have been
discussed and approved by the Audit Committee before adoption by the Group.

Board Members acknowledge their responsibilities for ensuring that the
preparation of the annual financial statements of the Group is in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

Further, in order to make a comprehensive assessment of the Group's

performance, the Board has reviewed an annual plan during the Year and the
monthly reports on financial results and business performance.
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Code of Conduct

The Company is a public body under the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
("POBO"). Accordingly, Board Members are regarded as “public servants”
for the purpose of POBO. The Company is fully committed to the principle of
honesty, integrity and fair play in the delivery of products and services to the
public.

The Board is collectively responsible for the management and operations of the
Company. Board Members, both collectively and individually, are expected to
exercise fiduciary duties and duties of care, skill and diligence to a standard at
least commensurate with the standard established by the laws and regulations
of Hong Kong.

Delegating the functions of the Board is permissible but does not absolve Board
Members from their responsibilities or from applying the required levels if they
pay attention to the Company’s affairs only at formal meetings. At a minimum,
Board Members should take an active interest in the Company’s affairs and
obtain a general understanding of the Company’s business.

Board Members should regularly attend and actively participate in Board and
Committee meetings, and prepare for them by reviewing all materials provided
by Management.

Board Members are required on their first appointment, on an annual basis, and
as and when necessary thereafter to declare any interests that are or may be
relevant and material to the business and operations of the Company. They are
also required to inform the Company Secretary of any changes in their declared
interests or any new interests that may arise as soon as they become aware
of such interests. A Register of Directors’ Interests is kept by the Company
Secretary and is accessible by the Board Members.

Every Board Member is also required to observe his/her ongoing disclosure
obligations (including, without limitation, requirements to notify changes in
personal particulars to the Company Secretary and/or circumstances that may
affect his/her independence, and to declare material interests, if any, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract or a proposed transaction, arrangement
or contract with the Company] under the Companies Ordinance.

A Board Member cannot cast a vote on any contract, transaction, arrangement
or any other kind of proposal in which he/she has an interest and which he/
she knows is material except with the approval of the Board/Committees. For
this purpose, interests of a person who is connected with a Board Member
(including any of his/her associates) are treated as the interests of the Board
Member himself/herself. A Board Member may not be included in the quorum
for such part of a meeting that relates to a resolution he/she is not allowed to
vote on, but he/she shall be included in the quorum for all other parts of that
meeting. This reduces potential conflicts which might otherwise arise between
the Company’s business and an individual Board Member’'s other interests or
appointments.
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Board Committees

During the Year, the Board has six standing Committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Construction and Facilities Committee, Entrepreneurship
Committee, Finance and Administration Committee, Macro Fund Investment
Committee and Remuneration and People Committee, to assist it in carrying its
responsibilities.

Each of these Committees has specific written terms of reference, which set out
in detail their respective authorities and responsibilities. The terms of reference
of all Board Committees are reviewed from time to time in the light of the
Company’s evolving operational, business and development needs.

Attendance records of each individual member of the Board during the Year are
shown on page 89 of the Annual Report.

All Committees are accountable to the Board for their recommendations and
decisions. The meeting processes of the Board Committees follow closely those
of the Board. The interface between the Board and Board Committees are:

All Board Members may attend any Committee meetings as observers

Board Members are free to access the papers of any Committee meetings
through the Company Secretary

Full minutes of Committee meetings are sent to Board Members for
information

The following sets out details of Board Committees, principal duties and key
matters considered or resolved during the Year.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee ("AC”) is responsible for overseeing and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control, risk management system,
regulatory compliance, and the Company’s internal audit function. It is
responsible for overseeing the integrity of the Group's financial statements and
the application of financial reporting principles, and the Company’s relationship
with the external auditors and their independence assessments. As at 31 March
2022, the AC comprised six members, all Non-executive Directors, Mr Victor NG
Chi-keung (Chairman of the AC), Professor Karen CHAN Ka-yin, Ms lvy CHEUNG
Wing-han, Hon Duncan CHIU, Ms Annie CHOI Suk-han and Ms Rosana WONG

Wai-man.

Principal duties:

Review and endorse audited financial statements for the Board's approval
Make recommendations on the appointment of external auditor, approve
its audit fee and terms of engagement, and oversee the Company’s
relations with the external auditor

Review accounting policies

Oversee internal controls, financial controls, risk management system and
internal audit function

Key matters considered/resolved:

Annual audited financial statements

External auditor’s report, objectivity and effectiveness of audit process
Risk management and internal control review

Risk register and risk assessment results

Internal audit job plan

Internal audit review reports

Whistleblowing cases
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Construction and Facilities Committee

The Construction and Facilities Committee ("CFC”] is responsible for
monitoring and overseeing the capital works related matters, facilities
management and related consultancy services. As at 31 March 2022, the
CFC comprised six members, all Non-executive Directors, Ms Rosana WONG
Wai-man (Chairperson of the CFCJ, Professor Christopher CHAO Yu-hang,
Hon Duncan CHIU, Ms Annie CHOI Suk-han, Hon LAU Kwok-fan and Professor
LING Kar-kan.

Principal duties:

Approve or recommend the capital works projects (including new
development, re-development and construction] to be undertaken by the
Company and the modality for facilities management of the Company's
premises

Endorse and recommend the planning and development parameters for
new capital projects including but not limited to master development plan,
design, programme, budget and facilities provisions and related headcount
requirements

Approve the award, variations/claims and commercial settlement of
contracts for capital works, facilities management works and related
consultancy services

Monitor the progress and control the expenditure of capital works projects,
and facilities management matters

Review and approve the capital works and facilities management related
policies

Key matters considered/resolved:

Monitor the progress of Cyberport Expansion Project and hotel renovation
works

Review campus facilities management works and contract awards
Transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance
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Entrepreneurship Committee

The Entrepreneurship Committee ("EC”) is responsible for overseeing the
administration and management of the start-up and entrepreneurship
programmes and events implemented by the Company, such as the Cyberport
Incubation Programme ("CIP”), the Cyberport Creative Micro Fund ("CCMF"],
the Esports Industry Facilitation Scheme ("EIFS”) and the Cyberport Accelerator
Support Programme. As at 31 March 2022, the EC comprised of eight members,
all Non-executive Directors, Professor LING Kar-kan (Chairman of the ECJ,
Professor Christopher CHAO Yu-hang, Ms Annie CHOI Suk-han, Hon LAU Kwok-
fan, Mr Hendrick SIN, Dr Charleston SIN Chiu-shun, Ms Rosana WONG Wai-
man and Mr Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing.

Principal duties:

Oversee the administration and management of the start-up and
entrepreneurship programmes and events implemented by the Company
Monitor and review the operational or financial plans and proposals,
administrative matters, business directions and strategies in relation to
the following three aspects:

- Sparking creative ideas through the CCMF Scheme

- Nurturing technology start-ups through the CIP

- Boosting technology start-ups’ fundraising capability

Approve the appointment and composition of the Entrepreneurship
Committee Advisory Group ("ECAG") which comprises venture capitalists,
business executives, technology industry professionals, academics, and
trade association members

Approve applications for the start-up and entrepreneurship programmes
of the Company

Monitor and review the progress of the start-ups of the programmes

Key matters considered/resolved:

CIP vetting results and its enhancement

CCMF vetting results and its enhancement

Cyberport Greater Bay Area Young Entrepreneurship Programme vetting
results

EIFS and Esports Internship Scheme vetting results and its enhancement

Digital Entertainment Leadership Forum
Cyberport Venture Capital Forum

Internet Economy Summit

Cyberport Career Fair

Cyberport University Partnership Programme
Changes for the composition of ECAG
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Finance and Administration Committee

The Finance and Administration Committee ("FAC”) is responsible for
monitoring and overseeing the finance and administration aspects of the
Company. As at 31 March 2022, the FAC comprised of six members, all Non-
executive Directors, Hon Duncan CHIU (Chairman of the FAC], Ms Ivy CHEUNG
Wing-han, Ms Annie CHOI Suk-han, Mr Michael LEUNG Kin-man, Professor
LING Kar-kan and Mr Victor NG Chi-keung.

Principal duties:

Approve any budgeted expenditures, commitments and payments by the
Company

Decide and approve appropriate action in response to any unplanned
matters or approve any unbudgeted expenditures, commitments and
payments

Review and approve the corporate policies including leasing, procurement,
finance, administration, marketing and IT

Review resources for the execution and implementation of the approved
business plans and corporate development strategies

Key matters considered/resolved:

Review and endorse annual budget and office rental rates for the Board
approval

Mid-Year financial review

Review and endorse Cyberport Expansion Project financing arrangement
for the Board approval

Tenancy related matters

Macro Fund Investment Committee

The Macro Fund Investment Committee ("MFIC”) is responsible for overseeing
the administration, management and overall performance of the Cyberport
Macro Fund ("CMF"] and approval of the CMF related investments. The CMF,
with a total size of HK$400 million, aims to provide seed to Series A stage and
beyond funding to Cyberport digital entrepreneurs ("DE"] to assist them to
accelerate, and to promote the development of the venture capital ecosystem
for DE in Hong Kong. The CMF is an investment fund which targets to co-invest
with other private and public investors in the Cyberport DE. As at 31 March 2022,
the MFIC comprised five members, including four Non-executive Directors, Dr
George Lam (Chairman of the MFIC), Professor Karen CHAN Ka-yin, Mr Victor
NG Chi-keung and Mr Hendrick SIN, and a government representative, Miss
Charmaine Amy WONG Hoi-wan.

Principal duties:

Review and approve CMF related investments recommendations from
Management
Oversee administration, management and overall performance of the CMF

Monitor and advise on the operation of the CMF

Key matters considered/resolved:

Review on CMF investment portfolio

CMF applications and exit

Review and endorse the first CMF beyond Series A investment for the
Board approval

MBRITHREES
MBRTHEEEaTRRZREERRATNMHRT
IEEHS o 0202238310 » B KRITHEEGHE N
BEE  BRFRTESE > sHABEREE (BRI
KEEFEF)  RARL LT ~ WL L ~ 2R
& ERENBIR RAERRIE

TEME
BRARBERREMS » AIERAR

HETARRIERRENBREENITE » 5
BHERRIIATEENFER « BERAR

e hEHBEEE > SFEEE - FE M5B
1T~ HSRERR R
MEMENEBESBNBEAF B RRE AT
RENMETERIRE

KER BANEEEE
BERBIFERERMAERE > MEBER
HE
FRHARS RS
BERBOHISBEES BB 20 UHES
Bt
HBERER

HIEBRENEESREE
HEEREAXESZECOEEE BEBRER
EEDINTH  EEMERERE  DURHE N8558
REAX  ETHRRRE - THEBREAXES N
MRREESMEEIT > MBEE NBUERRAIER R
HEFEAREFEARRIU LRE - BEIAREBRE
B THBHEBAEREEENERE > HEBEREK
BIERE—SRBAIETE - THEBREAEES)
BEREES > EEREMAARARKREEHRF
BREHE BB XA ZER © 1020224638318 »
PEBREAXETSZEGHELEME > ENT
FRTEEMKER L (IS ERERAXESZEET
B) ~ REBEBEHE - MERAERAEBAEUR—
BEAREEHELL -

FERS
e RBZEEREMREL TBIERERAIZEST)
BRI ERE
BE B EREAIEET INTH - BIEMERE
wE
BR MG EREAIEZFET NEFLMILREHE
)

KBS BANTEEE
e THUSBREREES NKREHES
MRS BREAXRES INHFEIRY
BERRF THEBREAEES BEARRR
& LUHERRIE

B 2021/22 &R 87



Remuneration and People Committee

The Remuneration and People Committee ("RPC"] is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on organisational structure and policies on
staffing, remuneration, employment, discipline and dismissal, with reference
to the Company’s overall goals and objectives. As at 31 March 2022, the
RPC comprised six members, all Non-executive Directors, Dr George Lam
(Chairman of the RPCJ, Ms Annie CHOI Suk-han, Mr Michael LEUNG Kin-man,
Mr Hendrick SIN, Dr Charleston SIN Chiu-shun and Mr Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing.

Principal duties:

Review staffing, remuneration and employment policies and strategies
Advise the Board on staff-related issues, including annual corporate goals
and performance measures, grading and pay structure, variable pay and
retirement schemes

Review the criteria for assessing employee performance and make
recommendations to the Board

Review the salary increase and annual performance bonus for the senior
executives and general staff, and make recommendations to the Board
Board approves the annual plan and delegate RPC to review the
performance of the C-levels management of the Company, with reference
to the Board's approved Key Performance Indicators ("KPIs"] and
objectives

Key matters considered/resolved:
Corporate goals and performance measurements
Annual performance review of C-levels management
Staff engagement and retention
Amendment of the Staff Code
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Meeting Attendance GEHELR

A summary of meeting attendance of Board Members in meetings of the Board ~ 122021F48 1B E2022F3831 B EFE » EFHM
and Committees for the financial year from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 is BREFEKEFZEGNIRLFLHEMBHRIIN

provided in the following table. TR e

Meetings MFIC

e BEER

Board Members BRIER

EEEMA 7 SZAR
Number of meeting(s) held BITEERY 4 2 5 3 3 2 3
Lee George LAM [Chairman) MRIE (EFE) 4/4 - - - - 2/2 3/3
Karen CHAN f 5= & 3/4 2/2 - - - 2/2 -
Christopher CHAQ H#Hgie 3/4 - 5/5 3/3 - - -
lvy CHEUNG B ELG 44 2/2 - - 3/3 - -
Duncan CHIU ARER 44 1/2 415 - 3/3 - -
Annie CHOI " or her alternate ZOE (B RESR) 414 2/2 5/5 3/3 3/3 - 3/3
LAU Kwok-fan® 2 E) 3/4 - 4/5 3/3 - - -
Michael LEUNG ZEX 3/4 - - - 2/3 - 3/3
LING Kar-kan EEED 3/4 - 3/5 2/3 3/3 - -
Victor NG REsR 4/ 2/2 - - 3/3 2/2 -
Hendrick SIN iar s 4/4 - - 3/3 - 2/2 3/3
Charleston SIN i ik 4/4 - - 3/3 - - 3/3
Charmaine WONG® =2 =L - - - - - 11 -
Rosana WONG HEH 3/4 2/2 5/5 2/3 - - -
Eva YAM™ [5i:3 =20 - - - - - 11 -
Eric YEUNG BER 4/4 - - 3/3 - - 1/3
Average Attendance Rate FEigHER 89.3% 91.7% 86.7% 91.7% 94.4% 100.0% 88.9%

Notes: Mg :

(1) All the Committee meetings including AC, CFC, EC, FAC and RPC were attended by (1) FiEEEZEeMeS0IEE8e  BUREHES
the alternate to Ms Annie CHOI. g CEERZEY  MBRTBEEERFTWRASE
ERHENRZ TNEELRE -

[2)  Hon LAU Kwok-fan was appointed as Board member, CFC member and EC member (2] RIESEERR2021E48 1 BEESTIAESEERAE -
with effect from 1 April 2021. BERENEEEEERCERESZTERERE

(3] Miss Charmaine WONG was appointed as alternate Director to Ms Annie CHOl and  (3) &EiEH8E4+BR2021F6A8AESEAIRBLTHE
MFIC member with effect from 8 June 2021. TESAEBEREEESTEGEE -

[4)  Miss Eva YAM resigned as alternate Director to Ms Annie CHOI and ceased to be MFIC  (4) {EHBLZETBER2021E6B8HBEENBL tHETE
member with effect from 8 June 2021. B TABRTIIEELEAEESEZEEEE -
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Meeting Procedure

The Board and Committees convene meetings on a regular basis. Special
meetings will be held as and when necessary. Management circulates papers
prior to the respective meetings to provide members adequate information
on a timely manner to facilitate their deliberation of the issues and decision-
making. The respective Board/Committee Secretaries record the major points
of discussion, recommendations, decisions and action items arising from the
meetings. Outstanding matters are followed up by the relevant departments,
and progress updates are reported at subsequent Board/Committee meetings.

Company Secretary

All Board Members have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for ensuring
that the Board procedures are followed and Board activities are efficiently and
effectively conducted. To this end, the Company Secretary facilitates the Board
and Management to adhere to Board processes as updated from time to time,
and the provision of sufficient information to the Board by Management.

Management and Staff

Management and staff, led by the Company's CEO, are responsible for
managing the Company’'s day-to-day operations and implementing the
strategies and directions determined by the Board. The performance of
Management is reviewed with reference to the KPIs and objectives approved
by the Board. The annual emoluments of the Company’s five highest paid
employees by band are disclosed under note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements on page 141.

Guidance on the ethical behaviour of the Company has been well defined in the
Company's Staff Code. From time to time, the Staff Code will be reviewed and
fine-tuned, covering such issues as prevention of bribery, conflict of interest,
acceptance of gifts and advantages, handling of confidential information
and preservation of secrecy, intellectual property, and outside business or
employment. ICAC is invited to give briefings on prevention of bribery and
conflict of interest to the employees of the Company on a reqular basis. Staffs
are also reminded of the need for compliance with the Staff Code from time to
time.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board has overall responsibility for the risk management and internal
control system of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness. The internal
control system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and to provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company aims to maintain a high standard of corporate governance and
enhance transparency and accountability. With the assistance of the internal
audit team, Management reviews the Company's internal control system with
reference to the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway
Commission ("COS0") framework as recommended by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The review is designed to identify and evaluate
significant risks associated with key processes and the effectiveness of
related controls in mitigating the identified risks. Independent reviews of the
effectiveness of controls are performed by the internal audit team.

Through the AC, the Board reviewed and concurred with the Management’s

assessment that the overall risk management and internal control system was
effective based on the results of internal reviews performed during the year.
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Internal Audit

The internal audit team reports directly and regularly to the AC on control
sufficiency, effectiveness and efficiency of operations and compliance with
in-house policies and procedures and relevant laws and regulations. Audit
assignments are performed in accordance with the annual internal audit job
plan as approved by the AC.

Independent reviews of financial, business and functional operations and
activities by the internal audit team are conducted under a risk-based approach.
Significant deficiencies in internal control are brought to the attention of the
AC and the Board. Findings and internal control recommendations arising
from audit assignments are reported to the respective Management for
actions. The internal audit team performs follow-up reviews to ensure proper
implementation of the agreed actions and the implementation status is
reported to the AC regularly.

External Audit

Ernst & Young was appointed as the Group’s external auditor to conduct
the audit of its financial statements. The AC is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment, removal
and remuneration of the external auditor.

The main purpose of the external audit is to provide independent assurance to
the Board and shareholders that the annual financial statements of the Group
are fairly stated. The external auditor plays an important independent role in
expressing an opinion on the financial statements based on their audit, and
meets with the AC to discuss the nature and scope of the audit prior to the
commencement of the work if necessary and to report on findings. The external
auditor also reports internal control recommendations identified as part of the
audit together with management responses, if any.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company's external auditor, Messrs. Ernst & Young for audit services was
approximately HK$493,370 (2021: HK$479,000) and for non-audit services was
approximately HK$262,000 (2021: HK$228,000).

Audit Committee

The AC assists the Board in meeting its responsibilities for ensuring effective
systems of internal control and compliance relating to financial reporting, and
in meeting its financial reporting obligations.

Further, the AC directly oversees the work performed by the internal audit
team. Independent reviews of financial, business and functional operations
and activities have been conducted with a focus on higher risk areas of the
Company. The internal audit plan is reviewed and approved by the AC in
advance. Each year, the AC reviews the results of the internal audit assignments
and evaluates the impact of the findings and the proposed Management action
plans, and verifies the adequacy and effectiveness of the mitigating controls.

Delegation of Authority

The authority of the Board and the levels of authority delegated to the
Committees and Management is clearly defined and documented in the
Delegation of Authority Policy. Such delegation of authority is reviewed on a
regular basis to ensure that it meets the business and operational needs.
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Avoidance of Conflicts of Interest

The Company has established policies and procedures to manage actual or
potential conflicts of interest of its staff. Staff working in sensitive areas are
required to adhere to job-specific rules on the avoidance of conflicts of interest
in carrying out their duties.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Company has a formal whistleblowing policy in place to encourage
and guide its staff to raise serious concerns internally in a responsible
manner, without any risk of retribution. The Company also encourages other
stakeholders to raise concerns, in confidence, about suspected misconduct,
malpractice or irregularities in any matters related to the Company.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change in the Company's Articles of Association during the Year.

Transparency

The Company reports annually to the Information Technology and Broadcasting
Panel of the Legislative Council regarding the work of Cyberport in nurturing
the Information and Communications Technology Ecosystem in Hong Kong,
including its financial performance.

To enhance transparency and openness, the Company voluntarily discloses
its compliance with the Corporate Governance Code ["CG Code”] as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The new CG Code which has been amended
with effect from 1 January 2022 will be implemented in the Corporate
Governance Report where applicable.

The individual attendance records of Board Members at the Board and
Committee meetings is also reported on page 89.

With a view to maintain open and transparent communication with external
stakeholders, the Company continues to connect with the community by taking
advantage of multiple channels and tools. These include the official website,
monthly e-newsletters, press briefings and interviews, and participation in a
variety of local and overseas exhibitions and conferences. Annual reports and
information on our programmes and offerings are disclosed on our website for
public access. The Company also makes use of social media such as Facebook,
LinkedIn, Instagram etc. for promotions and information dissemination.
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Corporate Governance Practices

Although the Company is not required to comply with the CG Code, we have
applied its principles and voluntarily complied with the code provisions therein

generally except for those as set out below:

‘ Code Provisions

SFRIEX

EEERIER
BEARDBRAEBT(REELTH) > BRMERT
AR RAMSEETT > WEHEITTIHRXN—K
MRE > MELURERSM

‘ Reason for Deviation

fREERE

A

Ab4.2toA43

BAL2ENALIME

Ab5.1to Ab5

A5 IEALLE

Ab.h

1i)

B.1.2

E1Tto E15 & E.2.1

FENIEENSKRE2.11&

Non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election.

FERMTEFEIZIETENESRE - WA EEEE -

These code provisions deal with the appointment of directors to
fill a casual vacancy, appointment of independent non-executive
directors and retirement by rotation of directors.

BETARXESZEERLUEFEBRZHR - ZEBIIFNTE
= URESHNHERETER -

These code provisions deal with the nomination committee.

BYETARXERRZEEAM -

Directors must comply with obligations under the Model Code
for Securities Transactions and the Board should establish
guidelines for relevant employees in respect of their dealings in
the securities of the Company.

ERQAETETEARRZN (RETR) - MEE/IEIER
EEEEARBSFFERERS

All directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
This is to ensure that their contribution to the board remains
informed and relevant. The issuer should be responsible for
arranging and funding suitable training, placing and appropriate
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director.

FREERM2EFEEXEER  HRUBMAMBRIAE » ME
REEFEBTNBEREAMBNEATHEESFHEMN - %
TABEEZHEENEILIRHARESE  UKENEELT
NEEENAG  BEREE-

To provide transparency, the issuers must include the following
information for the accounting period covered by the annual
report and significant subsequent events for the period up to the
date of publication of the annual report, to the extent possible:

How each director, by name, complied with A.6.5

RERHERE > #TANESAIERAUTENNFRDEES
ST REE TS FREAIABNEARRER
ARV HEREFMAETEA 65K

The Remuneration Committee should make recommendation
to the Board on policy and package for all remuneration of
directors.

FMEZE AR AEERMENFMIERRTERESRIRN

These code provisions deal with the proceedings for annual
general meetings.

BETARXARRBFAGNEFAER

This provision is not applicable to the Company. Directors
are appointed generally for a term of two years or a term as
specified in the appointment letter. Directors are not subject to
re-election but may be re-appointed by the shareholders.

BEEXTERRARE - EENEH—RAMEIREZER
HIEEEH - EEERARGRER > EARRENEE

These provisions are not applicable to the Company. Pursuant to
the Company's Articles of Association, Directors are appointed
by the shareholders.

BERITEBRAEAT  REFABZ (E24R)) » EFHEK
REE-

These provisions are not applicable to the Company since
Directors are appointed by the shareholders.

BEFXTERRAAR > REFEITRRREE -

This provision is not applicable because all of the Company’s
shares are beneficially owned by the HKSAR Government and
are not publicly traded.

BRFEXTERRARATR » BAREMARNIIHEBFEREA
A > LNMEFRAREE o

Board Members of the Company are appointed by the HKSAR
Government via The Financial Secretary Incorporated who are
elite in their fields of profession and possess adequate and
updated knowledge and skills. The Company provided relevant
information or invited all directors to events and programmes
which enriched their knowledge to facilitate the discharge of
their Directors’ duties.

KRABEERMERTERERNEEMEARAREAERE M
EABEBENER > TARBHTRIMOMBRKLE - &2
BRMAMEHRBERBERSINEHRES - LEEMMIN
A o BBt FIEITERRE -

This provision is not applicable to the Company because Board
Members do not receive any remuneration.

BRIEXTERRARE - HERBMELAREEFFE

These provisions are not applicable to the Company as the
Company is wholly owned by the HKSAR Government via The
Financial Secretary Incorporated and Resolutions in Writing in
lieu of annual general meetings is adopted.

BEFXTERRARR > BAFRREHEBRRENEBH
HERREZEZERR ° HI > ARBAZRRBFRERRAE
HREFLNEN -

Continuing Evolution of Corporate Governance

We will continue to review and, where appropriate, enhance our corporate

governance practices in light of the regulatory requirements.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Principal activities

The principal activities of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”] are
set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results

The Group's loss for the year and the Group's financial position at 31 March
2022 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 101 to 176.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report

were:

Karen CHAN Ka-yin

Christopher CHAO Yu-hang

lvy CHEUNG Wing-han

LAU Kwok-fan

Michael LEUNG Kin-man

LING Kar-kan

Victor NG Chi-keung

Hendrick SIN

Charleston SIN Chiu-shun

Rosana WONG Wai-man

Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing

Simon CHAN Sai-ming (Chairman appointed on 1 April 2022)
Erica MA Yun (appointed on 1 April 2022)

Maggie TSOI Tsz-shan (appointed on 1 April 2022)
MAK Tak-wai (appointed on 20 July 2022)

Duncan CHIU (retired on 31 March 2022)

Lee George LAM (retired on 31 March 2022)
Annie CHOI Suk-han (resigned on 20 July 2022)

Charmaine Amy WONG Hoi-wan (alternate director to MAK Tak-wai,
appointed on 20 July 2022; alternate director to Annie CHOI Suk-han,
appointed on 8 June 2021 and resigned on 20 July 2022)
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Report of the Directors

EERRE

Directors (continued)

There being no provision in the Company’s Articles of Association in connection
with the retirement of directors by rotation, all existing Directors continue in
office for the following year.

The persons who were directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during the
year and up to the date of this report (unless otherwise stated) were:

Peter YAN King-shun

LEE Kok-ming

Directors’ interests in shares and debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Company’s directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Company to which the Company or any of the Company’s holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Management contracts

Save for the management agreement of Le Méridien Hong Kong, Cyberport, the
facilities management agreement and the system operation contract, no other
contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries were

entered into or existed during the year.
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Permitted indemnity provision

During the year and up to the date of this report, the permitted indemnity
provision as defined in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
for the benefit of the directors of the Company was in force. The Company has
arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the directors’ liabilities in respect
of any legal actions against its directors arising out of corporate activities.

Events after the reporting period

Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting period are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A
resolution for the reappointment of Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Simon CHAN Sai-ming
Chairman

Hong Kong
26 October 2022
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Independent Auditor's Report
BIZHENRE

Independent auditor’s report

To the members of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
ERMEEEERRAR

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited (the "Company”] and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 101 to 176, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2022, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and
auditor’s report thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the report of the
Directors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

98 Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report

BIZHEERE
HEBBEESEERATRR
HEYBEEERRAR
(RBEBA ML FRAE])

BER
KFESBAENEINE1EEBHISBEESRA
S(TE&AT) REMBAR (4B TE8EH)) NKRE
BSIREK » BEREER20253831 ANESTHR
MEHEZOLEENGEERR  Koe2aksa
R IREORREHREGRERENER  URKEY
BImRMT (BEEEGBREER) o

BMERA KU BRRERESEGHHAE (TS
BYHAR)) BEN(EBHBRELER) ((HFEH
BREER) ) EEMAT MR BEEK202243
A ENREMBRIABEZR LEENGRSHH
RREGERERE > TERREB(QBEH) 25
fmEd o

EREER

RMERBEERSMRATHEAN(E BB EL)
((EBEHERD ) EITH - HARBZFER K
ENEENARESZUMMBA R BRERARE
NWEE—BPIEE—F R - RESEBEHAMREN
SXEHMERTR (TR - RABILE HE
» W BRE (TR BT EMEBEE - MIAMERE -
BFAPTESHNESRIEERIRBEEMASHMINER
TR fitERE o

AR E MR R R AL BB R & A SN B

BERAREEHHAMENEE -
RREHER o

HMENSEHNES

RPAHGEHUBRENERLTREAMER > 7
AR ZEHMEREREATL SRR

MEMABA GV FREMES > RANEERFER
MmER > WRIEBETEBREMENERTREEHH
BRIRMNBABIEPETNEFEERTT
HEEERERRL - HHRMABRERITHIIERS
EREMENEFEEERERET - RAARRSERE
B o it - WAIBAREHRE -



Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial
statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the Directors.
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Independent Auditor's Report
BIZHENRE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
26 October 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

oA 4E oL
rEEm

Year ended 31 March 2022 & ZE2022%F3831HLEEE

2022 2021
Notes HK$ HK$
Mf5E BT BIT
REVENUE WA 4 416,817,592 352,245,316
Other net income HAUg A F2E 4 6,366,632 141,876,221
423,184,224 494,121,537
EXPENSES BEFORE PUBLIC MISSION ACTIVITIES Rt AREmEENT H KR
EXPENSES AND DEPRECIATION rEZ%H

Building management expenses YEEEL H (175,145,689) (176,618,733)
Staff costs BTmA 5 (71,777,349) (94,478,289)
Government rent and rates HhFE R 2= 9 (15,692,883) (16,174,321)
Other operating expenses Hhfge i (44,049,095) (76,392,941)
Finance costs M ER b (84,848) (120,095)
(306,749,864) (363,784,379)

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE PUBLIC MISSION RetAREREN T HRITE
ACTIVITIES EXPENSES AND DEPRECIATION 2T 116,434,360 130,337,158
Public mission activities expenses, net NREREHFZH 10 (180,621,855) (194,023,643)
OPERATING LOSS BEFORE DEPRECIATION REHFENRKE (64,187,495) (63,686,485)
Depreciation ITEE (155,085,613) (149,101,154)
LOSS BEFORE TAX PRI AIESIE 6 (219,273,108) (212,787,639)
Income tax Frigin 1 - -
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FREE (219,273,108) (212,787,639)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mOEEWEmR

Year ended 31 March 2022 & ZE2022%F3831HEEE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

- Changes in fair value of equity investments
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR
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FAEE

Hith2 i

REERBEFEERDBERD 2 HAit
SEWE

- EERAAEESARMEERTEZ
RAREZ A EELH

FEREMEERE 0RRRIE)

FREZHEBGHEEE

2022 2021

HK$ HK$

AT BIT
(219,273,108) (212,787,639)
99,193,026 19,150,647
99,193,026 19,150,647
(120,080,082) (193,636,992)




NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Deferred rental receivables
Cyberport Macro Fund investments
Investments in securities

Prepayments and deposits

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Investments in securities

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals

Rental and other deposits

Amount due to the immediate holding company

Lease liabilities

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

rrE MBI

As at 31 March 2022 7220225383 1H

2022 2021
Notes HK$ HK$
=3 AT BT
ERBEE
e Ty 13 2,942,946,396  2,757,289,540
ERREE 14(a) 3,358,084 5,831,665
IRFEFEW A 10,453,908 13,295,348
VBB BRSNS 15 273,269,615 149,017,792
BHELE 16 - 49,108,104
BRI RS 18 5,163,496 36,488,433
JEMENE ELREE 3,235,191,499  3,011,030,882
REEE
= 171,488 212,200
FEURAR R 17 18,743,644 20,403,184
FTEMTRUIE ~ 125 KR H MBI 18 47,115,314 44,298,659
A EE GG e 27(b) 1,938,909 2,041,992
BHILE 16 692,395,437 758,439,671
BeRFSZEER 19 294,335,411 383,979,684
MENEELREE 1,054,700,203  1,209,375,390
prc)=i
FE(TER R 45,531,974 50,240,157
EfhFE (T FUB R e B 20 235,923,137 275,983,171
MERHMES 21 94,287,294 95,430,483
FEE R ATRIE 27(b) 254,303,568 254,293,578
AEaE 14(b) 2,254,797 2,533,072
i =Rk 632,300,770 678,480,461
mEEERE 422,399,433 530,894,929
BERBERRBAEE 3,657,590,932  3,541,925,811
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
REMBEIRRR
As at 31 March 2022 722022%3H831H

2022 2021
Notes HK$ HK$
P EE BT BT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEREEE
Development maintenance fund BREEBES 22 379,206,407 387,752,187
Lease liabilities HEAaR 14(b) 1,279,666 3,534,463
Total non-current liabilities JERB & (F4EEE 380,486,073 391,286,650
Net assets BEERE 3,277,104,859  3,150,639,161
EQUITY i
Share capital [i3%i 23 538,000,002 300,000,002
Reserves #iE 2,739,104,857 2.850,639,159
Total equity 1R 4EEE 3,277,104,859  3,150,639,161
Simon CHAN Sai-ming lvy CHEUNG Wing-han
PR 4H BA SREAM
Director Director
EF EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
IREEREHR
Year ended 31 March 2022 & ZE2022%E3831HEEE

Share Capital Fairvalue  Accumulated Total
capital reserve reserve losses equity
iz BiftE  AREERE 5 et
Notes HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
fifst BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2020 #2020F481H 300,000,002  5,374,246,757 8,077,227  (2,341,295,300)  3,341,028,686
Loss for the year ERNEE - - = (212,787,639)  (212,787,639)
Other comprehensive income for FREMEENE
the year:
- Changes in fair value of equity - lEERARBEA
investments designated HEtth 2 Ela 2 B
at fair value through other REZAREEED
comprehensive income, (H0rs#18)
net of tax - - 19,150,647 - 19,150,647
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERZ2HEEEER - - 19,150,647  (212,787,639)  (193,636,992)
Subtotal et 300,000,002  5,374,246,757 27,227,874 (2,554,082,939)  3,147,391,694
Transfer of fair value reserve upon  BRARNEERFESEEMEE
the deregistration of an equity Wiz SRR AR EZ AR
investment at fair value through BEEE
other comprehensive income = = 5,896,600 (5,896,600 =
Transfer from development MEEEEESEER
maintenance fund to capital reserve  BEAfEHE 22 - 3,247 467 - - 3,247 467
At 31 March 2021 and RK2021E38318 %
at 1 April 2021 1202154818 300,000,002  5,377,494,224* 33,124,474* (2,559,979,5639)*  3,150,639,161
Loss for the year ERNEE - - = (219,273,108)  (219,273,108)
Other comprehensive income for FREMEENE
the year:
- Changes in fair value of equity - EERANEEA
investments designated HEth2Elm
at fair value through other RAREZ AREEES
comprehensive income, B (1pRH18)
net of tax - - 99,193,026 - 99,193,026
Total comprehensive loss for the year £RZEFEELE - - 99,193,026  (219,273,108)  (120,080,082)
Subtotal gt 300000002 5377494226 132317500 (279,252,647 3,080,559,079
Issue of shares BITRAD 2 238,000,000 - - - 238,000,000
Transfer of fair value reserve upon  BAREERKEEE
the deregistration of an equity EftEElE
investment at fair value through HEREREZ
other comprehensive income NREEESD) - - (4,327,093) 4,327,093 -
Transfer from development REREEESERE
maintenance fund to capital reserve  BRfEHE 22 - 8,545,780 - - 8,545,780
At 31 March 2022 12022438318 538,000,002  5,386,040,004* 127,990,407 (2,774,925,554)*  3,277,104,859

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$2,739,104,857 (2021: HK$2,850,639,159) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
* ZEREIRE QER S BRRR A A H#152,739,104,857787T (20214F : 2,850,639,15987T) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEIREMER

Year ended 31 March 2022 & ZE2022%F3831HEEE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Realisation of government grants

Interest income from financial assets at

amortised cost, net of amortisation of premium

Interest income from investments at fair value

through profit or loss

Interest income from investments at fair value

through other comprehensive income

Fair value losses on debt investments at
fair value through profit or loss, net

Net realised/unrealised losses/(gains) on

investments at fair value through profit or loss

Interest income on bank deposits
Impairment of trade receivables
Impairment of other receivables

Reversal of impairment of trade receivables

Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and

equipment, net
Finance costs

Revaluation gains on investments

Decrease/(increase) in deferred rental receivables

Decrease in inventories

Decrease/(increase] in trade receivables

Decrease/(increase] in prepayments, deposits and

other receivables

Decrease in amounts due from fellow subsidiaries

Decrease/(increase] in trade payables

Increase in other payables and accruals

(Decreasel/increase in rental and other deposits

Cash used in operations

Interest on lease liabilities

Net cash flows used in operating activities
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2022 2021
Notes HK$ HK$
MdsE HBIT BT
RETHZAETE
FRiR AR 1R (219,273,108) (212,787,639)
2
M~ B RRBINE 6 152,612,032 147,055,454
RS ETE 6 2,473,581 2,045,700
T B IR (87,913,826) (129,270,528)
B AT IR SRIE E
B WA R R E 4 (2,603,975) (2,757,876)
BASEEFAB R ZRE
FEWA 4 (15,049,857) (19,213,670)
BARBESAHMEERT
BEFBWRA 10 (2,334,269)
BARBEEFABm 2 EBHRE
ARBEGIEPEHE 138,781 6,494,109
BARBESABRZREEE
R/ R EBREEE (W) 348 4 28,552,189 (8,583,560)
SRITERF B WA 4 (1,638,215) (2,557,919)
FEWERRURIE 6 29,625 1,292,484
H GRS R & 6 8,497,518 -
FEW AR RE (D] 6 - (48,507)
HEME - HBRREEEZ
B35 6 = 6,800,860
MHEA 6 84,848 120,095
BEEGHWE (408,687) (214,200)
(136,833,363) (211,625,197)
EEREWAR SR, (8 00) 2,841,440 (6,021,204)
EERL 40,712 107,621
FEU AR TR, (32 10) 1,629,915 (1,866,213)
FETRUIA ~ ZE R EMEKRIE
L, () 14,458,969 (27,049,150)
i EEN NSRS E T 103,083 1,251,242
FEATRRRURIL (3G 10) (4,708,183) 8,263,936
HAth eI TRIE R FE 51 I8 N 12,740,546 59,605,517
A& R EMIZE OR/) /1IN (1,143,189) 633,265
SERAZ RS (110,870,070)  (176,700,183)
HEAEFNE (84,848) (120,095)
RETHFAZRENEFE (110,954,918)  (176,820,278)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEIRERER

Year ended 31 March 2022 & ZE2022%F383 1B LEEE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZFZIRERE
Purchase of items of property, EAMZE ~ B RRBIEE

plant and equipment

Prepayment and deposits paid for the purchase of BEAYE - 23 KRR BEEBFR(T
items of property, plant and equipment FRNRIERIEE

Purchase of Cyberport Macro Fund investments  BEAZIEBREREESRE

Purchase of investments at fair value through BARRAAEESABRZERE
profit or loss

Proceeds from sale and redemption of held for HE KR ERFEEIHIR EFSRIE
maturity investments

Proceeds from sale and redemption of HERBLERANBETABTRZ
investments at fair value through profit or loss KEFTSHIAE

Interest income received from: BUFISHA
- Financial assets at amortised cost - BB AYIR ERMEE

- Investments at fair value through profit or loss - #HAAEBEFABRZKZE

- Bank deposits - IRITHEW
Decrease/(increase] in time deposits with original REIHIEZ=ES U ELZ EHEFER
maturity of more than three months L (38h0)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REZHFARESREFHE

2022 2021

Notes HK$ HK$
B 5E BT BT
(311,645,142) (54,191,685)

= (21,989,585)

(42,146,518) (36,593,154)

(344,756,154) (254,105,772)

34,981,200 =

396,590,932 247,542,194

2,908,304 2,896,146
16,017,365 20,208,404
1,646,694 2,841,438
326,331 (25,259,195)

(246,077,188) (118,651,209)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FERERER
Year ended 31 March 2022 & ZE2022%F3831HEEE

2022 2021
Notes HK$ HK$
M 5E BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES M EEZIRERE
Government grants received BEUWEFT BN & 25(b) 32,237,246 238,715,832
Principal portion of lease payments MEMRZAEHD 25(b) (2,533,072) (2,099,935)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRADFAIRFRIA 238,000,000 -
Increase in amount due from FEW B 1R A B RIEE D
immediate holding company 9,990 -
Net cash flows from financing activities A RS E RS RE 5% 267,714,164 236,615,897
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReERREZEER R FE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (89,317,942) (58,855,590)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year E#1Z2REKRIREEBEIER 358,720,489 417,576,079
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZBERIAEEEIER
THE END OF YEAR 269,402,547 358,720,489
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH AND RERREZEBEBEGRIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in REMBIRRRYIRERIRE
the consolidated statement of financial position “£(EIER 19 294,335,411 383,979,684
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity PEESERIHEA=EANULZ
of more than three months when acquired IR E TR 19 (24,932,864) (25,259,195)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in GAEREMBRMIIRER
the consolidated statement of cash flows HE%EER 269,402,547 358,720,489
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”] is a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office
of the Company is located at Level 6, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road,
Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is to support and promote the
innovation and technology development in Hong Kong through the creation
of a comprehensive ecosystem of digital technology companies.

With a vision to build Cyberport as a main force in developing the digital
technology industry as a key economic driver of Hong Kong (the "Vision”),
the public mission of the Company is anchored in three strategic
directions:

- Talent Cultivation and Development;
- Industry Development; and
- Integration of New and Traditional economies.

In the Group’s relentless pursuit of excellence, the Group takes a
pragmatic and comprehensive approach in realising its Vision. To ensure
the line-up of services is dynamic and flexible in meeting the needs of
budding technology entrepreneurs, investor community and industry
talents, the Company actively builds strong partnerships with leaders
from technology industry, academia, research institutes and professional
bodies.

To further extend the Group’s entrepreneurial support to scalable start-
ups, the Company has launched the Cyberport Macro Fund (the "CMF")
for Hong Kong-based digital entrepreneurs in 2017. With an initial size of
HK$200 million, the CMF aims to provide Cyberport’s start-ups with early
financing and promote the development of venture capital ecosystem in
Hong Kong. In April 2021, Cyberport has committed to inject an additional
amount of HK$200 million into the CMF and extend the scope to cover
Series B and later stage investments. Further details of the investments
made up to the end of the reporting period are included in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has established various teams ("Public Mission Teams”) to
achieve the above public mission. The expenses incurred by Public Mission
Teams that contribute to the successful running of the public mission
activities are disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Kong Cyberport
Development Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
and is wholly owned by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region ("HKSAR") via The Financial Secretary Incorporated.
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Name

#rE

Cyberport Macro Fund Limited

CMF One Limited

CMF Two Limited

CMF Three Limited

CMF Four Limited

CMF Five Limited

CMF Six Limited

CMF Seven Limited

CMF Eight Limited

Place of

incorporation

Ediipaveu s

Hong Kong
&E

Hong Kong
0

Hong Kong

0

Hong Kong
e

Hong Kong
9

Hong Kong
&8

Hong Kong

HE

Hong Kong
s

Hong Kong
0
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Issued ordinary
share capital
BETEHERA

HK$1
1787T

HK$1
187

HK$1
1787T

HK$1
1787T

HK$1
17T

HK$1
1787

HK$1
1787T

HK$1
17T

HK$1
1787T

1c

NEEF @)
BRAMBATMNER

KRBIZMBABFENT

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company
AT AR B DL

Direct
Hi%

100

Indirect
EEES

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Principal activities

FEXH

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

BEER

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

BEZER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding
KREZER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

BEER



Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, debt
investments at fair value through profit or loss and equity investments at
fair value through other comprehensive income which have been measured
at fair value. These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Group.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Group. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Group has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting
or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Group, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises [i] the assets
(including goodwill] and liabilities of the subsidiary, [(ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for
the current year’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond

30 June 2021

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described below:

(a] Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS
16 address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which
affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is
replaced with an alternative risk-free rate ("RFR"). The amendments
provide a practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be
updated without adjusting the carrying amount of financial assets and
liabilities when accounting for changes in the basis for determining
the contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the
change is a direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform
and the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is
economically equivalent to the previous basis immediately preceding
the change. In addition, the amendments permit changes required by
the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations
and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship being
discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on transition
are dealt with through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to
measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having to meet the
separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as
a risk component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of
the hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable requirement is
met, provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose additional
information to enable users of financial statements to understand
the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial
instruments and risk management strategy. The amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the availability
of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by 12 months. Accordingly,
the practical expedient applies to rent concessions for which any
reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on
or before 30 June 2022, provided the other conditions for applying
the practical expedient are met. The amendment is effective
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021 with any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits
at the beginning of the current accounting period. Earlier application
is permitted.The amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that

have been issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Reference to the Conceptual Framework'
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Insurance Contracts’

Insurance Contracts®®

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS - Comparative
Information’

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current’*
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Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates?
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction’
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use'
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract’
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs — Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
2018-2020 accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation
of Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the corresponding
wording with no change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was
amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather

than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable
to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies
that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope
of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC]-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather than
assumed in a business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should
refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC]-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 April 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the date of first application, the Group will not
be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do
not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor's interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA
in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting for associates and
joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

HKFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance
contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and
disclosure. Once effective, HKFRS 17 will replace the existing HKFRS
4 Insurance Contracts. The standard applies to all types of insurance
contracts (i.e., life, non-Llife, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless
of the type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and
financial instruments with discretionary participation features. A few scope
exceptions will apply. The overall objective of the standard is to provide
an accounting model for insurance contracts that is more useful and
consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in HKFRS 4, which
are largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies,
the standard provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts,
covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core of the standard is the
general model, supplemented by:
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

a specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features
(the variable fee approach); and

a simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for
short-duration contracts.

HKFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023. Early application is permitted, provided that the entity also applies
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 on or before the date it first applies HKFRS 17. The
standard is not expected to have any impact on the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 17 include changes to simplify certain
requirements in the standard and make financial performance easier to
explain. The amendments also provide additional reliefs to reduce the
effort required for the transition to HKFRS 17. In addition, the amendments
defer the effective date of HKFRS 17 to annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application permitted. As a result
of the deferral, the HKICPA issued the amendments to HKFRS 4 to extend
the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather
than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Group.

The amendment is a transition option relating to comparative information
about financial assets presented on initial application of HKFRS 17. The
amendment is aimed at helping entities to avoid temporary accounting
mismatches between financial assets and insurance contract liabilities,
and therefore improve the usefulness of comparative information for users
of financial statements. The amendment is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 The amendments are not
expected to have any impact on the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’'s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with specified
conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the
end of the reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity
will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments
also clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

116

REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities
to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply
the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments
to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance provided
in the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group
is currently assessing the impact of the amendments on the Group's
accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the
start of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise
a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be
applied to transactions related to leases and decommissioning obligations
at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that date.
In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions
other than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did not
recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences for transactions related to leases. Upon initial application of
these amendments, the Group will recognise a deferred tax asset and
a deferred tax liability for deductible and taxable temporary differences
associated with right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and recognise the
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any
such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest
period presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies
the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether
a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract
comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and supervision
costs). General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts
for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable to

the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An
entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified
or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period
in which the entity first applies the amendment. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendment is not expected to
have a significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in Illustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential confusion regarding
the treatment of lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, debt investments at fair value through profit or loss, and equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted] in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level3- based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole] at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial assets
and deferred tax assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’'s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

120

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a] the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person:
(i)} has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of
a parent of the Group;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

or

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of
a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in (a);

a person identified in (a(i) has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides

key management personnel services to the Group or to the parent
of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are

as follows:

Buildings Over the period of the lease
Building services and support facilities 10%

Information technology facilities 20%

Centres equipment 20% - 33'/,%

Leasehold improvements 10%

Furniture and equipment 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or

contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys

the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all

leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The

Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use

assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)

(b

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(c] Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases (that is those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option]. Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification] each of its leases as either an operating lease
or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest ["SPPI"] on
the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’'s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held
within the aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost [debt instruments]

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income [equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its
equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably,
except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part
of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded
in other comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial asset
host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host together with
the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its entirety as a
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised [i.e., removed
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position] when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates, if and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECLJ. For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing
of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may
also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach [continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs
Stage 2- Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component and
lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans
and borrowings and payables)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans
and borrowings and payables) (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included

in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs of disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as
to use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of each reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws] that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of each reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the

temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws] that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in

exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

Hotel and management services

Revenue from the provision of hotel and management services is
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group.

Revenue from food and beverages
Revenue from the sale of food and beverages is recognised at the point in
time when the control of the assets is transferred to the buyer, generally

upon consumption of the food and beverage items by the customer.

Other facilities services

Revenue from promotion, additional air-conditioning and chilled water
charge, license fee and other facilities charge is recognised over time
as services are rendered if the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from event and venue fee, vetting and coordination fee, tenant bus
ticket and other premise fee is recognised at the point in time when the
customer has obtained control of the service, generally when the services

are rendered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Revenue from the car park fee is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Other incidental income and services income are recognised when the
income is entitled and services are rendered.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment
is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers
the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Foreign currency transactions

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Group's functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
consolidated financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of each reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the

exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency transactions (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainties

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group performs reviews for impairment of non-financial assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets may not be recoverable.

The Group reviews certain indicators of potential impairment of these
assets such as reported sales and purchase prices, market demand
and general market conditions. The Group considers “Buildings held for
rental”, "Hotel building” and “Building services and support facilities”
as a portfolio of assets and identifies the cash-generating unit to which
the portfolio of assets belongs by referring to the valuation performed by
independent professional valuers, after taking into consideration the net
income allowing for reversionary potential. The assumptions adopted in the
property valuation are based on the market conditions existing at the end of
the reporting period, with reference to current market sales prices and the
appropriate capitalisation rate.

Based on the Group's best estimates, provision for impairment loss on the
non-financial assets is not necessary.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainties (continued)
Investments in securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 on initial classification of non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity as financial assets at amortised cost if the Group has the intention
and ability to hold such investments to maturity; or at fair value through
profit or loss if the investments are managed by external fund managers
and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, and information
about the investments is provided internally on that basis to the Group's
key management.

For financial assets at amortised cost, the Group evaluates its intention
and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep
these investments to maturity other than for specific circumstances -
for example, selling financial assets with an insignificant amount close
to maturity - it will be required to reclassify the entire class as debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income. The
investments would, therefore, be measured at fair value not at amortised
cost.

For investments designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the
Group engages external fund managers to manage the investment
portfolio which is evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basis.
Accordingly, these investments are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss and are stated at fair value with subsequent changes in fair
value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit
and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected
to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the financial services, media and retail sectors, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on
the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainties (continued)
Fair value of Cyberport Macro Fund investments

The unlisted equity investments and unlisted debt investments have been
valued based on the recent market transaction prices, market-based
valuation techniques and expected cash flows discounted at current rates
applicable for items with similar terms and risk characteristics. The
valuations require the Group to make estimates about expected future
cash flows, credit risk, volatility and discount rates, and to determine the
comparable public companies (peers) and select the price multiple or
enterprise value multiple. Hence, they are subject to uncertainty. The fair
values of the unlisted equity investments and unlisted debt investments
at 31 March 2022 were HK$263,803,894 and HK$9,465,721, respectively.
Further details are included in notes 15 and 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such
as technical or commercial obsolescence arising from change or
improvements in the provision of services, or from a change in the market
demand for the service output of the asset, the expected usage of the asset,
the expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the
asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation
of the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of the Group with
similar assets that are used in a similar way. An adjustment of depreciation
is made if the estimated useful lives and/or residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment are different from previous estimation.
Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period based on changes in circumstances.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease,
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate ("IBR") to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have
to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as the Group that does not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the Group’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates]) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates [such as the Company’s stand-alone
credit rating).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.
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REMBRRMEE
4. REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 4 WWABEHMMGAZRER
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WAZDHFIT ©
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Revenue from contracts with customers BB ESAIMA
Income from hotel operation BEEERA 1,536,481 52,453,120
Building management income Y ES=FETUN
- Management fee income —BEEEKRA 92,394,809 94,703,372
- Other facilities income — H MR MU A 30,835,496 22,333,087

124,766,786 169,489,579

Revenue from other sources HMARZ WA
Rental income RN
Variable lease payments that do not depend on WARBURN RIS B R
an index or a rate AIEBEENTR 9,014,218 3,360,287
Other lease payments, including fixed payments HA SR » BFFEEENR 265,886,165 165,543,237
274,900,383 168,903,524
Car park fee income HEHWA 13,301,802 13,758,379
Other incidental income HMmMIEWR A 3,848,621 93,834
292,050,806 182,755,737
416,817,592 352,245,316
(a) Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from (a) BEEEHNRAZSEKAEE

contracts with customers

2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Type of services BRF%4E5Y
Income from hotel operation BEIEEEWA
- Room income —ZEWA 1,097,882 29,506,491
- Food and beverage income — B mREEHRA 438,599 22,946,629
Building management income MESEBIA
- Management fee income —BEEWRA 92,394,809 94,703,372
- Other facilities income — H R A 30,835,496 22,333,087
Total revenue from contracts with customers BREHWALEEE 124,766,786 169,489,579
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4. REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME (continued)
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(a) Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from

contracts with customers (continued)

Geographical markets IET IS
Hong Kong O
Timing of revenue recognition IR A RSB E e

Services transferred at a point in time

Services transferred over time

Total revenue from contracts with customers

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the
current reporting period that were included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the reporting period:

Revenue recognised that was included in contract

liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period: WA :

TBEEEWA

Income from hotel operation

(b) Performance obligations

Information about the Group's performance obligations is
summarised below:

Income from hotel operation

The performance obligation is satisfied over time when services are
rendered.

Revenue from food and beverages

The performance obligation is satisfied when the customer obtains
control of the promised goods, being at the point when the customer
consumes the food and beverages at the restaurants. Payment of
the transaction is due immediately at the point when the customer
consumes the food and beverages.

Management fee income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered.

Other facilities income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time or at the point in
time as services are rendered.
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2022 2021

HK$ HK$

BT BT
124,766,786 169,489,579
19,126,223 35,197,606
105,640,563 134,291,973
124,766,786 169,489,579

TREFINAREAPAED ARSI E
WamPZBATE

SRSt ARSI aNaETz

2022 2021
HK$ HK$
ATT BT
1,460,345 2,528,683
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4. W ABREMUTAEEE (@)
(b) BHEE®
R2022%F3A31H > PEEFGBOSME

4. REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME (continued)
(b) Performance obligations (continued)

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining

performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) which
amounted to HK$1,106,162 as at 31 March 2022 (2021: HK$1,554,816)
are expected to be recognised within one year.

(REBTHABDRERBT) 2XZEES
1,106,1627875 (20214 © 1,554,816787%) » F
BB —EE N RERR ©

2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Other net income HUg A B8
Interest income from financial assets at amortised Z#IHATIRZ SRBEEZFIE
cost, net of amortisation of premium of WA > NBRRE#EEE 137,588
HK$137,588 (2021: HK$140,445) 7T (20214F © 140,445 7T) 2,603,975 2,757,876
Interest income from investments at fair value BARBESFABGZREZ
through profit or loss FIEWA 15,049,857 19,213,670
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZHEWA 1,638,215 2,557,919
Services income from fellow subsidiaries (Note) BRMB AR ZARFFWA (Mist) 4,201,654 4,201,654
Net realised/unrealised (losses)/gains on BAREBEFABRZREZEE
investments at fair value through profit or loss B/ RER (F58) WP (28,552,189) 8,583,560
Foreign exchange differences, net SNEEREFER 2,784,780 1,884,271
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables R EIEWER 2 BB - 48,507
Government grants HTfE s 2,684,200 2,358,000
Government subsidies on rental waiver RS 2 BT ERERL - 96,394,713
Others Hih 5,956,140 3,876,051
6,366,632 141,876,221
Note: (=3

On 24 May 2000, a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam (the
“Residential Portion”) was assigned to Hong Kong Cyberport (Ancillary Development) Limited
("HKCADL"), a fellow subsidiary, by Hong Kong Cyberport Development Holdings Limited
(the “immediate holding company”]. Pursuant to the services agreement dated 25 October
2003 entered into between the Company and HKCADL, fixed monthly services income of
HK$125,600 was received from HKCADL commencing from November 2003 for the provision
of services by the Company to facilitate the operation of the Residential Portion. The fee
was revised to HK$200,000 commencing from April 2006 and to HK$261,000 commencing
from May 2008. The total amount received during the year was HK$$3,132,000 (2021:
HK$3,132,000).

Pursuant to the services agreement dated 12 March 2005 entered into between the Company
and Skillful Limited, a fellow subsidiary, monthly services income was received for the
provision of information technology and telecommunications services to the Residential
Portion. The total amount received during the year was HK$$1,069,654 (2021: HK$1,069,654).

72000658248 » EHBUBEBERITRE AT (THHBE
BAT) ARRKBAREEHEL (HBERE) BRAF
(THKCADL) #H B RS AR 8 P #h EL 89 6 95 H AR — Z 3 &=
i (MEEES ) o RIFAATERHKCADLFET 2 B H#A%2003
F£108258 2 RHBRE > AABMEEHD 2B ERMAR
# > B20034%11 8BRS B MHKCADLURER 125,600 T2
B ERRFSWA ° E2006548 K 20084E5 3 1L » LLBIRE S
BUEET A% F 200,000 705 261,000 7T ° 2 EE B UAREE
3,132,000 7T (20214F : 3,132,000587T) °

TRIE A A B B [F) Z M /8 /A Bl Skillful Limited FraT a2 B RS
20054638 120 2 RF5 1% > A AAMEEBHREEN
NEREBARBSME A WBRSKA - FFEEEIKEES
1,069,654 7T (20214 © 1,069,6543#7T) ©
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RIS ERR M5
5. STAFF COSTS 5. BEIMA
An analysis of staff costs is as follows: BIMAZDMUWT :
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries and allowances e KR RL 106,622,749 127,248,326
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RONER BT BN 4,854,533 5,637,175
Staff benefits and other staff costs BT@MMEME TAA 846,120 4,271,485
112,323,402 137,156,986
Analysed into: DITA -
Hotel BE 19,552,360 42,597,092
Corporate office NEIWERR 52,224,989 51,881,197
71,777,349 94,478,289
Public Mission Teams (note 10) NREEEEX (MI5E10) 40,546,053 42,678,697
112,323,402 137,156,986
6. LOSS BEFORE TAX PR IR AIRESIE
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting]: AEEZ FRAEGEENG, (Gt A) FFER
2022 2021
Notes HK$ HK$
P EE BT BT
Rental income less outgoings of T W AINERFISZ 14,986,883 7T
HK$14,986,883 (2021: HK$14,946,321) (20214 : 14,946,321787T) (259,913,500) (153,957,203)
Cost of inventories FERZA& 2,339,220 9,637,808
Depreciation of property, plant and M~ BB EBITE
equipment 13 152,612,032 147,055,454
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRHEEEITE 14(a) 2,473,581 2,045,700
Lease payments not included in the Tt A ESEFENHEENR
measurement of lease liabilities 14(c) 516,685 210,781
Auditor’s remuneration TZEREMIN = 346,080 336,000
Impairment of trade receivables FEWER R 2 (B 17 29,625 1,292,484
Impairment of other receivables HhEWRIEZ BiE 8,497,518 -
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables #[EIFEWREE > Bi1E 17 - (48,507)
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant HEYE « EESARRHBEE 2
and equipment, net BiEREE = 6,800,860
Finance costs: MEER
Interest on lease liabilities HEsEZAE 84,848 120,095
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7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7. EEME

IREEAREFRGIE383MER AR (REEEF
B ARGIE 2B E  AEMEEMIT ¢

The emoluments of the Directors of the Group disclosed pursuant to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation are as follows:

2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Directors’ fees EEEE = -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RN KREYET = =
Discretionary bonuses FIBTEAL = =
Retirement scheme contributions RINGTEIHER > -
8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 8. hEmEHER

Details of the remuneration of the five non-director highest paid employees ARFEEREFHEEZMNESFBNT

are as follows:

2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Salaries and allowances $ri Koo Bh
(Including discretionary performance bonuses) (EIER IBEBIEAD) 17,395,237 16,561,617
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IRRER T8 H 180,000 180,000
17,575,237 16,741,617

The number of the non-director highest paid employees whose

MENFUTHEEZ FEEREHESEZHEN

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: T

2022 2021
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7C23,000,00058 7T 1 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,00187c%3,500,00078 7T 2 2
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,00138 7T 54,000,000 7T 1 =
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 75 % 4,500,000 7T 1 1

5 5
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IRE IR
9. GOVERNMENT RENT AND RATES 9. iR ZEE
An analysis of government rent and rates is as follows: MR Z R Z DT -

2022 2021

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Hotel JAIE 706,000 1,228,000
Corporate office NENER 14,986,883 14,946,321
15,692,883 16,174,321

Public Mission Teams (note 10) NREREEX (MIEE10) 353,439 430,985
16,046,322 16,605,306

10. PUBLIC MISSION ACTIVITIES EXPENSES, NET

All direct and indirect expenses incurred for the primary and dominant

10. AR fEEBFZH
RAR D AEE B RAEMBREMNE Rt
MBI AR B EBFREE S A ER R
SHITRBA AR LR BRI « A HEE

purpose of public mission and that contribute to the successful running of
public mission activities as described in note 1 to the consolidated financial

142

statements are considered as public mission activities expenses. Such

expenses comprise:

Staff costs
Information technology facilities maintenance fees
Financial assistance to industry start-ups

Programme expenses (seminars, trainings,
competitions, workshops and exhibitions)

Government rent and rates
Public mission communications
Operating expenses
Government project expenses

Recovery of direct expenses (including government
grants of HK$79,856,461 (2021: HK$30,517,815))

Interest income on redemption of Rinlink

Fair value losses on debt investments at fair value
through profit or loss, net

Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report

BTMA
BB RRBREER
BERYRIBEEHRER

stEIH (s g 353~ BEE
TrRKRBRE

AR 2=

WO EZES W (BERfHENE
79,856,46178 7T (20214F :
30,517,81557T))

BRIZZEEN S WA

BABBESABRZ
BEHRARADEEFER

2022 2021

HK$ HK$

ABTT BT
40,546,053 42,678,697
24,751,347 28,245,175
92,323,480 93,501,733
16,134,043 13,797,925
353,439 430,985
4,336,536 6,731,163
16,503,206 10,400,182
76,797,334 28,396,883
(88,928,095) (36,653,209)
(2,334,269) =
138,781 6,494,109
180,621,855 194,023,643




11. INCOME TAX

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group did

not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year

(2021: Nil).

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to the loss before tax at the

Hong Kong statutory rate to the tax amount at the Group’s effective tax rate

is as follows:

Loss before tax

11. FR1SH8

ﬁri-!A
gy ==|

PR MIEE

HRAEEAFETENESBELETAERR G
T o AL EPLE ARSI LEE (202146 1 &) -

BARBREBZERETAEZFRAIBIRZIRE
BRERAERBERRIAFTINBIHRNOT ©

Tax credit at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate of 16.5% &&EEERE16.5%1E 2 MIER R

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax losses not recognised

Tax amount at the Group’s effective tax rate

12. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

At 1 April 2020

Deferred tax (credited)/
charged to profit or
loss during the year

At 31 March 2021 and
1 April 2021

Deferred tax (credited)/
charged to profit or
loss during the year

At 31 March 2022

1220204818

ERNREE GIA)
PR Z IEFEAR IR

2021438318 &%
20214818

PR (3 A)
b2 BRI

12022438318

2022 2021
HK$ HK$
HBIT BT
FRIR RIS (219,273,108) (212,787,639)
(36,180,063) (35,109,960)
BARRZ WA (12,422,667) (1,948,887)
eIz fi2 11,441,673 1,739,798
RHESD 2 MIERT 18 37,161,057 35,319,049
BAEEBEREFAE 2N = =
12, IRFEFRIA
FIEREEERBBZEEHNT :
Losses Depreciation
available in excess
for offsetting of related
against future depreciation
taxable profits allowance
AR EBHAR
RIRFERMR IrEE S Others Total
A 2 k518 ZEHE =gl 45t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
HIT BT AT AT
(149,992,946) 150,000,950 (8,004) =
(15,190,501) 15,183,782 6,719 -
(165,183,447) 165,184,732 (1,285) =
(12,182,248) 12,187,136 (4,888) =
(177,365,695) 177,371,868 (6,173) =
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12. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences arising

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

144

from tax losses carried forward due to uncertainty of realisation of the
related tax benefit through the future taxable profits. As at 31 March 2022,
the Group had unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$2,818,000,000
(2021: approximately HK$2,593,000,000]. The tax losses have no expiry date

and are yet to be agreed by the Inland Revenue Department.

Cost

At 1 April 2000

Addition

Disposalfwritten off

At31 March 2021

Addition

Disposal written off

At31 March 2022

Depreciation and impairment
At T April 200

Depreciation charge for the year
Disposal/written off

At31 March 2021

Depreciation charge for the year
Disposal/written off

At 31 March 2022

Net book value

At31 March 2022

At 31 March 2021

e
AR
AE

e/
RIE3AYIE
e

tHE /it
YRR

HERE
AR
EpAERS
tE /it
ISR
ERiTERL
e/
2SRy

RH3E
R0NEIAYIA

RUONE3R3IA

12. EEFRIE (@)
R AR ERE D BB R R FE SRR iR 7 & IR A8 RE
MIEF & » WAMEERIBGIEFELE 2GR E
REMRIRIEMIBEE © 122022438318 » &%M®
Z KRR IER184772.818,000,00078 7t (2021
£ 1 #92,593,000,00075) o R IEESIE AL 2 HR
B BEFRBEEES
13. ¥ ~ BB RRHE
Building
services
andsupport  Information
Buildings Hotel facilities ~ technology Leasehold  Furniture and
held for rental building ¥ facilities Centres ~ improvements  equipment Motor  Construction
il 13 i EAE  equipment EH FiE vehicles ~ in progress Total
i BF R EU iR i B fEIE i
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
A AT 7 A7 A AT # A7 AT AT
(note i)
(i)
SOTINBTIO LS 12T8Te940  M3TR0N 6088206 20299806 24599 930,137 - 5860303428
Q015707 4,193,051 1375787 1810575 - - Tb181200
(13926.6001 (19,516,673 (220137) - (Bt 0]
ISR 49T 1316895121 247913381 60886254 200129933 24k186,851 710,000 - 5902843228
46,698,207 3,380,563 35086727 7.779.880 - 53556 338,268,868
(25,436,133 (6,757,054) = SO /A TALY
SSTANTIE 49T 1363593308 205918791 60886254 235,214,600 245209862 710000 2532552 6208919929
12000086 9285366 LITTASO0 2030476 40886296 TE2L3TT  1%BATHAYT TO44T0 - 300538 84
77142985 5933 143838% 5417817 193663 716779 142,000 - 167055454
(8320880 (18319593 (220137) - [88e0610)
1309423251 101260478 1191523786 20720543 60886256 87138160 161932683 686,333 - 3145,553,688
T7,142965 59533 179016M 871,12 009803 2489924 1667 - 152412032
- (B (6,757,054) = SO VA T/AL
1386566,210 107,196,012 1209445457 213858522 6088625 107,236,199 180,074,873 710,000 - 326597353
2IT0067560  16TTAL900 154147871 12,060,269 127,978 461 5,134,809 - M53B5%  2942.946.3%
LUTTO0S  1T369T23  1B3T13% 15,250,838 112991773 82,256,168 213,667 - Q757289540
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

On 22 May 2000, the Government of the HKSAR granted the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph
Bay, Pokfulam to the immediate holding company for a term of 50 years at a lump sum initial
premium of HK$1,000 and an annual rent of an amount equal to 3% of the rateable value of
the said Lot from time to time.

On 24 May 2000, the Company entered into a sub-lease agreement with the immediate
holding company whereby a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam
(the “Cyberport Portion”) has been sub-leased to the Company from the immediate holding
company at nil rental.

The buildings are situated on the leasehold land granted.

Centres equipment represents equipment of Entrepreneurship Centre and Technology Centre
funded by government grant and used for the purpose of the designated projects.

As at 31 March 2022, the fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the
associated building services and support facilities) amounted to HK$6,747 million (2021:
HK$6,697 million). The aggregate carrying value of such assets amounted to HK$2,325 million
(2021: HK$2,373 million). The fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the
associated buildings services and support facilities) as at 31 March 2022 was determined
based on a valuation carried out by Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited (2021: Knight
Frank Petty Limited), an independent professional valuer.

The fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the associated building services
and support facilities) falls within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and is determined
using the income capitalisation approach by discounting the expected rental income using a
capitalisation rate adjusted for the quality and location of the buildings.

iR e M BIRRME

13. Y%  HiSSFKERE @)

B

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

2000658220 » EEFERBFAEZFZERATME—E
ISR SRR POt R 896958 > -3 » —RMANAEES
1.00087T > EAMAAS0E > MEFNHASSIEEN Lot
R R BSHFE AR AR (B3 % ©

120005824 » FARRERERARL—A AR
o B > ARBRERERAR DB EMIBEE MR
89698 R —E ) 3t (TBHRAE ) » BAEZMNHERE o

RERFANEHIAE L -

PIORET BB S E BN AN ERIRE 2 X ERT
IR R Z & o

72022438318 » FHEHAEEF GERBRMZIE TR R
HIRRIE) 2 ARNBEEH ST ATEHBTT (20214 : 66.9718#
7T) o L EEZREMRMEA23.25( 87T (20214 © 23.73(8
BIT) o ZEREHEET (ERAMZEFRERIER
) 12022 3B HZ AR BENDRBBE IS XLENS
HEIRERERE (F8) BRAT (20214 | RBFARBMTHE
[RAT) EITZEERETE ©

FEHBET (EREM B TR A ERE) 2 AnE
EBRAABESRPZE=MH > HRABRABER S
E o HEARACMARET 2 E R FH R E A
{EEE R TREAE S AT RS & -
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14.

146

LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for office premises, office equipment,
information technology facilities, storage area and accommodation used
in its operations. Lease of office premises has a lease term of six years,
while office equipment, information technology facilities and storage area
have lease terms of five years, and an accommodation has a lease term
of two years. There are several lease contracts that include variable lease
payments, which are further discussed below.

(a] Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the

14. 1HE

EBEAETAA
AEERHSEREROBAEYE WAER
% BARRESH HEEBRERIAAES
B MAEMENEESPEANE  MPAZR
#% BN SHEETENEERATE &
ENAEPATE - AEBTAREEFEET
SREMRNAESH  HE T SOE—SHit o

(a) EREEE
REENERAREE L REERFNESH

movements during the year are as follows: T
Information
Office Office technology Storage

premises equipment facilities area Accommodation Total

/N WAZR BRI #FE e #azt

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

As at 1 April 2020 1202044818 5,827,967 539,102 190,650 48,716 - 6,606,435

Additions e = - - - 1,270,930 1,270,930

Depreciation charge  TERIY (1,554,121) (188,672) (95,325) (48,716) (158,866) (2,045,700)
Asat31 March 2021 $22021F38318K

andasat 1 April 2021 120214818 4,273,846 350,430 95,325 - 1,112,064 5,831,665

Depreciation charge  #ERI% (1,554,120) (188,671 (95.325) - (635,465) (2,473,581)

Asat31March 2022 12022838318 2,719,726 161,759 - - 476,599 3,358,084
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14. FHE &)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

[b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the

year are as follows:

Carrying amount at 1 April

New leases

Accretion of interest recognised during the year

Payments
Carrying amount at 31 March

Analysed into:
Current portion

Non-current portion

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 30(a) to

FEMEREMBA (@
(b) HE&ME

HEREZREERFENLIHOT :

2022 2021

HK$ HK$

BT BT

R4B1BZEREE 6,067,535 6,896,540

HEE - 1,270,930

ERNFRE A BIEE 84,848 120,095

(NN (2,617,920) (2,220,030)

R3F31 B ZIREE 3,534,463 6,067,535
DA

TRENER D 2,254,797 2,533,072

JEREER D 1,279,666 3,534,463

3,534,463 6,067,535

HEERZIMOMERESYHFREWE

the consolidated financial statements. 30(a) K EE ©
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as (c)] MEBEZEPHUEERDZSHAOT !
follows:
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
HIT BT
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEMNE 84,848 120,095
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets EREEETERS 2,473,581 2,045,700
Expense relating to short-term leases BRFEHAEE S H
(included in public mission activities expenses) BFtARR R EE T H) 37,688 32,413
Variable lease payments not included in the TetAREaE 2z E
measurement of lease liabilities (included in AENMTRGIARMKEZE)
other operating expenses) 478,997 178,368
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RERPHR LT 3,075,114 2,376,576
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14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(d)

(e)

148

Variable lease payments

The Group has a lease contract for an office equipment that contains
variable payments based on the meter rate of additional printout. The
term is negotiated by management for the office equipment that is
used to print without steady usage. Management's objective is to align
the lease expense with the additional printout. The following provides
information on the Group’s variable lease payments, including the
magnitude in relation to fixed payments:

Fixed rent BIEE
Variable rent only (ESANEE-2itka
Fixed rent BlEMHE
Variable rent only (ESZNEE -2t

In addition, the Group leased a warehouse which contains a variable
lease payment term that is based on the Group’s storage per carton
box in the warehouse. The amount of the variable lease payments
recognised in profit or loss for the current year for the lease is
HK$455,917 (2021: HK$97,776).

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 25(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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14. HE (&)

FEMEREBA (@

(d) PIEBEEMR

FEFTAE—MMAERBNEESHN > B
FEIREFIMTNFAEE MU EARE
IR ZIERZHREEE A FITENBIL &
BEEAEBNMAERBEETE - BEEEBN
REHEES HEEIMTENERETE - TRIE
HEMAEENTLBEENRZER > B8
BEREENRZIBE

2022
Fixed Variable
payments payments Total
ERANEN CIE-I0E “ast
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
156,000 - 156,000
- 23,080 23,080
156,000 23,080 179,080
2021
Fixed Variable
payments payments Total
EE IR AR 45t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
156,000 - 156,000
- 80,592 80,592
156,000 80,592 236,592

tEsh > AEEER—E

qE o

I=y=}

» HIEWBEER

BAEETEARNESERERESMTEN
AEAEMRNGR A FENEERE
Bm PR A BHE R 44559178 7T
(20214F : 97,7763 7T) ©

le) HENREREBEEESHMBREME

25(c) I EE ©



14. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessor

The Group leases certain buildings (note 13) in Hong Kong under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases also require the tenants to
pay a security deposit. Rental income recognised by the Group during the
year was HK$274,900,383 (2021: HK$168,903,524), details of which are
included in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants are as follows:

Within one year —&ER
After one year but within two years —FREMERN
After two years but within three years MEBB=FRA
After three years but within four years =FBENFER
After four years but within five years NERBHEFRN
After five years hFEE

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements
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14. FHE &)

TEEESHEA
AEBRECEHETHEREBETET (W
13) o MEKRNERBE ZHREE o AEER
FERER AU AA274,900,3838 7T (20214
168,903,524787t) > ARIFBHN RS M BHRE
Y

RIREIR - AEBREEBEFSTILR B HEH
RRERER AR BRBRITIRAE MW T -

2022 2021
HK$ HK$
ATT BT

197,919,217 204,224,981

101,600,930 129,987,428

39,316,311 40,486,359
15,112,133 20,923,132

9,580,804 14,527,258
29,633,651 39,799,330

393,163,046 449,948,488
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15.

150

CYBERPORT MACRO FUND INVESTMENTS

Equity investments designated at fair value

RARE

through other comprehensive income
- Unlisted equity investments, at fair value

Debt investments at fair value through
profit or loss

- Unlisted debt investments, at fair value

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group did not recognise any
dividend income (2021: Nil] from the equity investments held at the end of
the reporting period.

The above debt investments were hybrid contracts consisting of a bond
and an embedded derivative. They were mandatorily classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows
are not solely payments of principal and interest.

To further extend the Group's entrepreneurial support to scalable start-
ups, the Group has launched the CMF for Hong Kong-based digital
entrepreneurs in 2017. With an initial size of HK$200 million, the CMF
aims to provide Cyberport’s start-ups with early financing and promote
the development of venture capital ecosystem in Hong Kong. In April
2021, Cyberport has committed to inject an additional amount of HK$200
million into the CMF and extend the scope to cover Series B and later stage
investments.
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—JFEFREKRE - BAREE
BRARBESABEZEHRE

—FFLEHEBKE > BANEE

15. HISBREBRERERE

EEREAABES AR MEEKEZ

2022 2021

HK$ HK$

ABIT BT
263,803,894 139,467,740
9,465,721 9,550,052
273,269,615 149,017,792

HRAEERAZEREBRIGUET > K EEK
FREFFHIMIEER A ABES ARMEE
Yz e

BE202263831HIEFE » AEBIERERE
HREHARFIFA R AR E Z AR B UA (2021
F ) o

LREBRESBHESRRARNTETREERZ
REGH - ARBHDESBRRAAEEF AR
ZEHEE > FERARGHRESAEBUIFESS
NEERFE -

BE—TIMATEBHOBEVAICEZAIES
5 ANEER2017FASBHIGE X REBEE
BREREES - HISERBAEESIERE
BEAMRET > SEASBEBUA CERERE
REMRESBNERLEELERRENERE o ¥
20214F4 8 > BB BRER SIS ERERAIER S
INFEMEETT > TIBAEBMAREBIRNEE -
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REMBRRMEE
16. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 16. BEHRE
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Financial assets at amortised cost BEER AR EREE = 49,108,104
Current assets TRENEE
Financial assets at amortised cost VBT BR 2 SR E E 49,384,925 35,041,864
Investments at fair value through profit or loss BARBESFAEBRZKE 643,010,512 723,397,807
692,395,437 758,439,671
Total st 692,395,437 807,547,775
(a) Financial assets at amortised cost (a) IRBEHR AT Rz ERIBEE
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Listed fixed interest debt securities in Hong Kong ~ &#&_ELHEEF BEFEE 49,384,925 84,149,968
The net book amount is analysed as follows: IREVREITAT :
Maturing over one year H—FE L ERIE - 49,108,104
Maturing within one year R—ERNEHA 49,384,925 35,041,864
49,384,925 84,149,968
Market value of listed debt securities FHEHRESEZHE 50,088,633 86,052,761
(b) Investments at fair value through profit or loss (b) BMAREBEFABZZEE
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Listed fixed interest debt securities: EHEERN S EHEES
- In Hong Kong —&EBERN 215,922,704 252,865,574
- Outside Hong Kong —&BEIN 331,857,123 361,417,256
Unlisted but quoted fixed interest debt securities ELEHEEREEENEEHKES 95,230,685 109,114,977

643,010,512 723,397,807
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17. TRADE RECEIVABLES

152

Trade receivables

FEERR

Impairment BB

The credit period given to customers is generally 0 to 30 days. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancement over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

At beginning of year F4

Impairment losses recognised (note 6)

W RER A (fi5E6)
B EIRER IR (fisEs)

Impairment losses reversed (note 6)

At end of year FR

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with
similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer
type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit
insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome,
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables
are written off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.
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2022 2021
HK$ HK$
ABIT BT
20,065,753 21,695,668
(1,322,109) (1,292,484)
18,743,644 20,403,184

MTERZIEER—RA0EI0X - AEEHER
BRI E R U Bl 2 FEUGRIE U (E & B R E &
B - AR REEREEEEAER - ZEEY
B HBWIRRAERRI B IR AT E M
SERFHE o BUGRRARE -

FEER B E R IR B AEEIT ¢

2022 2021
HK$ HK$

BT BT
1,292,484 48,507
29,625 1,292,484

- (48,507)
1,322,109 1,292,484

FEERSREANEABFEEEETRED
i UEtERAEERE - BEXTVREARSE
PUBEEE Bt E U E - ERfRS - FREN
Rt U E BB REME R 2 EERRZBE
#BE) 2 AR DA BRREETE - Z5t
HRBERMELR « EEFEBEEURRKRS
HERTESARBEEM « BRI R R
RRTRR 2 FEBFEER - —RME > BUERD
MaiBe—FEFZRMATEE - BT LUK
8 o
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17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. FEMRERTR (&)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the LUTES G EEERERREREEEREE
Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix: ERkEER :
As at 31 March 2022 20225%3H31H
Past due
ikt
Lessthan  One to three Over three
Current one month months months Total
BPER DR—ER —E=ER BiR=EA fast
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Expected credit loss rate FAREEFEX 0% 8.49% 12.03% 16.19% 6.59%
Gross carrying amount (HK$)  BRE4E{E (BT) 9,473,535 2,765,246 4,320,134 3,506,838 20,065,753
Expected credit losses (HK$)  FEHEREER51E (BT) = 234,636 519,833 567,640 1,322,109
As at 31 March 2021 720215%3H31H
Past due
88
Less than One to three Over three
Current one month months months Total
BPHR MR—ER )= BiE=1{EA Bt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Expected credit loss rate TEHAEEBEEX 0% 12.99% 15.59% 10.03% 5.96%
Gross carrying amount (HK$)  BRE4E(E (GB7T) 11,374,385 2,779,584 3,143,450 4,398,249 21,695,668
Expected credit losses (HK$)  FBEAEEE518 (BT) - 360,979 490,208 441,297 1,292,484
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PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FRTRUIA
HEER

Prepayments
Lease incentives

Prepayments and deposits paid for the purchase

of items of property, plant and equipment AR
Deposits paid for premises leasing MEHER N2 RE
Government grants receivable FEW B T+ Bh & 0 1E
Other deposits Hitigs
Other receivables HthFE U IE
Impairment BE
Analysed into: pariir= I

Non-current portion SEREE D

Current portion TRENER D

Impairment of deposits and other receivables

The carrying amount of deposits and other receivables approximated to
their fair value as at 31 March 2022 and 2021. Provision for impairment on
deposits and other receivables is measured as either 12-month expected
credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
If a significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has occurred since
initial recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit losses. In assessing the expected credit loss of deposits and other
receivables, management considers various factors such as the ageing of
the balances, existence of disputes, recent historical payment patterns,
any other available information concerning the creditworthiness of
counterparties and forward-looking information. Management uses this
information to determine whether a provision for impairment is required
either for a specific counterparty or for certain counterparties’ balances
that have similar loss patterns overall. The provision for impairment of
other receivables at 31 March 2022 was HK$8,497,518 (2021: Nil).
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18. FAfTTRIA « RERHEMEKRIA

FBAYE - B RREBREZNZ

2022 2021

HK$ HK$

ABIT BT
18,725,252 9,087,783
11,451,646 32,773,812
- 23,650,198

685,008 685,008

= 5,500,000
1,544,830 2,394,600
28,369,592 6,695,691
60,776,328 80,787,092
(8,497,518) =
52,278,810 80,787,092
5,163,496 36,488,433
47,115,314 44,298,659
52,278,810 80,787,092

B R EMEWBTRIEZ RE

F2022 202138310 » @& R E MR
B REEREAABERS - B RHEMAEU
FIEZ RERER12EABHREEEEREEE
HEEBEHE > REEERR BV EBLUIE
BEKNBIEMNME o MEKHRBEZEERREY
SHERULKRBIEI > AREREHEREES
1B5t 2 o R EReREMERRIBEZ BHEE
BB > BIEBERLERE > FINARERR
EEEEMY THBFEZMNER «  BXZHA
NEEEBNEAEMITESER U KRATEEE
ko BEEMNAELEENKAERSTAAE—F
EXZHAHERE FEEUGEBEEANETRS
HEZEFREHRERSE - 12022638310 »
HhEWRIE 2 BB E# 28,497,518 7T (2021
FIE) o
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RERIBTER

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposit with an original maturity RESERIHAALR=ESZ

of less than three months when acquired IR ERER

Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of HREERKRIMAA=EALUL LY

more than three months when acquired IR BAER

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between one month
and one year depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances
and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

20. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Contract liabilities anam
Other payables HAth A FRIE
Accruals FEEt &
Receipt in advance TEUWGRIE
Government grants BB
Provisions B
Retention payable A REE
Notes:
(a)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows:
Short-term advances received from customers EEFYWERZ SRR
Income from hotel operation TBIEEERA

The decrease in contract liabilities in 2022 was mainly due to the decrease in short-term

advances received from customers at the end of the year.

(b)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of three months.

iR e M BIRRME
19. REKRREEFEERE

2022 2021

HK$ HK$

AT BT

143,841,606 104,902,248

125,560,941 253,818,241

24,932,864 25,259,195

294,335,411 383,979,684

RTRERBEHRITERF KLU B FIREE
ME - EMERRFTAERZARRESFRM
T EREHRNFT—ERE—FF% > LUKE
ZERERAERERAE - RITEFREREFENR
FALRLRENCHREEERFZIIRT

20. EfthfEIRRIER A& A

2022 2021
Notes HK$ HK$
FsE BT BT
(a) 1,106,162 1,554,816
(b) 4,127,448 1,816,708
152,187,006 135,340,048
5,638,205 6,606,703
61,824,524 117,501,104
8,163,792 13,163,792
2,876,000 =
235,923,137 275,983,171
BsE
la)  AMEERENT
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
T BT
1,106,162 1,554,816

20226 5MA MRS EBHNAE R W EHBMN A

FERMDAE

SRS 2021/22 3R

bl  EtENREARE  FHHRA=MEA -
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22.

23.
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RENTAL AND OTHER DEPOSITS

Included in rental deposits are amounts of HK$36,327,156 (2021:
HK$80,473,935) which are not expected to be settled within one year.

DEVELOPMENT MAINTENANCE FUND

It represents a fund received by the Group in accordance with the terms
of a project agreement entered into among the Company, the immediate
holding company, HKCADL, Pacific Century Cyberworks Limited (now
renamed as PCCW Limited) and Cyber-Port Limited on 17 May 2000
(the "Project Agreement”). Pursuant to the Project Agreement, the
purpose of the fund is for upkeep and maintenance of the common
telecommunications, media and information technology facilities available
to the tenants and visitors (the “Shared Cyberport facilities”).

Upon acquisition of relevant assets for replacements, the costs of the
acquired assets will be transferred from the Development Maintenance
Fund (the "DMF”) account to the Capital Reserve account in accordance

with the Group's accounting policy.

During the year, the Shared Cyberport facilities of HK$8,545,780 (2021:
HK$3,247,467) were acquired and funded by the DMF. Accordingly, this
amount has been transferred from the DMF to the Capital Reserve

account.

SHARE CAPITAL

Issued and fully paid: BEITREE

538,000,002 (2021: 300,000,002) ordinary shares 538,000,002A%

(20214F : 300,000,0020%) & iE A%

A summary of the movements in the Group's share capital is as follows:

At 1 April 2020 and 1 April 2021
#ax1T (YD)

New issues (Note)

At 31 March 2022 120224E3831H

Note: On 1 September 2021, 238,000,000 ordinary shares were issued at HK$1 per share to the
existing shareholders of the Company, which resulted in proceeds of HK$238,000,000.
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22.

23.

7202054818 R%2021F481H

HERHEMES

HEREORERATER -—FAELTZRE
36,327,156/ 75 (20214F 1 80,473,935/87T) °

BREERS
ZERECEAEERBEAAR  BEEERA
B~ HKCADL ~ BRI #EE H AR AT GRIBES
BEBRAR) REFBERABI2000E5817
BATE ST 2 5B st 2t (5t 8liReE) 2B
FREN 2 & o IR BIHE > ZIBEEEAER
BREEHBERRFEEAZARAEN - H#EK
BRI R (TSs B ARE])

BIEAEEZ G5 R > RBEEMEENEE
iz EMBEEEZMAREREEES (TR
MEES ) RFEEFENREIRD o

FN o $EEA8,545,78078 7T (20214 : 3,247,467
BIT) 2 HIEELARMEHERECESREET
REES - At ' ZZFREERBEREEESHE
BEBEAREERS ©

2
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
538,000,002 300,000,002
NEERASTEF RO T
Number of
shares
inissue  Share capital
EE1TRHEE (5223
HK$
BT
300,000,002 300,000,002
238,000,000 238,000,000
538,000,002 538,000,002

MizE 1 1220219818 » RER 1 BNERREAARRERRE
17238,000,0008% 1B > #EISFT1SRIE238,000,00087T ©



24. RESERVES

25.

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  25.

(a) Major non-cash transactions

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M BIRRME

24, (#fE

(a)

During the year, the Group did not have non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (2021: HK$1,270,930 and
HK$1,270,930), respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for

accommodation (2021: accommodation).

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b)

At 1 April 2020

Changes from financing cash flows
Government grants receivable
New lease

Realisation of government grants
Interest expense

Interest paid classified as operating cash flows

At 31 March 2021 and at 1 April 2021
Changes from financing cash flows
Realisation of government grants
Interest expense

Interest paid classified as operating cash flows

At 31 March 2022

R2020F4818H
MERERELH
FE T AR B & R
#iHE

BB 2R
FESH

DI

8

BREREZENFE

F

K202143831B K& 20214818
MERTRELH

B 2R

FIEsZH
DEAREREREZEMNNE

112022438318

E2])

FEERFFEERBEFEZFBESEREEY

RiFERmEH*E

mERETMERME

FTEIFRERS
RER » REBIERERE (20214 © £78)
2HEZHESNEEEREEEZIERS
RERBE&E (20214 1,270,930 TR
1,270,930 7T) °

MEEBFIELREES

Government
grants included
in other payables

and accruals Lease
AR thFERRRIRR liabilities
&5t & R 2 BB & HEaE
HK$ HK$

BT BT

2,555,800 6,896,540
238,715,832 (2,099,935)
5,500,000 -

- 1,270,930

(129,270,528) -

- 120,095

- (120,095)

117,501,104 6,067,535
32,237,246 (2,533,072)
(87,913,826 =

- 84,848

- (84,848)

61,824,524 3,534,463
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25. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  25. {28 IR& mERME @)

(continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated
statement of cash flows is as follows:

TEREEREAN
EREREIA

Within operating activities

Within financing activities

26. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the

reporting period.

Contracted, but not provided for

BETAEREE

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

(c)

158

The Company is wholly owned by the Government of the HKSAR via The
Financial Secretary Incorporated. In accordance with revised HKAS 24
Related Party Disclosures issued by the HKICPA, government-related
entities and their subsidiaries, directly or indirectly controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by the Government of the HKSAR
are defined as related parties of the Group. On that basis, related
parties include the immediate holding company and its subsidiaries
(other than the Company), government-related entities and their
subsidiaries, other entities and corporations in which the Group is
able to control or exercise significant influence and key management
personnel of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, approximately 4% (2021: 3%)
of the Group's revenue was rental income, building management
income and other facilities income derived from the Government of
the HKSAR. All these services are conducted in the normal course of
business and in accordance with the Group's pricing policy.

The balances with the immediate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Details of the compensation of the key management personnel of the

Group in respect of their services rendered to the Group are disclosed
in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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(c)

HEZRERHEE
SFAGRERERBRZBERS R MBI
T

26. i

2022 2021

HK$ HK$

BT BT

601,533 330,876

2,533,072 2,099,935

3,134,605 2,430,811
REMPREIRBUTEARKIE o

2022 2021

HK$ HK$

BT BIT

799,836,652 184,945,240

(a)

(b)

(c)

27. FAE B3R5

ARBHEERRERNBEMBERREE
LEER - REEBEHMQGEMZEE
SR B G ER B 2R T KEZIRE
NEEEREBFERIERIES - HEE
FINRHEEAF EZ BAERERREKNE
N BRAERBFTEBR KT - RiEZE
B Bl ERERERARKRERBAR
(FRABRIN ~ BUTHMERREREA
8~ AEEEERINAImMERZEZ Hit
BREMCEURAEERZTEZEEAS -

HZE202F3831HIEEE > KETBRE
BRZHASWA - BFEBRBARE MR
WAKIEAREBURA 4% (20214 © 3%) °
FEZEREE LR BB AER
ZEBBUREST ©

HERERARAKBRANB AR ZEHTSH
EIIR ~ RERIEEREE -

FEBTEZEREASAAERRHRFME
SN ZMERF BRI EMBRROIMEET R
BIER ©



28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial in
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 March 2022

Financial assets

Financial
assets

at fair value
through other

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

ﬁri-!A
gy ==|

28. BIEREIDHIERMT A
SEHSMTARRSHR 2 REENT :

struments at

202243H31H

TRIEE

PR MIEE

comprehensive
income
BAREE Financial assets at fair value
StARMZE through profit or loss
Weia 2 &R BARBEFABREZ
BE ERMEE
Financial
Mandatorily assets at
designated amortised cost
Equity as such Debt FBSER AN
investments BEEEA investments SliRz &R Total
A% E B2l BHRE BE act
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Deferred rental receivables EIEFEWTES - - - 10,453,908 10,453,908
Cyberport Macro Fund ~ HIBARERZESKE
investments 263,803,894 - 9,465,721 - 273,269,615
Investments in securities EHRE - 643,010,512 - 49,384,925 692,395,437
Trade receivables FEURBRR - - - 18,743,644 18,743,644
Financial assets included 5t ATB{TFUIE «
in prepayments, BERHEMER
deposits and other HEZEHEE
receivables - - - 22,098,154 22,098,154
Amounts due from fellow FEWEZKBATZIE
subsidiaries - - - 1,938,909 1,938,909
Cash and cash equivalents BHERELSEER - - - 294,335,411 294,335,411
263,803,894 643,010,512 9,465,721 396,954,951 1,313,235,078
Financial liabilities By =R
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
FBHR AT AR 2 SRIA(E
HK$
BT
Trade payables FE(TRRR 45,531,974
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals SAEMENMTUERE ER SREaE 161,787,716
Rental and other deposits HEREMRS 94,287,294
Amount due to the immediate holding company e BRIERATIE 254,303,568
Lease liabilities HEARE 3,534,463
559,445,015

HHEH 2021/22 F£5g 159



Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

iR M BIRRME

gy ==}

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

160

31 March 2021

Financial assets

Deferred rental receivables

Cyberport Macro Fund
investments

Investments in securities
Trade receivables

Financial assets included
in prepayments,
deposits and other
receivables

Amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Trade payables

YIEERARRESRE

STARNRIR
BEREMBER
MR ERMEE

BRRAZREARNR

RekReSEES

Financial
assets

at fair value
through other
comprehensive

28. #HEREIDHNEMITA @)
2021%E3H31H

TRIEE

Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals

Rental and other deposits

Amount due to the immediate holding company

Lease liabilities

Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report

income
BNARER Financial assets at fair value
SARMEE through profit or loss
Wiz &/ BAREEFABRZ

Financial

Mandatorily assets at

designated amortised cost

Equity as such Debt A
investments SREIEES investments 1k Total
KA Z5E5 BHEE BE izt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
- - - 13,295,348 13,295,348
139,467,740 - 9,550,052 - 149,017,792
- 723,397,807 - 84,149,968 807,547,775
- - - 20,403,184 20,403,184
- - - 15,275,299 15,275,299
- - - 2,041,992 2,041,992
= - - 383,979,684 383,979,684
139,467,740 723,397,807 9,550,052 519,145,475 1,391,561,074

Eauty =K

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
FRIBIH R A Y BR 2 SR B A
HK$
BIT
FEATERAR 50,240,157
SARMENRIBERESERZ 2REE 147,528,830
M hEfMIZE 95,430,483
e IR ATIRIE 254,293,578
HEAE 6,067,535
553,560,583
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29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29.
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments,
other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair
values, are as follows:

iR e M BIRRME

EMIAZARBERAABESR

FEBESHTAZRAERAAEBEEGREERAR
ABEESEEEZERITARIMNNOT

Carrying
amounts Fair values
IREE NAEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets ERMEE
Equity investments IBERARBEST AHM
designated at fair EEHREZRALE
value through other
comprehensive income 263,803,894 139,467,740 263,803,894 139,467,740
Debt investments at fair value RAMNEBES ABTZ
through profit or loss BEEE 9,465,721 9,550,052 9,465,721 9,550,052
Investments in securities BELE 692,395,437 807,547,775 693,099,145 809,450,568

965,665,052 956,565,567 966,368,760 958,468,360

The Group has assessed that the fair values of deferred rental receivables,
trade receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, balances with fellow
subsidiaries and the immediate holding company, trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, and rental and other
deposits approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following method and assumptions were used to estimate the fair

value:

The fair values of the lease liabilities have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
changes in fair values as a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk
for lease liabilities as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 were assessed
to be insignificant.

FEBETEELREAS « BUERR ~ 5tAR
IR BERAMBUIRRZ EMEE - Re
RELEERE - ARZAMNBARDRERZERA
Bl R ~ FEIRM © st A BT RRIB R A& 5t
BRzeMAR  HAEkEMREZ AR EEHR
HIREEEE - TEARZETARERREIE -

TRMEERTRERZAABEENNE S BEGR
BERERHERIN BT ERRSPRIRT AN
BEAALR o PO ERBRRARGSTAREE !

HERRZAAEENDEAREFNERLUFR
F EERBERGTEHNT AR KEHE
REREAREFTHEMAH - AAEEAFH2022
F3831HK2021E3831 At E A EAENT
BYRBMEENAABEEHPETEATEK
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of three [2021: six] unlisted equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as at 31 March 2022
and 31 March 2021 have been estimated using the market-based valuation
technique based on assumptions that are not supported by observable
market prices or rates. The valuation requires the Directors to determine
comparable public companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage
and strategy, and to calculate an appropriate price multiple, such as price
to sales ("P/S”) multiple and enterprise value to sales ("EV/S") multiple,
for each comparable company identified. The multiple is calculated by
dividing the enterprise value of the comparable company by sales measure.
The Directors believe that the estimated fair values resulting from the
valuations carried out by an independent professional valuer, which are
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair values, which are recorded in other comprehensive
income, are reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate values at
the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of thirteen (2021: seven) unlisted equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income as at 31
March 2022 and 31 March 2021 have been estimated using the recent
market transaction prices.

The fair values of two (2021: two) unlisted debt investments at fair value
through profit or loss as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 have been
estimated using either the market-based valuation technique or binomial
tree pricing model based on assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The valuation requires the Directors
to make estimates about the expected future cash flows discounted at
the interest. The Directors believe that the estimated fair value resulting
from the valuation carried out by an independent professional valuer,
which is recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, and
the related changes in fair value, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, are reasonable, and that they were the most
appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of listed debt investments are based on quoted market
prices.

During the period, the Group disposed a certain percentage of an
investment at a fair value through other comprehensive income with a net
proceed of approximately HK$4.6 million. Accordingly, a gain had been
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Subsequent after fiscal year ended on 31 March 2022, the Group disposed
of an investment at a fair value through other comprehensive income with
a net proceed of approximately HK$14.5 million and a realised loss will be
recognised in other comprehensive income during next fiscal year ended
31 March 2023.
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29. ERMIRAZAARBERAABEER
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720223831 H%2021E38318 » I5E#A
ABEFAEMEEKGEZ =18 (20214 © /<I18)
FLTRAREZ AABECEKAUTBAREE
EERIG ) REBELIFRTEETEREERS
Z BRET A o EITHER 0 ERABRET
¥ RE S ERERREEEE N ERAR AT (B
%) > WHERAAN A LRA B St EAEANER
BEE (BN EEUR P EBEBE) o B
RALLRAT N EEERUEESEHFTmt
HoEEZRA > NREVPREADBBULEEGEER
HEZ G A AEE GEAREMHERRER) XA
ABEZEMES GIAREMEZEKR) BSIE
T ARSEIEE -

7220223831 H 2021438310 » EEE AR
BEFAEMEZEKEZ 1358 (20214 : £1H) JE
THRAREZ AABEERBABPTSERARE
fEHfh ST ©

7220223831 B 2021638310 > RAAEE
STABRZ MIE (202145F | MIB) FLHEHBRE
ZAABEERATSBGES EFRZERNHRE
B RBTIFHITREMENEXIF 2’
REITEE o MEBRESRERR KRR RE
B EITREL G c EHRA > RREBERA
BB EE£GHEMIE 2 G AREEGIARS
MHBRRR) RAABEZHMES GEALKEIE
wR)BRE > TARSHEZEE -

LEHEBKREZ ANBERTHREAERSE -

B AEBHEETFLEARARBES AHM
2ENRmZRE i TAIEE%E%‘\]/?%%O%;‘%% )
FEUE R E th 2 B W e fE SR o

REZE2022F383 1B L BUEER » AEBHE
BAAEESFAEMEZERGE ZRE > FEHRIE
PEABI, 450%;%7E&H1ﬁ4%zi2023$3)§31 =i
ETF—ERBREERREMZERGRAEER
598 o



29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29. €M TAZAABEEAAEHE

INSTRUMENTS (continued)
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Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of

financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at

31 March 2022 and 2021:

As at 31 March 2022

Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input
B % EAFATHRRHALE
Unlisted equity Valuation P/S multiple of peers
investment multiples
SEEmRARE (NN 44 EETHIHEE

Discount for lack of
marketability

RZmEmE M 2 i

Amount

L/

3.5x

3.51%

20%

20%

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of premiums

and discounts determined by the Group that market participants would

take into account when pricing the investments.

(&

MR AR2022E %2021 E383 1 HESMI A
BZEATBRRHAHBREEREE2HRE

k)i

h2202253H318

=15

=T i

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

ARBEHBBABEZHERE

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HK$13,000/HK$13,000

EHEF TR % ERAAEEEM
B2013,000%87T,13,0008 7T

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HK$66,000/HK$66,000

g LT TR % ERAREERL
#9N66,0007%7T,66,0008 7T

BRZHmERBN T REAEEEET S HE
ERREEEREEBOEERTETEE
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29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29. £RiTEZ ARABHEERAABEEZHR

INSTRUMENTS (continued)
As at 31 March 2022 (continued)

164

Unlisted equity

Valuation
technique

HESZE

Option model

investment pricing model
FFEHRAKRE e EEl
Unlisted equity Recent

investment transaction
JEEmRERE THIRR 5
Unlisted equity Probability
investment weighting
method
SEETRARE BN A

Unlisted debt

Binomial tree

investment pricing model
FEBEHKRE “IRHNEEE

Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report

Significant
unobservable input

EATAHRRAARE

Volatility

LES

Risk free rate

BRI

P/S multiple of peers

B 2E T 84 8K

Discount applied to the
transaction price
pending completion

REMRZ B8 ZIT:E

Percentage change of
market capitalisation

HEBD EES

Risk free rate

BRI

(&
$2202243H31H (&)

Amount

¢4

64.7%

64.7%

2.3%

2.3%

5x

5%

50%

50%

(0.58%)

(0.58%)

0.5%

0.5%

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

ARBEHBRABIEZHEE

1% increase/decrease in volatility would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HK$56,000/HK$56,000

EENR EF TR % ERAREE
190, 552156,000587T,56,00058 7T

1% increase/decrease in risk free rate
would result in increase/decrease in
fair value by HK$56,000/HK$56,000

EERANE LT THRI%EERAAEE
10,/ 35256,00087T,56,00058 7T

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HK$96,000/HK$96,000

8 EF TR % ERAAEEEMN
96,0008 7T,96,00078 7T

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HK$600,000/HK$600,000

LT TR %S ERAABERLD,
#710600,000787t,600,00058 7T

1% increase/decrease in risk free rate
would have no impact to the result

|ERFIZE LA TR %R T ERER R
2

=

1% increase/decrease in risk free rate
would have no impact to the result

BRBFE LA TR %R A EEE
GREEZ



Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M BIRRME

29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29. £ TEZAABHEEARNBHEE R
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

As at 31 March 2021

Unlisted equity
investment

FFEHRAKRE

Valuation
technique

hESZE

Valuation
multiples

HEEH

Significant
unobservable input

EARTAHRRAARE

P/S multiple of peers

(EIEEEEE 24

Discount for lack of
marketability

RZ S mE N 2 i

EV/S multiple of peers

FIEEEEEEHN

Discount for lack of
marketability

RZ THIERE N 2 iR

Amount
iz

2.9x

2.91=

20%

20%

A

20%

20%

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of premiums

and discounts determined by the Group that market participants would

take into account when pricing the investments.

Unlisted equity
investment

FEEPRAKE

Unlisted debt

investment

FEEHEHKRE

Valuation
technique

fHERE

Recent
transaction

THARZ 5
Binomial tree

pricing model

“ AR EEE

Significant
unobservable input

EAFATHRBARE

Discount applied to to
the transaction price
pending completion

RITEMR 5 BRIk

Risk free rate

4 [ B 1) 2R

Amount

&

50%

50%

0.045%

0.045%

(&

$2202143H318

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

ARBEHRABIEZHERE

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HK$68,000/HK$68,000

EHEF TR % ERAAEEEM
B 68,000%87T,68,0008 7T

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HK$17,000/HK$17,000

g LT TR % ERAREERL
#9017,000%7c,17,0008 7T

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by by HK$56,000/HK$56,000

BELEATEI %R ERAAEE
184,256,000 7T.56,0007 7T

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by by HK$14,000/HK$ 14,000

e L7 TR % ERANMBE
/1B IN14,000% 7T, 14,0008 7T

BREZHEREEZITREAEEEEH LS HE
EHREEEREERIVEERTESE

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

ARBEHAABEZHRE

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HK$100,000/HK$100,000

8 L7 TH1 % ERAABE
L /1810100,0007 75,100,000 75

1% increase/decrease in risk free rate
would have no impact to the result

EEBAEEA B %R TG ER
ERRE
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29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 March 2022

Equity investments IEERANEESIA
designated at fair HMemEmlmz
value through other AR E

comprehensive income

Debt investments at fair value RAAEBEST AEE
ZEBEE

BEFKE

through profit or loss

Investments in securities

166 Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report

29. TRTAZARBERAABESER
(@)
ARBEEFR
TRETAEESHIAC AABEFEBER

BAnBENEZEE
7220224E3 4318

Fair value measurement using

RABEFAUATEESE

Significant Significant
Quoted prices observable unobservable
in active inputs inputs
markets (Level 2) (Level 3)
(Level 1) EXAHE BEAFAHE
TR ISR (E BA B B A SR Total
(B—4R) (B=4%) (B=%) “ast
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
HBIT AT AT BT
- 227,270,824 36,533,070 263,803,894
- - 9,465,721 9,465,721
547,779,827 95,230,685 - 643,010,512
547,779,827 322,501,509 45,998,791 916,280,127
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29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29. £ TEZAABHEEARNBHEE R

INSTRUMENTS (continued) (&)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) RABEER @)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued) BARBESEZEE | (8
As at 31 March 2021 20214383180

Fair value measurement using

RABERBUTERIETE

Significant Significant
Quoted prices observable  unobservable
in active inputs inputs
markets (Level 2) (Level 3)
(Level 1) BAAEZR BARAER
SRR RE A B BABE Total
(E—#) (B=#H) (B=%) 485t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Equity investments IEERANEBEESIA
designated at fair HtemEmlmz
value through other AL E
comprehensive income - 116,255,771 23,211,969 139,467,740
Debt investments at fair value A RBET AELE
through profit or loss ZEHKE = 8,367,107 1,182,945 9,550,052
Investments in securities EERE 614,282,830 109,114,977 = 723,397,807
614,282,830 233,737,855 24,394,914 872,415,599
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FR REMEEMS » F—REF _RET
between Level 1 and Level 2 for financial assets [2021: Nil). The movements EEBAANBESE (Q0214F | 8#) c F=HAZ
in fair value measurements within Level 3 are as follows: NABEEFEELHOT
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets at fair value through other BAREBESAHMEZERGERERZ
comprehensive income or profit or loss: THEE !
At 1 April I=R=! 24,394,914 10,281,340
Transfer from Level 2 during the year FEREHE 4K 37,201,654 21,344,675
Transfer to Level 2 during the year FNEASE 4K (16,433,390) =
Total losses recognised in the consolidated RiraBm Rl 2 HIRE%
statement of profit or loss (84,334) (6,711,749)
Total gain/(loss] recognised in other REMEEERRERZ
comprehensive income W, (E518) 4828 919,947 (519,352)
At 31 March H3A31H 45,998,791 24,394,914
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29.

30.

168

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2022
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at
31 March 2022.

As at 31 March 2021
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at
31 March 2021.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
financial liabilities (2021: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(a) Financial risk factors

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise investments
in securities, equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, debt investments at fair value through profit
or loss and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to finance for the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
credit risk, equity price risk, liquidity risk and currency risk. The Board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

Credit risk

All the Group's cash and cash equivalents are held in major financial
institutions located in Hong Kong, which management believes are of
high credit quality. The Group has policies in place to evaluate credit
risk when accepting new business and to limit its credit exposure to
individual customers.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at
31 March. For listed debt investments, the Group also monitors them
by using external credit ratings. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report

29.

30.

EMTRAZAABERAABESER
)

ARBEER (@)

BRANBEEZ AR

H20224E3531H
KEMF2022638 31 R BEMRANBEE
ZERMEE -

D> e

FR20214E3H831H
AEER2021E3/3 B BETAZAANEESZ
ZEmeEe

ER - BiEeMAaEns F—RRF_REL
EEBEAABEHE > TESANBHE=R
(20214F : 48) o

RS EIE B R REBUGR

(a) MBRAKRER
FEEZIESRTABESESKE - BQ
AEESFARMEERZZ RAKE ~ &2
AEBESABGEZEFREURFERRE
LEEH  ZESMIAZIEANERE
EECEERMES -

rEBTMTIAELEZTERRAEER
%~ RERR - RBESRRBKREKER -
EERFETAMEECESIEHERMRERZ K
5o BEEINE o

&Rk
FEEMAREAASESERBIFHNE
BERAEEERRFZEBIZSRE
1% o AEEBFIEEER - LEHE AT ES
Rz EERERKRHERMEZREEGER
ZEERR °

RERRRFRDERDE
TRETEANAEREERNRZEEERERK
EeEEAR (ZEREBHENSEL K&
JEEME R BARMNHIBZ M A HRIP #
15) > UKRNBANBZERDRERDE  #
EHEFREMS » AEBTERINBEE
SPARETTERIE - FTE7IHBEATMEEZ IR
E#E -
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 30. B E IS EIEBEZERBUR (@)

(continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) BAFSEPREE (4)
Credit risk (continued) EERR (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging [continued) REAERFRD GRS ()
As at 31 March 2022 7120223 H31H
12-month
ECLs
1218 B 85 Lifetime ECLs
B4 2HRTEIE Ei5IE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
PEER— FEEE— fEEE= fg1E& Hast
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Investments in securities” 3EEIBE" 49,384,925 - - — 49,384,925
Trade receivables* FEWBRTR* - - - 20,065,753 20,065,753
Deferred rental BRI S
receivables” 10,453,908 - - - 10,453,908
Financial assets included  stATEITIE « RERK
in prepayments, HitEWEIEZ
deposits and other TREE
receivables” 22,098,154 8,497,518 - - 30,595,672
Amounts due from fellow  FEWREZHBATTIE
subsidiaries
- Not yet past due e NG 1,938,909 - - - 1,938,909
Cash and cash equivalents R&ERREEEER
- Not yet past due —HARBE 294,335,411 - - - 294,335,411
378,211,307 8,497,518 - 20,065,753 406,774,578
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 30. M E S EIEBEZEREBUER (@)

(continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging [continued)

As at 31 March 2021

s

=
B

(a) MBRREZR (@)

Bk (8)
BB B Ko A 7 B ER 57 4 (4B

$R2021E3H31H

12-month
ECLs
12188 T8 Lifetime ECLs
EEEE 2ETRIEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
M — PEEEZ fEE= [z 45t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Investments in securities” FEEBE" 84,149,968 = = = 84,149,968
Trade receivables* FEWERR - - - 21,695,668 21,695,668
Deferred rental IREREWA S
receivables” 13,295,348 - - - 13,295,348
Financial assets included st ATEIRUIE ~ %%
in prepayments, RHEMEKTIEZ
deposits and other TREE"
receivables” 15,275,299 - - - 15,275,299
Amounts due from fellow  EUWREZRHIBAZZIE
Subsidiaries
- Not yet past due — AR EER 2,041,992 = = = 2,041,992
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEER
- Not yet past due — BRI 383,979,684 - - - 383,979,684
498,742,291 - - 21,695,668 520,437,959

& For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for * AAEERAEHCAEEZ BRI S - RIFHERE
impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 17 to the fBlEEt B BRI R S M TS IR 1 7iREE ©
consolidated financial statements.

# The credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “normal” when they are " EREEZERARTHRAN  BEERENERTE
not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a MEEZ FERRES RLURKIRIE RS
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality ME®) - TRIEMEEZEEERBRED (AR ©
of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Details in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising from ERAEBEKETZEERAR ZFE » 1°

trade receivables are disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial REMTRARMEE 1 7TIREE ©

statements.
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

[continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M BIRRME

30. BIEAMTIEEEREE (@)

(a) MBEREZR (@)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the value of underlying individual
securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual equity investments classified as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (note
15) as at 31 March 2022.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10% change
in the fair values of the equity investments to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax. For the purpose
of this analysis, the impact is deemed to be on the fair value reserve.

As at 31 March 2022 722022538 31H

JELEmRARE !

Unlisted equity investments:

- Equity investments designated at fair value

through other comprehensive income Witz RAIRE
As at 31 March 2021 2021438318
Unlisted equity investments: FFETRARKE :

- Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income

* Excluding accumulated losses

RER K
RERERIERAESRAEEFRERERE
FZBELHMEEZ AR 112022938
318 *EEEH  RERRKRENERE
EEARBESARMEERGZZRARSE
ZERIRARE (i5E15) °

TRETNERSAREAERREERRARZ
BAKENNEETEEN0% (PIEEMES
RS ERS AERRBEEN) 2B
E o BIEDITTE > ARZERESEAR
BERFERR -

—fEERAABES ARMEE

—EERARBESARMEE
W 2 A E

Carrying
amount of Change
investments in equity*
REREE rEEEE)
HK$ HK$
BT BT
263,803,894 26,380,389
139,467,740 13,946,774

* TEEREE

A 2021/22 3 1N
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its current
obligations when they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding
through operating cash flows and advances from the immediate

holding company.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, is as follows:

30. BIFEAMBIEEEREE (@)

(a) MBRARER (@
AR R
MEETARIERERREEERHZ R
Bz AR BEZADESAREECE
BREERTRBRERERAB ZBMME
BRBRERAIHBHAES -

FEEZHREENEEZEARBERZ RS
BEBRR > BREFEHRSMEE > LURE
HIEH R RIS ETHER °

FEARREPRBESORITRORZE
REEIBBEROT

Trade payables FEATERR

Financial liabilities STAR MR TRIER
included in other EstERZz EMaR
payables and accruals

Rental and other deposits &K HEMES

Amount due to the
immediate holding

FERTERHER A TR

company

Lease liabilities HE&aE

Trade payables FEATBRFR

Financial liabilities ST AEAM AR TRIER
included in other fEstERZ sRmaE
payables and accruals

Rental and other deposits &K EHMEE

Amount due to the
immediate holding
company

Lease liabilities

PR EEERARMIEA

HEAR
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2022
Repayable on
demand/less
than 1 year 1to Over
BEREE 2 years 2 years Total
—EUTF —EWE mEME “act
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT HBIT AT BT
45,531,974 - - 45,531,974
161,787,716 - - 161,787,716
57,960,138 16,011,924 20,315,232 94,287,294
254,303,568 - - 254,303,568
2,254,797 1,279,666 - 3,534,463
521,838,193 17,291,590 20,315,232 559,445,015
2021
Repayable on
demand/less
than 1 year 1to Over

HEREE 2 years 2 years Total
—&ELTF —EWE AL “ast
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
50,240,157 - - 50,240,157
147,528,830 - - 147,528,830
14,956,548 6,100,243 74,373,692 95,430,483
254,293,578 - - 254,293,578
2,617,920 2,302,760 1,291,320 6,212,000
469,637,033 8,403,003 75,665,012 553,705,048




30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Currency risk

The Group's functional currency is HK$. The Group is exposed to
currency risk primarily through investments in securities that are
denominated in another currency, being primarily United States
dollars ["USD"). As the HK$ is pegged to the USD, the Group considers
the risk of movements in exchange rates between the HK$ and the
USD to be insignificant.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to
safeguard the Group’'s ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the year.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholder’s
equity. Management reviews the capital structure periodically and
manages its overall capital structure if necessary. As at 31 March 2022
and 2021, the Group was in a net cash position.

31. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 14 July 2022, 446,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$1
each were issued and allotted to the immediate holding company of the

Company in consideration of the injection of an aggregate sum of HK$446

million into the Company.

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements
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30. BIEAMTIEEEREE (@)

(a)

(b)

MBRRER (@)

e

FEBZINEERHBT - AEEAEZS
KEREERENAMEE (FERET(E
701)) SHEZESRKRE - ARBETEETH
> AEERBBTRAR T HVEXRES)
REARRK o

BHREE

FEREAEE TEERDREFAERRF
BREZREN  KMARRHROR R HE
MIFMEFTRAE > WHEFEERZBRE
1 LUV ERRAE - £ BEAEEZE
R BERIZF IR EE o

FEBZEXRDERREEZPAERD - &
EEEHRNEAGE > TECERBER
MBEEE A - AEEIN20225F K202143
A31 BRI IRE RN

31. IREHREFIE

2022578148 » AR BEBZEZERA BT
i g &% 446,000,000 S IR EE 1 B T E @R

T
b

EBRAARBEAMREL 46FBTHINE ©
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

174

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Deferred rental receivables
Investments in securities
Investment in a subsidiary

Prepayments and deposits
Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Investments in securities

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals

Rental and other deposits

Amount due to the immediate holding company

Lease liabilities
Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
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IERBEE

W - B RRE
EREEE
EEFEW S
BEREA
WEABDKRE
FRRIERE S
IEMENE AR
RENEE

=&

FEUERTR

FRNTRIE ~ R R EMEWTIE

VNI
FE Wb BB A B R IE
BERE
ReKREEEERE
BB EMRER
mEam

FEATERAR
HAE (T IE R AT & A
HERAMZEES
FETEIEER A RIIA
HEARE
MmENEERER
RENEEFE
BERERABER

32. ZATMBIRRER
FABMBRRENREPRZERMT :

2022
HK$
ABIT

2,942,946,396
3,358,084
10,453,908

1

5,163,496

2021
HK$
BT

2,757,289,540
5,831,665
13,295,348
49,108,104

1

36,488,433

2,961,921,885

2,862,013,091

171,488
18,743,644
36,109,606

1,938,909
177,671,684
692,395,437

294,250,365

212,200
20,403,184
44,298,659

2,041,992
134,347,156
758,439,671

383,895,966

1,221,281,133

1,343,638,828

45,531,974 50,240,157
235,783,289 275,983,171
94,287,294 95,430,483
254,303,568 254,293,578
2,254,797 2,533,072
632,160,922 678,480,461
589,120,211 665,158,367

3,551,042,096

3,527,171,458




32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 32. ZARBFERAR @

(continued)

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Development maintenance fund

Lease liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Net assets

EQUITY
Share capital

Reserves (Note)

Total equity

Simon CHAN Sai-ming
FRAHEA
Director

EFE

IEREBERE
BREEES
HE&R
JEREN B ELRER

BEEZE

TS
<

1=
&N
84 (MIsE)

T ARER
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PR MIEE

2022 2021

HK$ HK$

ATT BT
379,206,407 387,752,187
1,279,666 3,534,463
380,486,073 391,286,650

3,170,556,023

3,135,884,808

538,000,002

2,632,556,020

300,000,002

2,835,884,806

3,170,556,022

3,135,884,808

lvy CHEUNG Wing-han
SRAEYH

Director

EF
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

33. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for

(continued)

Note:

Movements of the Company’s reserves are as follows:

At 1 April 2020

Loss and total comprehensive loss for
the year

Transfer from development maintenance
fund to capital reserve

At 31 March 2021 and at 1 April 2021

Loss and total comprehensive loss for
the year
Transfer from development

maintenance fund to capital reserve

At 31 March 2022

72020548 1H

FNEIEREEEEAER

HEREEESHRETELX

&

720213831 H K&20214

4B1H

FRBEREEBEEE

HEREEESHRBERLX

i
102022438316

issue by the Board of Directors on 26 October 2022.
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32. RTIBKRRRE @)

BEE
AABEEZEENT ¢
Capital  Accumulated
reserve losses
BAfHE REtEsE
HK$ HK$
BT HBTT

5,374,246,757

3,247,467

(2,336,478,892)

(205,130,526)

Total

st

HK$

BT
3,037,767,865

(205,130,526)

3,247,467

9,377,494,224

8,545,780

(2,541,609,418)

(211,874,566)

2,835,884,806

(211,874,566)

8,545,780

5,386,040,004

(2,753,483,984)

2,632,556,020
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